
 

 

AGENDA 
WARRENTON PLANNING COMMISSION 

Regular Meeting | May 9, 2024 | 6:00pm 
Warrenton City Hall Commission Chambers | 225 S Main Avenue, Warrenton, OR 97146 

***The meeting will be broadcast via Zoom at the following link*** 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85142805492?pwd=bEhjejNHaFJSOHVnT0xOYktVZWx4UT09 

Meeting ID: 851 4280 5492 | Passcode: 12345 | Dial-in number: 253-215-8782 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 

2. ATTENDANCE 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
A. Planning Commission Regular Minutes – 3.14.24 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT 

At this time, anyone wishing to address the Planning Commission concerning items of interest may do so. The 
person addressing the Planning Commission must complete a Public Comment Card and submit it to the 
Secretary prior to the meeting. All comments will be addressed to the whole Planning Commission and limited 
to 3 minutes per person. Public Comments may also be submitted by email to planning@warrentonoregon.us, 
no later than 4:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. The Planning Commission reserves the right to delay any action, 
if required, until such time as they are fully informed on a matter. 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING  
A. SDR-24-1 & CUP-24-2 Mini-Storage Warehouse on tax lot 810340002301 
B. CUP-24-3 Short-Term Rental at 976 Fourth Avenue, Hammond 
C. CUP-24-4 Short-Term Rental at 960 Fourth Avenue, Hammond 
D. CUP-24-5 Short-Term Rental at 964 Fourth Avenue, Hammond 
E. CUP-24-6 Short-Term Rental at 968 Fourth Avenue, Hammond 

 
6. BUSINESS ITEMS  

A. Planning Application Fee Schedule Discussion 
 

7. DISCUSSION ITEMS  
 

8. GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
9. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Next Regular Meeting: June 13, 2024  

 
Warrenton City Hall is accessible to the disabled. An interpreter for the hearing impaired may be requested under the terms of ORS 192.630 by 
contacting Dawne Shaw, City Recorder, at 503-861-0823 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting so appropriate assistance can be provided. 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85142805492?pwd=bEhjejNHaFJSOHVnT0xOYktVZWx4UT09
mailto:planning@warrentonoregon.us


MINUTES 

Warrenton Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting – 4.11.24 

Page: 1 

MINUTES 

Warrenton Planning Commission 

April 11, 2024

6:00 p.m. 

Warrenton City Hall - Commission Chambers 

225 S. Main 

Warrenton, OR 97146

Vice Chair Bridgens called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and led the public in the Pledge of 

Allegiance.  

Commissioners Present: Kevin Swanson, Christine Bridgens, Mike Moha, Jessica Sollaccio 

(virtually), Karin Hopper, and Cynthia O'Reilly  

Absent: Chris Hayward 

Staff Present: Planning Director Matthew Ellis, Interim City Planner Scott Fregonese (virtually) 

Planning Technician Rebecca Sprengeler, and Deputy City Recorder Hanna Bentley 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Planning Technician Rebecca Sprengeler noted a correction to the meeting minutes. 

A. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – 3.14.24

Commissioner Swanson made a motion to approve the minutes as corrected. Motion was 

seconded and passed unanimously.  

Swanson–aye; Bridgens-aye; Moha-aye; Sollaccio–aye; Hopper–aye; O’Reilly-aye 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS – None

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS – None

6. BUSINESS ITEMS – None

7. DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. Planning Commission Priorities for Planning Department

Planning Director Matthew Ellis. Mr. Ellis introduced himself. He would like to get an 

understanding of the Planning Commission’s priorities moving forward. He reviewed the status 

of current projects including the sign code update, shipping container ordinance, keeping of 

residential poultry ordinance, mini-storage cap ordinance, residential code audit grant from 

DLCD, and a fee resolution update.  

3.A



 

MINUTES 

Warrenton Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting – 4.11.24 

Page: 2 

Vice Chair Bridgens noted the property on E Harbor with derelict cars and asked about the 

enforcement status. It is in the enforcement process and a brief update was provided. Mr. Ellis 

will review the site and bring it back at the next meeting. Discussion followed about the Fort 

Pointe development on Ridge Road. There are concerns about the impact of the population 

increase on current public safety staffing. Increasing staffing levels will be dependent on 

increasing revenue. Commissioner Swanson is concerned about traffic safety, especially for 

children. Mr. Ellis noted the improvements that will be completed with Fort Pointe to mitigate 

traffic issues. Commissioner Sollaccio would like to see the Planning Commission be more 

proactive by pursuing grants to ensure the community functions for all members. She highlighted 

grants through DOT. She also explained the reason the Planning Commission limited the number 

of chickens to 12 in previous discussions. Commissioner Swanson requested a representative 

from ODOT attend meetings to ask questions. This could be arranged if there is a project-

specific need for it. Commissioner Sollaccio noted concerns from Spruce Up Warrenton about 

improving pedestrian crossings on Main Street.   

 

8. GOOD OF THE ORDER  

 

Mr. Ellis described education and experience in land use planning. He is looking forward to 

improving Warrenton’s disaster planning and preparedness through improvements to the 

development code.  

 

Mr. Fregonese thanked the Planning Commission and looks forward to working on the Middle 

Housing Code Update.  

 

There being no further business, Vice Chair Bridgens adjourned the meeting at 6:34 p.m.  

 

APPROVED: 

 

___________________________ 

ATTEST:      Christine Bridgens, Vice Chair 

 

_____________________________ 

Rebecca Sprengeler, Secretary 



City of Warrenton 
Planning Department 
225 S Main Avenue     P.O. Box 250     Warrenton. OR 97146 
Phone: 503.861.0920 Fax: 503.861.2351  

STAFF REPORT 
TO: The Warrenton Planning Commission 
FROM: Matthew Ellis, AICP, Planning Director 
DATE:  May 9, 2024 
SUBJ:  Conditional Use Permit CUP-24-2 and Site Design Review SDR-24-1 

BACKGROUND 

John Nygaard of Nygaard Land LLC has applied for a conditional use permit and site 
design review to develop a mini-warehouse or similar storage facility along SE Warrior 
Way which is zoned I-1 General Industrial. The subject property is presently 
undeveloped and is identified as Tax Lot 810340002301. 

PUBLIC PROCESS, PROCEDURES & PUBLIC NOTICE 

Applications were submitted on February 12 and after supplemental submittals were 
deemed complete on March 12, 2024. We sent notice of the public hearing to adjacent 
property owners on April 9 and published notice in The Astorian on April 30, 2024. 

CODE PROVISIONS, APPLICANT RESPONSES, AND FINDINGS 

Applicable Warrenton Municipal Code (WMC) chapters for this application include: 

16.60.030 General Industrial District Conditional Uses 
16.120 Access and Circulation 
16.124 Landscaping, Street Trees, Fences and Walls 
16.128 Vehicle and Bicycle Parking 
16.132 Clear Vision Areas 
16.140 Stormwater and Surface Water Management 
16.188 Multifamily Housing Design Standards 
16.192 Large Scale Developments 
16.208.050 Type III Procedure (Quasi-Judicial) 
16.212 Site Design Review 
16.220 Conditional Use Permits 

Chapter 16.60 General Industrial (I-1) District 
16.60.030 Conditional Uses 

5.A



Conditional Use Permit CUP-24-2 and Site Design Review SDR-24-1  
Staff Report Page: 2 
 
APPLICANT RESPONSE: The project is a new mini-warehouse or similar storage use, 
which is a conditional use in the I-1 Industrial Zone. 
STAFF FINDING: This criterion is met. The proposed use would be allowed if CUP-24-2 
is approved. 

16.60.040 Development Standards 

APPLICANT RESPONSE:  
A. The project will be within air quality standards set by the Department of 

Environmental Quality.  
B. The project will be within permitted noise requirements.  
C. All such materials will be stored indoors or in City of Warrenton approved waste 

disposal containers. 
D. Minimal fencing is used as necessary to protect the property with only 10 feet of 

fencing needed on the north and south corners the furthest away from the public 
view that connects to the existing fencing of NW Natural Gas and OR State 
Police property, and gates at the front customer entrance and fire truck access 
on the eastern side. 

E. On the east the site adjoins the non-industrial Warrenton-Hammond School 
District 30 across the New Road, and there is more than 10 feet of greenspace 
and landscaping buffers that will attain a mature height of over 8 feet. 

F. No vibration is expected with this site beyond standard highway vehicles. 
G. Electrical and lighting will not interfere with the operations of the Port of Astoria 

Airport. 
H. The setbacks are all 10 feet or more and across a street from a non-industrial 

zone which meet these requirements. 
I. The development complies with wetland and riparian area protections. 
J. The proposed buildings average 16 feet high, with a maximum height of 24 feet 

on the office building which is all below 45 feet in the industrial zone, and below 
the 40-foot maximum building height of the High Density Residential zone on the 
Warrenton-Hammond School District 30 property to the east across the New 
Road. 

K. All other applicable Code requirements have been satisfied. 
L. A single bathroom will connect with City Sewer and Water and will comply with 

City regulations which will be confirmed through the City’s consulting engineer 
review and approval. Please also see the attached Impact Statement regarding 
these connections. 

M. N/A, no dredging or disposal of wetlands is involved in this project. Additionally, 
mapped wetlands on the southern end of this lot will become their own separate 
legal lot away from this project through a partition/lot line adjustment process 
before construction occurs. 

N. N/A, no marijuana involved in this project. 
STAFF FINDING: The development criteria in the I-1 General Industrial zone are met. 

Chapter 16.116 Design Standards 
16.116.030 Architectural and Design Standards 



Conditional Use Permit CUP-24-2 and Site Design Review SDR-24-1  
Staff Report Page: 3 
 
APPLICANT RESPONSE:  
G. The project is for new mini-storage units, which is subject to the standards as 

noted below: 
1. N/A, the new storage unit facility is farther than 100 feet from East Harbor 

Drive. 
2. New storage unit facilities shall be subject to the following design 

standards: 
a. The predominant exterior materials shall be steel, glass, and CMU 

block. The predominant exterior materials shall be steel, glass, and 
CMU block. The building materials do not include [smooth-faced 
concrete block, tilt-up concrete panels, EIFS, stucco, or T 1-11]. A 
metal roof is proposed on the buildings and is compatible with the 
overall architectural design of the building and similar to buildings 
that have been constructed nearby. 

b. The proposed colors are neutral/earth tones to fit the surrounding 
area with Forge light stone siding and Janus continental brown 
doors. These colors are the same as used for the Warrenton-
Hammond School District 30’s Middle School and similar to nearby 
buildings. 

c. The site does not abut Highway 101 and does not have loading 
docks. The outdoor storage area is in the western rear of the site 
abutting NW Natural Gas and OR State Police which is away from 
public view. The outdoor storage areas used for boats and trailers 
are in the western rear of the site along the NW Natural Gas and 
OR State Police property using their previously constructed fence, 
which is away from public view. Equipment will not be visible to the 
public. Heating/ventilation/air and trash enclosure are screened or 
contained from public view. 

d. Exterior building mass is recessed every 40 feet or less on the 
north and east public facing sides, with a 102 feet length on the 
southern side that does not face the public. There is not a building 
mass of over 150 feet in length. 

e. The proposed site lighting is on the buildings, downward directed 
and do not exceed 25 feet in height. See attached sheet for detail 
of site lighting. 

f. All other applicable design requirements have been addressed. 
3. This storage unit facility is not along South Main Avenue or the Pacific 

Drive commercial corridors. 
STAFF FINDING: The architectural and site design criteria for Storage Unit Facilities 
are met. 

Chapter 16.120 Access and Circulation 
16.120.020 Vehicular Access and Circulation 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: Please see the two accesses on the eastern side and New 
Road design with Warrenton-Hammond School District 30 that meets all requirements 



Conditional Use Permit CUP-24-2 and Site Design Review SDR-24-1  
Staff Report Page: 4 
 
of 16.120.020. The New Road will be improved to be 32’-36’ wide and built to City 
standards and the Uniform Fire Code, including a left-hand turn lane onto SE Warrior 
Way; and will be dedicated as a public street and benefit the school district in its future 
expansions. Please see the attached Impact Statement showing average daily trips to 
the site are estimated at 36, which is much less than the 300 average daily trips that 
usually requires a traffic study to consider potential adverse traffic effects. 
STAFF FINDING: The vehicular access and circulation criteria are met pending the 
construction and dedication of the proposed public street. 

Chapter 16.124 Landscaping, Street Trees, Fences, and Walls 
16.124.020 Landscape Conservation 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: N/A there are not significant trees or vegetation on site. 
STAFF FINDING: This section does not apply. 

16.124.050 Fences and Walls 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: This site is in the General Industrial Zone, which will use the 
existing fence on the western side of the property that has already been constructed by 
NW Natural Gas and OR State Police. The north and south of the property will only 
have a 10-foot length of fence that will be less than 6 feet tall and connect to the 
existing fences built by NW Natural Gas and OR State Police the furthest from public 
view. The main entrance and fire access entrance on the eastern side will each have 8-
foot entrance gates, not a fence. No barbed or razor wire fencing will be used. 
STAFF FINDING: The fence criteria are met. 

16.124.060 Landscape Conservation 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: N/A this site does not have significant trees or vegetation. 
STAFF FINDING: This section does not apply. 

16.124.070 New Landscaping 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: Please see attached landscape species list and site plan 
showing landscaping that meets all the above requirements of 42,567SF of landscaping 
over a 212,770SF site, which is over the 20% landscaping requirement. 
STAFF FINDING: The landscaping criteria are met. 

16.124.080 Street Trees 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: Please see the attached landscape plan and site plan that 
meets all the requirements for Street Trees. 
STAFF FINDING: The street trees criteria are met. 

Chapter 16.128 Vehicle and Bicycle Parking 
16.128.030 Vehicle Parking Standards 



Conditional Use Permit CUP-24-2 and Site Design Review SDR-24-1  
Staff Report Page: 5 
 
APPLICANT RESPONSE: Please see the attached site design that meets the above 
requirements for vehicle parking. The gross floor area of the office available to the 
public is 1324 SF, which requires 2 parking spaces; so, the 4 parking spaces and 1 
oversize ADA parking space that is provided meets this requirement. 
STAFF FINDING: The vehicle parking criteria are met. 

16.128.040 Bicycle Parking Standards 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: A bicycle rack and pathway to the New Road and SE 
Warrior Way are provided in front of the customer’s main entrance which meets all the 
bicycle parking requirements. 
STAFF FINDING: The bicycle parking criteria are met. 

Chapter 16.136 Public Facilities Standards 
16.136.010 Street Design Standards 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: Access is proposed with a New Road in agreement with the 
Warrenton-Hammond School District 30 that will be platted as an 80’ right of way that is 
32’-36’ in width and improves this existing street with sidewalks and landscaping on 
both sides to City of Warrenton and Uniform Fire Code standards. Additionally, this 
project will construct a left-hand turn lane onto SE Warrior Way and this New Road will 
be dedicated as a public street to the City and will benefit future school expansions and 
sports fields by providing the school district with this improved access. 
STAFF FINDING: The proposed New Road will meet the street design criteria. 

Chapter 16.140 Stormwater and Surface Water Management 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: Please see the attached preliminary civil plans that show 
stormwater drainage goes to catch basins to a stormwater easement that maintains 
natural drainage, drains properly, and does not materially burden upstream or 
downstream properties with surface water. The applicant will also obtain a 1200(c) 
erosion control permit for construction, and meet all other requirements of this section. 
STAFF FINDING: The stormwater and surface water criteria are met. 

Chapter 16.144 Signs 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: Please see the attached site plans showing an on-site sign 
above the office that is below the required size and does not extend onto any public 
street or right of way and meets all other City of Warrenton sign standards otherwise. 
The applicant will also apply for a sign permit as required by the City of Warrenton. 
STAFF FINDING: The proposed signage will meet the sign criteria, but will be assessed 
as a separate sign permit. 

Chapter 16.192 Large-Scale Developments 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: Please see the attached site plans and preliminary civil 
plans that show a stormwater management plan that meets 16.140 of the Code. The 
soil survey of the adjacent NW Natural Gas and Warrenton Middle School developed in 



Conditional Use Permit CUP-24-2 and Site Design Review SDR-24-1  
Staff Report Page: 6 
 
the past few years determined these soils as suitable, which is identical to this site and 
incorporated herein by reference. Please see the attached Impact Statement showing 
the utility impact is also minimal, with a single bathroom and sink for City water and 
sewer, and this project improves the transportation access with the New Road and turn 
lane onto SE Warrior Way for future Warrenton Schools. There are no additional school 
children as part of this development and has a landscape plan that meets 16.124 of the 
Code. Utilities and roads will meet City standards and will be reviewed by the City’s 
consulting engineer. 
STAFF FINDING: The large-scale development criteria are met. 

Chapter 16.208 Administration of Land Use and Development Permits 
16.208.050 Type III Procedure (Quasi-Judicial) 

APPLICANT RESPONSE:  
A. A pre-application conference was held with city staff on May 17, 2023. 
B. Responses below: 

1. The official City of Warrenton Industrial Site Design Application and 
Conditional Use Application was filled out and submitted along with this 
narrative. 

2. Responses below: 
a. The information requested on the application form has been filled 

in. 
b. Three copies of this narrative statement have been submitted. 
c. The applicant submitted the required Type III Planning Commission 

application fee for a development over 30,000SF of $2,500 and 
Conditional Use application fee of $1,000. 

d. The Applicant submitted pre-addressed stamped envelopes with 
the address of the owners within the notification area of 200 feet of 
the site using the online Clatsop County GIS ownership records. 

e. Please see the attached Impact Statement. Public facilities and 
utilities infrastructure in this area have already been installed to the 
property for the Warrenton-Hammond School District 30 Middle 
School, and as part of this project the New Road will have an 
additional sidewalk connection on the project side that will be built 
to City of Warrenton standards and dedicated as a public street. 
The impacts to water and sewer systems are minimal with only a 
single bathroom and sink. 

STAFF FINDING: The criteria in this section are met. 

Chapter 16.212 Site Design Review 
16.212.040 Site Design Review 

APPLICANT RESPONSE:  
A. The proposal is for industrial buildings that are more than 10,000 square feet of 

gross floor area and over a site that is more than two acres, so this is a Type III 
application. 

B. Responses below: 



Conditional Use Permit CUP-24-2 and Site Design Review SDR-24-1  
Staff Report Page: 7 
 

1. Responses below: 
a. The proposed development site includes property boundaries, 

dimensions, and gross areas. 
b. There are no unique natural land features. The site is vacant land 

that is relatively flat, which is industrial zoned. Stormwater drainage 
goes to catch basins to a stormwater easement that maintains 
natural drainage, drains properly, does not materially burden 
upstream or downstream properties with surface water, applicant 
will also obtain a 1200(c) erosion control permit for construction, 
and meet all other requirements of this section.3 

c. Proposed private drive aisles and easements are shown along with 
adjacent existing streets, drives, roads, and easements. 

d. The location and dimensions of all existing and proposed 
structures, utilities, pavement, and other improvements on the site 
have been shown on the plan. 

e. The entrances and exits to the site for vehicular, pedestrian, and 
bicycle access are shown on the plan. 

f. The location and dimensions of all parking and vehicle circulation 
areas (including striping for parking stalls and wheel stops), and 
proposed paving materials are shown on the plan. 

g. Pedestrian and bicycle circulation areas, including sidewalks, 
internal pathways, pathway connections to adjacent properties, and 
any bicycle lanes or trails are shown on the site plan. 

h. Waste disposal for the office will use a standard garbage can that 
will be taken out to the street for collection and there are no loading 
and delivery areas otherwise. 

i. The common areas and outdoor improvements are shown on the 
site and landscape plans. 

j. Outdoor lighting will be attached to the building and are shown on 
the plan. 

k. The mailbox will be in the office at the main entrance shown on the 
site plan. 

l. The sign is shown on the office building on the site plan and 
complies with Chapter 16.144. Applicant will apply for a sign permit 
as required by the City of Warrenton. 

m. Please see attached Impact Statement, and all requested studies 
are included. 

n. The site plan shows the surrounding immediately adjacent 
properties. 

o. There are no slopes greater than 10% for this development. 
p. All existing roads and access easements are shown and will be 

paved. 
q. The subject property is not in any designated floodplain or 

floodway. 
r. A delineation and wetland removal fill permit was previously issued 

adjacent to the site as part of the Warrenton Hammond School 



Conditional Use Permit CUP-24-2 and Site Design Review SDR-24-1  
Staff Report Page: 8 
 

District 30 construction of its Middle School, and these areas were 
filled, so there are no wetlands or riparian areas, streams, or wildlife 
habitat on this project site. Additionally, mapped wetlands on the 
southern end of this lot will be on their own separate legal lot away 
from this project through a partition/lot line adjustment process 
before construction occurs. Completing this partition/lot line 
adjustment should be a condition of approval. 

s. Site features are shown on the site plan, and there are no areas 
having unique views, and drainage ways, or canals. 

t. There are no designated historic and cultural resource areas on the 
site or adjacent thereto. 

u. There are no existing trees or vegetation on the site as it is vacant 
land with grass, please see the attached site plan and landscape 
plan for trees and landscaping location. 

v. There is a North arrow, scale, names, and addresses of all property 
owners. 

w. The name and address of the applicant, project designer, Civil 
Engineer, Surveyor and Planner are shown on the site plan. 

2. Responses below: 
a. The building elevations show the height and width dimensions. 
b. Samples of the building materials, colors and types have been 

submitted separately from the application along with colored 
elevations. 

c. The name of the Architect is Greg Moore of Moore Design 
Associates and is shown on the site plan. 

3. A grading permit will be applied for during construction, and the site is 
level and flat otherwise. The finish grades will not materially change and 
will not exceed approximately 2%. 

4. Please see attached site plan and landscape plan that shows over 20% 
Landscape coverage that complies with 16.124. 

5. The proposed signage will conform to 16.14. 
6.  No restrictions or covenants exist or are proposed. 

C. The requested documents for this application have all been submitted. 
STAFF FINDING: The site design review application followed all applicable criteria. 

Chapter 16.220 Conditional Use Permits 
16.220.030 Review Criteria 

A. Responses below: 
1. The proposed use of mini-storage in the I-1 zone is in conformance with 

the Comprehensive Plan since it is an expressly allowed conditional use 
for this zone. 

2. The adjacent properties to the west are already developed with NW 
Natural Gas and Oregon State Police, and to the east across the New 
Road the Warrenton-Hammond School District 30 has constructed its 
Middle School, so this project is compatible with these existing buildings 



Conditional Use Permit CUP-24-2 and Site Design Review SDR-24-1  
Staff Report Page: 9 
 

and uses and will have minimal impact on these surrounding properties. 
This project will also directly benefit the school district’s access to the New 
Road for its future expansions and new schools. 

3. Please see attached Impact Statement There are an estimated 50 daily 
trips with this project or less, which is minimal traffic, and this project 
improves the New Road with a left-hand turn lane onto Warrior Way that 
benefits the Warrenton-Hammond School District 30 with improved access 
for its future school expansions. 

4. Please see attached Impact Statement. Public facilities and services that 
will be connected to already exist or are being improved by this project. A 
single bathroom and sink in the office area will add minimal impact to City 
water and sewer services. 

5. The site is essentially flat, and this use will not materially change the site’s 
physical characteristics and is appropriate for this use. 

6. The site plan shows and meets all these requirements. 
7. The use is appropriate at this proposed location. Adjacent industrial land 

has already been developed and built by NW Natural Gas and Oregon 
State Police. The site is accessible for users and will improve access to 
this area with a New Road that benefits the Warrenton-Hammond School 
District 30 with improved access for its future school expansions. 

STAFF FINDING: The conditional use permit application followed all applicable criteria. 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATION 

The applicant has demonstrated that the proposed mini-storage facility satisfies the 
conditional use permit criteria to be in the General Industrial zoning district. The project 
design is also consistent and in compliance with the design standards that guide large-
scale projects. Accordingly, staff recommends approval of both requests with the 
following conditions: 

1. Before any permits are issued for the development of the property, the applicant 
must demonstrate the right to access their lot across taxlot 810340000105, which 
is currently owned by Warrenton Hammond School District. This can be done 
through the dedication of right-of-way for the proposed public street or through a 
public access easement. 

2. The name of the proposed public street must comply with WMC Section 
12.24.040 when it is dedicated to the City. SE Warrior Drive will not be allowed. 

3. Any utility easements shall be dedicated to the City of Warrenton. 
4. The developer shall provide as-built drawings and certification by a registered 

engineer in accordance with the adopted criteria for all improvements before 
acceptance by the City. 

5. The developer shall agree to make all necessary offsite stormwater 
improvements if downstream deficiencies are created by the development of this 
property. 

6. The developer shall submit a final Stormwater Report with the final construction 
documents. 



Conditional Use Permit CUP-24-2 and Site Design Review SDR-24-1  
Staff Report Page: 10 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION 

“Based on the findings and conclusions of the May 9, 2024, staff report, I move to 
approve CUP-24-2 and SDR-24-1 subject to the conditions of approval included in the 
staff report.” 
 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. CUP-24-2 Application 
2. SDR-24-1 Application 
3. Code Compliance Narrative 
4. Impact Statement 
5. Preliminary Site Plan and Elevations 
6. Landscape Plan Species List 
7. Preliminary Civil Plans 
8. Soils Survey 



City OfWarrenton
Planning Department
Conditional Use Permit
WMC16.220 I EE ] DateReceived

(/»
3
LU
u

FEE $1,000

File# CUP .^y_.^_

alia |^M
Receipt* W1 -m-00a]ff^(^

The purpose of the conditional use process is to allow, when desirable, uses that would not
be appropriate throughout a zoning district or without restrictions in that district, but
would be beneficial to the City if their number, area, location, design, and relation to the
surrounding property are controlled, A property owner or designated representative may

initiate a request for a conditional use by filing an application with the Planning

Department according to the requirements of Section 16.208.050. In addition, the

applicant shall provide any related plans, drawings, and/or information needed to provide
background for the request.

Property

Address: south of SE Warrior Way byWarrenton Middle School and NW Natural Gas

Tax Lot fsl: pc>rtion of 810340002301 (Assessor No.32855)

Zone: j^_ Flood Zone: None Wetlands: None

Applicant

Name fs1: Nygaard Land LLC

phone: (503)861-3305 E-Man Address: John@oregonlawyerpdx.com

MaiungAddres. PO Box 100, Warrenton, OR 97146

^^yff^ _ o,., 2/9/24
~u' ^

Property Owner (if different from applicant)

N/A

Applicant Signature (s];

Name [s);

Phone: _ E-mail Address:

Mailing Address:

Owner's Signature: _ Date:
I am a record owner of property [person(s) whose name is on the most recently-recorded deed], or contract
purchaser with written permission from the record owner and am providing my signature as written

authorization for the applicant to submit this application.

CONDITIONAL USE
7.2023



Description of Proposed Land Use
New Minl-Warehouse facility and improving a New Road with Warrenton-Hammond School District 30 with a left-hand turn lane

onto SE Warrior Way to improve access for future school expansions. Also completing the existing sidewalk and landscaping on

a portion ofSE Warrior Way.

Conditional Use Permit Review Criteria

Please provide written responses to each of the criteria below that clearly explain how
your proposal meets each item. Attach a separate piece of paper if needed. Be as specific as

possible. "Yes" and "No" responses are not sufficient.

WMC 16.220,030

1. The proposed use is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan,
Please see Attached Narrative

2. The location, size and design, and operating characteristics of the proposed use are such
that the development will be compatible with, and have a minimal impact on surrounding

properties.
Please see Attached Narrative

3. The use will not generate excessive traffic, when compared to traffic generated by uses
permitted outright, and adjacent streets have the capacity to accommodate the traffic
generated.
Please see Attached Narrative

4. Public facilities and services are adequate to accommodate the proposed use.
Please see Attached Narrative

5. The site's physical characteristics, in term of topography, soils and other pertinent
considerations are, are appropriate for the use.
Please see Attached Narrative

CONDITIONAL USE
7.2023



6. The site has an adequate area to accommodate the proposed use. The site layout has

been designed to provide for the building, parking, landscaping, driveway, on-site
circulation, public areas, loading areas, storage facilities, setbacks, buffers, and utilities
which are required by City ordinances.
Please see Attached Narrative

7, The use is appropriate at the proposed location. Several factors which should be
considered in determining whether or not the use is appropriate include: accessibility for
users [such as customers and employees); availability of similar existing uses; availability
of other appropriately zoned sites; and the desirability of other suitably zoned sites for the
intended use.
Please see Attached Narrative

Submittal Checklist

Applicants shall submit all of the following items on a site plan along with the application
form. The site plan shall contain the following information;

The proposed development site, including boundaries, dimensions, and gross area

drawn to scale.

Natural land features identified which are proposed to be removed or modified by the

development, including modifications to existing drainage patterns, if any.

bd The location and dimensions of all proposed public and private streets, drives, rights-of-

way, and easements, if any

bd The location and dimensions of all existing and proposed structures, utilities, pavement

and other improvements on the site. Setback dimensions for all existing and proposed
buildings shall be provided on the site plan.

The location and dimensions of entrances and exits to the site for vehicular, pedestrian,

and bicycle access, if being modified by the application.

The location and dimensions of all parking and vehicle circulation areas (show striping

for parking stalls and wheel stops, as applicable), and proposed paving materials.

Pedestrian and bicycle circulation areas, including sidewalks, internal pathways,

pathway connections to adjacent properties, and any bicycle lanes or trails.

[3 Loading and service areas for waste disposal, loading and delivery, if any

Ld Outdoor recreation spaces, common areas, plazas, outdoor seating, street furniture, and

similar improvements.

CONDITIONAL USE
7.2023



Location, type, and height of outdoor lighting.

Locations, sizes, and types of signs (shall comply with Chapter 16.144).

W The Planning Department may require studies or exhibits prepared by qualified

professionals to address specific site features (e.g., traffic, noise, environmental features,

site drainage, natural hazards, etc.].

bd The applicant's entire tax lot and the surrounding property to a distance sufficient to

determine the location of the development in the City, and the relationship between the
proposed development site and adjacent property and development. The property
boundaries, dimensions and gross area shall be identified.

b^J Identification of slopes greater than 10%,

[Z] Any areas identified as located in a designated floodplain and/or floodway, if any

E Depict any wetland and riparian areas, streams and/or wildlife habitat areas, if any.

Site features such as pavement, areas having unique views, and drainage ways, canals

and ditches, if any.

[3 Any designated historic and cultural resources areas on the site and/or adjacent parcels

or lots.

Kl North arrow, scale, names and addresses of all property owners.

Name and address of applicant, project designer, engineer, architect, surveyor, and/or

planner, if applicable.

Letter or narrative report documenting compliance with the applicable approval criteria

including the conditional use criteria, zoning development standards, and applicable design
standards. Please see the Planning Staff for applicable design standards.

This application will not be officially accepted until department staff have
determined that the application is completely filled out, signed, the application fee

has been paid, and the submittal requirements have been met.

CONDITIONAL USE
7.2023



CITY OF WARRENTON
PLANNING AND BUILDING DEPARTMENT

! -/ I

To be accompanied by a Site Plan Map, copy of property deed
and if applicable, a Letter of Authorization.

OFFICE USE ONLY

FILE#&OR-34-l FEE$<?2<^)0'

ZONING DISTRICT ^"l

REcEipT#cin^-OQOOn- PL^

DATE RECEIVED ^)\;3] Q^\

The site plan review process is a method for assuring compliance with the City of Warrenton Comprehensive Plan
and Development Code, and to ensure wise utilization of natural resources, and the proper integration of land uses
utilizing appropriate landscaping or screening measures. An industrial enterprise must also consider traffic
circulation patterns, off-street parking, refuse containers, safe exit and entrance to the business, building height,
dust control, future widening of major thoroughfares, and signs. Please answer the questions as completely as
possible.

Legal Description of the Subject Property:Township 8 , Range 10 , Section(s) 34 _, Tax Lot(s)

810340002301

property street address SE of Warrior Way by NW Natural Gas / Warrenton Middle School

IAVE, THE UNDERSIGNED APPLICANT(S) OR AUTHORIZED AGENT, AFFIRM BY MY/OUR
SIGNATURE(S) THAT THE INFORMATION CONTINED IN THE FOREGOING APPLICATION AND
ASSOCIATED SUBMISSIONS IS TRUE AND CORRECT.

APPLICANT:

printed Name: Nygaard Land LLC

Signature:^_Date: 2/9/2024~y v^
Address: PO BOX 100 Phone: (503) 861-3305

E-mail Address: iohn(a).orecionlawyerDdx.com

city/State/zip: Warrenton, OR 97146 _ Fax: (503)861-2925

PROPERTY OWNER (if different from Applicant):

Printed Name: N/A

Signature:_Date:
Address: Phone:

E-mail Address:

City/State/Zip:_ Fax:
Industrial site design application

October 2018



1. In detail, please describe your proposal:

New mini-warehouse or similar storage and improving a New Road with

Warrenton-Hammond School District 30 with left-hand turn lane on SE Warrior Way

to improve access for future school expansions. Also completing the existing

sidewalk and landscaping on a portion of SE Warrior Way^

2. Describe what type of business, commodity sold or manufactured, or service being proposed.
Storage Rentals

Current number of employees : 1
Projected number of customers per day LGSS than 30 / day average
Days of operation 7 _ Hours of operation 24 hour Customer access
Number of shipments/deliveries per day N/A _ per week
By what method will these be arriving/sent? _Ml/\

3. Does this property have existing businesses? NO

If yes, please list the business names and their addresses, and note these businesses on your site plan map.

N/A

4. Is there a residence or residences on this property? NO

If yes, please list the number of residences and please show these structures on your site plan map.
'N/A

5. Availability of services: City water YCS, One bathroom , City sewer YGS, One bathroom

6.If you are an existing business, are materials or merchandise currently being stored on site?

N/A

Industrial site design application
October 2018



Where and how do you propose to store materials or merchandise for sale or processing?
N/A or in off fee

7. What percentage of the property is currently landscaped? 0

What percentage of the property do you propose to landscape as part of this project? <^)ver ^0/0 °^slte

8. How do you intend to irrigate the existing and proposed landscaping? Landscape drip lines

9. Signs require the submittal of a separate application, which may be submitted in conjunction with this site plan
application.

10. Please explain how you propose to provide for the drainage of this property, or explain why no additional
consideration is necessary. Vv'll create a stormwater drainage to the west using existing stormwater

easement with NW Natural Gas, and will naturally infiltrate so there Is not a material increase in stormwater flow.

Please see attached preliminary civil plans showing stormwater system. __

11. Please provide the type of development on the neighboring properties.

North: Open space on site, and then stormwater system/open space Warrenton-Hammond School District 30

South: Open space on site
East: New Road expanding with School District with left-hand turn lane on Warrior Way for future schools
West: NW Natural Gas and Oregon State Police already constructed and fenced

12. Provide samples of the building materials for the exterior of the building with detail description of where each
type and color will be used in the construction and finishing of the building. Please see attached narrative.

13. Will all parking for your business be provided on the property? Yes _^ ______ No_ All parking
must be shown on your site plan map. If off-street parking is to be provided on another property, please attach
a copy of the parking easement or agreement from the property owner; or will off-street parking be provided
along the abutting street.

14. How does this request comply with the Warrenton Development Code Chapter 2, Section 2.10 (General
Industrial)? New Mini-warehouse or similar storage use is a conditional use in the 1-1 Zone and complies

with all Warrenton Development Code as noted in the attached narrative.

15 .Orientation of proposed building(s) (see Section 3.04.1 in the Warrenton Development Code)
The public office faces the access on the New Road that will be constructed with Warrenton-Hammond Schools

16. Please address (on separate sheet of paper) all applicable sections of Design Standards (copy attached) out of
the Warrenton Development Code. Please see attached narrative.

<;*>|!!|l!J!!H!*<!#!|:**<!<!*!|;!|i*

Industrial site design application
October 2018



PLEASE UNDERSTAND THAT THIS APPLICATION WILL NOT BE OFFICIALLY ACCEPTED
UNTIL DEPARTMENT STAFF HAS DETERMINED THAT THE APPLICATION IS

COMPLETELY FILLED OUT AND THE SITE PLAN MAP REQUIREMENTS HAVE BEEN
COMPLETED.

Return Application To:

CityofWarrenton Phone: 503-861-0920
Planning and Building Department Fax: 503-861-2351
PO Box 250
225 S. Main Street

Warrenton, Oregon 97146

****!|S*<!!|!!|!****!||*****

MAP INSTRUCTIONS AND CHECKLIST

<!<!i|l<S*!|;**#****!|;

A Site Plan Map, which shows all existing and proposed structures and parking areas, must accompany this
application. The following checklist identifies the specific information which should be included on this map.

x Title the map "Industrial Site Design".

^_The map may be drawn on 8 '/2 x 11 or 8 '/2 x 14 inch white paper.

^Township, Range, Section and Tax Lot number of the subject property(ies) shall be included.

x North arrow, date, and map scale in one inch intervals (1" = 20') shall be noted.

x Shape, dimensions, and square footage of the parcel shall be shown. Draw the property line with a solid black
line and label adjacent street(s), if any.

x Identify existing and proposed easements with a dotted line.

x Identify the location and direction of all water courses and drainage ways, as well as the location of the 100-
year floodplain, if applicable.

^<_Illustrate all existing buildings and their sizes.

x Illustrate all proposed new construction with dashed lines (include dimensions).

x Illustrate parking area with number of spaces and access drive areas. If off-street parking is to be provided,

even in part, on another property, please show its location on your site plan map, and attach a copy of the
parking easement or agreement from the adjoining property owner.

x Illustrate the entrance and exit points to the property, pattern of traffic flow, loading and unloading area,
sidewalks and bike paths.

x Illustrate the existing or proposed location, height, and material of all fences and walls.

x_Illustrate existing or proposed trash and garbage container locations, including type of screening.

Name of the person who prepared the map.

Industrial site design application
October 2018



x Location, type and height of outdoor lighting.

x Location of mailboxes if known.

x Locations, sizes, and types of signs (shall comply with Chapter 3.7 of the Warrenton Development Code).

x Map shall show entire tax lot plus surrounding properties.

x Identification of slopes greater than 10%.

x location, condition and width of all public and private streets, drives, sidewalks, pathways, right-of-ways, and
easements on the site and adjoining the site.

^
Identify designated flood hazard area(s).

x Show wetland and riparian areas, streams and/or wildlife areas.

Any designated historic and cultural resources areas on the site and/or adjacent parcels or lots.

Location, size and type of trees and other vegetation on the property.

Industrial site design application
October 2018



  

Page 1 of 14 

February 9, 2024 
 
City of Warrenton Planner 
PO Box 250 
Warrenton, OR 97146 
 

Re: Warrenton Storage Design Standards Compliance Letter 
 
 
City Staff, 
 
The following documents the compliance with the applicable sections of Design Standards contained in the 
City of Warrenton Development Code. 
 
16.60.030 Conditional Uses.  The following uses and activities and their accessory uses and 
activities may be permitted in the I-1 zone when approved under Chapter 16.220, and subject 
to the provisions in Section 16.60.040, Development Standards:  

. . . 
E.  New mini warehouse or similar storage uses. 

 
Applicant Response:  The project is a new mini-warehouse or similar storage use, which is a 
conditional use in the I-1 Industrial Zone. 

 
16.60.040 Development Standards 
A.  Air Quality. The air quality standards set by the Department of Environmental Quality shall be 
the guiding standards in this zone, except that open burning is prohibited in any case. 
 

Applicant Response:  The project will be within air quality standards set by the Department of 
Environmental Quality. 

 
B.  Noise. As may be permitted under all applicable laws and regulations. 
 

Applicant Response:  The project will be within permitted noise requirements 
 
C.  Storage. All materials, including wastes, shall be stored and maintained in a manner that will 
not attract or aid the propagation of insects or rodents or other animals or birds, or otherwise create 
a health hazard or nuisance. 
 

Applicant Response:  All such materials will be stored indoors or in City of Warrenton approved waste 
disposal containers 

 
D.  Fencing. Will be allowed inside a boundary planting screen and where it is necessary to protect 
property of the use concerned or to protect the public from a dangerous condition. Proposed fence 
locations and design shall be subject to City review. 
 

Applicant Response:  Minimal fencing is used as necessary to protect the property with only 10 feet of 
fencing needed on the north and south corners the furthest away from the public view that connects to 
the existing fencing of NW Natural Gas and OR State Police property, and gates at the front customer 
entrance and fire truck access on the eastern side. 
 



  

Page 2 of 14 

E.  Buffer. Where this zone adjoins another non-industrial zone there shall be a buffer area at least 
10 feet wide to provide a dense evergreen landscape buffer which attains a mature height of eight 
feet, or such other screening measures as may be prescribed by the City in the event differences in 
elevation or other circumstances should defeat the purpose of this requirement. 
 

Applicant Response:  On the east the site adjoins the non-industrial Warrenton-Hammond School 
District 30 across the New Road, and there is more than 10 feet of greenspace and landscaping buffers 
that will attain a mature height of over 8 feet. 

 
F.  Vibration. No vibration other than that caused by highway vehicles, trains and aircraft shall be 
permitted which is discernible without instruments at the property line of the use concerned. 
 

Applicant Response:  No vibration is expected with this site beyond standard highway vehicles. 
 
G.  Airport Interference. No use shall create electrical or lighting interference with the operations 
of the Port of Astoria Airport. 
 

Applicant Response:  Electrical and lighting will not interfere with the operations of the Port of Astoria 
Airport. 

 
H.  Setbacks. The minimum front, side and rear yard setbacks shall be 10 feet. When across a street 
from a non-industrial zone, the setback from the property line shall be 10 feet. When a property 
abuts a non-industrial zone, the setback shall be as follows: 
1.  50 feet for buildings and other structures more than 10 feet in height; 
2.  30 feet for buildings and structures more than six feet high but not more than 10 feet high; and 
3.  10 feet for structures no more than six feet high (except fences no more than six feet high may be 
on the property line). 
 

Applicant Response:  The setbacks are all 10 feet or more and across a street from a non-industrial 
zone which meet these requirements. 

 
I.  All development shall comply with the wetland and riparian area protection standards of 
Chapter 16.156. 
 

Applicant Response:  The development complies with wetland and riparian area protections. 
 
J.  Building Height. The maximum building height shall be 45 feet, except that it may be lower 
under either of the following circumstances: 
1.  Within 100 feet of a non-industrial zone, where the maximum building height shall be the same 
as the maximum building height in that zone. 
2.  Within the Airport Hazard Overlay Zone, where the maximum building height is described by 
the Airport Hazard Overlay Zone. 
 

Applicant Response:  The proposed buildings average 16 feet high, with a maximum height of 24 feet 
on the office building which is all below 45 feet in the industrial zone, and below the 40 foot maximum 
building height of the High Density Residential zone on the Warrenton-Hammond School District 30 
property to the east across the New Road. 

 
K.  All other applicable Code requirements shall be satisfied. 
 

Applicant Response:  All other applicable Code requirements have been satisfied. 



  

Page 3 of 14 

L.  All new sewer and water connections for a proposed development shall comply with all City 
regulations. 
 

Applicant Response:  A single bathroom will connect with City Sewer and Water and will comply with 
City regulations which will be confirmed through the City’s consulting engineer review and approval.  
Please also see attached Impact Statement regarding these connections. 

 
M.  Prior to undertaking disposal, the dredging project proponent shall consult with the Army Corps 
and Oregon DSL to determine if the disposal site contains wetlands that are regulated under permit 
programs administered by those agencies. If the site contains regulated wetlands, the dredging 
project proponent shall either alter the disposal site boundaries to avoid the wetlands and leave an 
acceptable protective buffer, or obtain the necessary Corps and DSL permits to fill the wetlands. 
 

Applicant Response:  N/A, no dredging or disposal of wetlands is involved in this project.  Additionally, 
mapped wetlands on the southern end of this lot will become their own separate legal lot away from 
this project through a partition/lot line adjustment process before construction occurs. 

 
N.  Recreational marijuana production, recreational marijuana processing, and recreational 
marijuana wholesale activities shall be located only east of Highway 101 and at least 1,000 feet from 
any public or private school, church, public park or child care center, and shall operate exclusively 
as a single building occupant or with other licensed medical marijuana dispensaries or recreational 
marijuana retail outlets. (Ord. 1249 § 2, 2022; Ord. 1196-A § 4, 2015) 
 

Applicant Response:  N/A, no marijuana involved in this project. 
 
 
16.116.030 Architectural and Site Design Standards. 
The City’s development design standards are for the commercial district corridors . . . or to new 
mini-storage units regardless of size or façade length. An existing large retail establishment of said 
square footage or length or greater shall comply with these standards if proposed renovations or 
improvements exceed 50 % of the market value. 
 

Applicant Response:  The project is for new mini-storage units, which is subject to 16.116.030(G) 
standards as noted below: 

 
 
16.116.030(G).  Storage Unit Facilities. Where allowed, storage unit facilities shall be subject to the 
following design, siting, and location standards: 
 
1.  Setbacks. New storage unit facilities shall be constructed no closer than 100 feet from the East 
Harbor Drive right-of-way line. This setback area shall be used for landscaping, open space, public 
or private amenities, off-street parking, other businesses allowed in the zone; or a combination 
thereof. 
 

Applicant Response:  N/A, the new storage unit facility is farther than 100 feet from East Harbor Drive. 
 
2.  Design Standards. New storage unit facilities shall be subject to the following design standards: 
 
a.  Building material requirements in Section 16.116.030(C)(3); 

 
Applicant Response:  Responses to Section 16.116.030(C)(3) are included below: 



  

Page 4 of 14 

16.116.030(C)(3). Materials. 
a.  The predominant exterior building materials shall be of high quality materials, 
including, but not limited to, brick, sandstone, wood, native stone and cultured stone as 
accents to distinguish specific architectural features, rusticated metal cladding, 
tinted/textured concrete masonry units and/or glass products. Simulated material may be 
substituted for any of the aforementioned building materials. 
 
Applicant Response: The predominant exterior materials shall be steel, glass, and CMU block. 

 
b. At least three different building materials shall be used for 100% construction of a 
building.  The main entrance does not count towards this standard. 
 
Applicant Response:  There are at least 3 building materials proposed as noted above. 

 
c.  Exterior building materials shall not include smooth-faced concrete block, tilt-up 
concrete panels, EIFS, stucco, or T 1-11. Prefabricated steel panels are excluded unless the 
design and material meets the City’s design standards. 
 
Applicant Response: The building materials do not include any of these. 

 
d. Metal roof may be allowed if compatible with the overall architectural design of the 
building. 
 
Applicant Response:  A metal roof is proposed on the buildings and is compatible with the overall 
architectural design of the building and similar to buildings that have been constructed nearby. 
 

 
b.  Building color standards in Section 16.116.030(C)(5); 

 
Applicant Response:  Responses to Section 16.116.030(C)(5) are included below: 
 
16.116.030(C)(5). Building Colors. Exterior colors shall be of low reflectance, subtle, neutral or 
muted earth tone colors. The use of high intensity colors such as black, neon, metallic or 
fluorescent colors for the facade and/or roof of the building are prohibited except as approved 
for building trim. 

 
Applicant Response:  The proposed colors are neutral/earth tones to fit the surrounding area with 
Forge light stone siding and Janus continental brown doors.  These colors are the same as used 
for the Warrenton-Hammond School District 30’s Middle School and similar to nearby buildings. 

 
 
c.  Mechanical equipment, outdoor storage and service area standards in Section 16.116.030(C)(6); 
 

Applicant Response:  Responses to Section 16.116.030(C)(6) are included below: 
 

16.116.030(C)(6). Mechanical Equipment, Outdoor Storage and Service Areas. The location of 
loading docks, outdoor storage yards and all other service areas shall be located to the sides 
and/or rear of a building, except when a site abuts Highway 101, in which case the said areas shall 
be located to the sides of the building that do not face Highway 101. 
 



  

Page 5 of 14 

Applicant Response: The site does not abut Highway 101, and does not have loading docks.  The 
outdoor storage area is located in the western rear of the site abutting NW Natural Gas and OR 
State Police which is away from public view. 
 
a. All outdoor storage yards, loading docks, service areas and mechanical equipment or 
vents larger than eight inches in diameter shall be concealed by screens at least as high as the 
equipment they hide, of a color and material matching or compatible with the dominant 
colors and materials found on the facades of the principal building. Chain link or cyclone 
fencing (with or without slats) shall not be used to satisfy this requirement. 

 
Applicant Response:  The outdoor storage areas used for boats and trailers are located in the 
western rear of the site along the NW Natural Gas and OR State Police property using their 
previously constructed fence, which is away from public view. 

 
b. Equipment that would remain visible despite the screening, due to differences in 
topography (i.e., a site that is at a lower grade than surrounding roadways) shall be 
completely enclosed except for vents needed for air flow, in which event such vents shall 
occupy no more than 25% of the enclosure façade. 

 
Applicant Response: N/A, equipment will not be visible to the public. 

 
c. The architectural design of the buildings shall incorporate design features which screen, 
contain and conceal all heating, ventilation, air conditioning units, trash enclosures, 
dumpsters, loading docks and service yards. 

 
Applicant Response: Heating/ventilation/air and trash enclosure are screened or contained 
from public view.  

 
 
d.  Building mass requirements in Section 16.116.030(C)(7); 
 

Applicant Response:  Response to Section 16.116.030(C)(7) is included below: 
 

16.116.030(C)(7).  Building Mass. Building mass shall be limited to 150 feet in length. If any 
portion of the building exceeds this length, a recess or variation in height shall be required. 
 

Applicant Response:  Exterior building mass is recessed every 40 feet or less on the north and 
east public facing sides, with a 102 feet length on the southern side that does not face the public.  
There is not a building mass of over 150 feet in length. 

 
 

e.  Outdoor lighting standards in Section 16.131.030(E); and 
 

Applicant Response:  Response to Section 16.116.030(E) is included below: 
 

16.116.030(E).  Outdoor Lighting. The lighting for mixed use, residential, commercial and 
industrial zones shall be shielded and directed down into the site and shall not shine or glare onto 
adjacent property or streets. Light poles, light fixtures and flag poles shall not exceed 25 feet in 
height and shall be pedestrian scaled. Installation cost shall be borne by the developer. Decorative 
exterior lighting is required on the front elevation and at the main entrance. Decorative is defined 
as “gooseneck” or similar design that is pedestrian oriented. 



  

Page 6 of 14 

Applicant Response: The proposed site lighting is on the buildings, downward directed and do 
not exceed 25 feet in height.  See attached sheet for detail of site lighting. 

 
 
f.  Other applicable design requirements of this section. 
 

Applicant Response: All other applicable design requirements have been addressed. 
 
 
3.  Location Requirements. New storage unit facilities may be constructed and operated where 
allowed by the zoning district, but not in the following areas: 
a.  Along the South Main Avenue commercial corridor, 
b.  Along the Pacific Drive commercial corridor. (Ord. 1242 § 2, 2020) 
 

Applicant Response:  This storage unit facility is not along South Main Avenue or the Pacific Drive 
commercial corridors. 

 
 
 
16.120.020 Vehicular Access and Circulation. (Code Text Omitted for length) 
 

Applicant Response:  Please see the two accesses on the eastern side and New Road design with 
Warrenton-Hammond School District 30 that meets all requirements of 16.120.020.  The New Road 
will be improved to be 32’-36’ wide and built to City standards and Uniform Fire Code, including a 
left hand turn lane onto SE Warrior Way; and will be dedicated as a public street and benefit the school 
district in its future expansions. Please see the attached Impact Statement showing average daily trips 
to the site are estimated at 36; which is much less than the 300 average daily trips that usually requires 
a traffic study to consider potential adverse traffic effects. 

 
 
16.124 Landscaping, Street Trees, Fences and Walls 
 
16.124.020 Landscape Conservation. 
Prevents the indiscriminate removal of significant trees and other vegetation, including vegetation 
associated with streams, wetlands and other protected natural resource areas. 
 

Applicant Response: N/A there are not significant trees or vegetation on site. 
 
16.124.050 Fences and Walls. 
Sets standards for new fences and walls, including maximum allowable height and materials, to 
promote security, personal safety, privacy, and aesthetics. The following standards shall apply to all 
fences and walls: 
 
A.  General Requirements. All fences and walls shall comply with the standards of this section. The 
City may require installation of walls and/or fences as a condition of development approval, in 
accordance with Chapter 16.220, Conditional Use Permits, or Chapter 16.212, Development Review 
and Site Design Review. Walls built for required landscape buffers shall comply with Section 
16.124.030. 
 
B.  Dimensions. 

. . . 



  

Page 7 of 14 

2.  Fences in the General Industrial (I-1) Zone may exceed six feet if necessary to protect the 
welfare of the general public (i.e., airport runway safety, military, coast guard, or homeland 
security defense facilities, etc.) but not for protection of private property (i.e., auto repair lots, 
equipment yards, woodworking shops, etc.). Barbed and razor wire fencing is prohibited in all 
zones except as necessary to enclose livestock or to protect the welfare of the general public (not 
private property). 

 
Applicant Response:  This site is in the General Industrial Zone, that will use the existing fence on the 
western side of the property that has already been constructed by NW Natural Gas and OR State Police. 
The north and south of the property will only have a 10 foot length of fence that will be less than 6 feet 
tall and connect to the existing fences built by NW Natural Gas and OR State Police the furthest from 
public view. The main entrance and fire access entrance on the eastern side will each have 8 foot 
entrance gates, not a fence.  No barbed or razor wire fencing will be used. 

 
16.124.060 Landscape Conservation.  (Code omitted for length) 
 

Applicant Response:  N/A this site does not have significant trees or vegetation  
 

 
16.124.070 New Landscaping. (Code omitted for length) 
 

Applicant Response:  Please see attached landscape species list and site plan showing landscaping that 
meets all of the above requirements of 42,567SF of landscaping over a 212,770SF site , which is over 
the 20% landscaping requirement. 

 
 
16.124.080 Street Trees. (Code omitted for length) 
 

Applicant Response:  Please see attached landscape plan and site plan that meets all of the 
requirements for Street Trees. 

 
 
16.128.030 Vehicle Parking Standards. (Code omitted for length). 
 
Industrial Uses Parking Spaces Required 
Warehousing, including mini-storage warehouses 1 space per 1,000 sq. ft. of gross floor area or for 

each 2 employees, whichever is greater, plus 1 
space per company vehicle 

 
 

Applicant Response:  Please see the attached site design that meets the above requirements for vehicle 
parking.  The gross floor area of the office available to the public is 1324SF which requires 2 parking 
spaces; so the 4 parking spaces and 1 oversize ADA parking space that is provided meets this 
requirement.   
 
 

16.128.040 Bicycle Parking Requirements. (Code omitted for length) 
 

Applicant Response:  A bicycle rack and pathway to the New Road and SE Warrior Way is provided in 
front of the customer main entrance that meets all of the bicycle parking requirements. 
 



  

Page 8 of 14 

16.136.010 Street Design Standards (Code omitted for length) 
 

Applicant Response:  Access is proposed with a New Road in agreement with the Warrenton-Hammond 
School District 30 that will be platted as an 80’ right of way that is 32’-36’ in width, and improves this 
existing street with sidewalks and landscaping on both sides to City of Warrenton and Uniform Fire 
Code standards.  Additionally, this project will construct a left-hand turn lane onto SE Warrior Way 
and this New Road will be dedicated as a public street to the City, and will benefit future school 
expansions and sports fields by providing the school district with this improved access. 

 
 
16.140 Stormwater and Surface Water Management (Code omitted for length) 
 

Applicant Response:  Please see attached preliminary civil plans that show stormwater drainage goes 
to catch basins to a stormwater easement that maintains natural drainage, drains properly, does not 
materially burden upstream or downstream properties with surface water, applicant will also obtain a 
1200(c) erosion control permit for construction, and meet all other requirements of this section. 

 
 
16.144 Signs (Code omitted for length) 
 

Applicant Response:  Please see the attached site plans showing an on-site sign above the office that is 
below the required size and does not extend onto any public street or right of way and meets all other 
City of Warrenton sign standards otherwise.  Applicant will also apply for a sign permit as required by 
the City of Warrenton. 
 

 
16.192. Large-Scale Developments (Code omitted for length) 
 

Applicant Response:  Please see the attached site plans and preliminary civil plans that show 
stormwater management plan that meets 16.140 of the Code.  The soil survey of the adjacent NW 
Natural Gas and Warrenton Middle School developed in the past few years determined these soils as 
suitable, which is identical to this site, and incorporated herein by reference.  Please see the attached 
Impact Statement showing the utility impact is also minimal, with a single bathroom and sink for City 
water and sewer, and this project improves the transportation access with the New Road and turn lane 
onto SE Warrior Way for future Warrenton Schools.  There are no additional school children as part 
of this development, and has a landscape plan that meets 16.124 of the Code.  Utilities and road will 
meet City standards and will be reviewed by the City’s consulting engineer. 

 
 
16.204 Administration of Land Use and Development Permits 
 
16.208.050 Type III Procedure (Quasi-Judicial)  

A. Pre-application Conference. A pre-application conference is required for all Type III 
applications. The requirements and procedures for a pre-application conference are described in 
Section 16.208.070. 

Applicant Response: A pre-application conference was held May 17, 2023, with city staff.  

B. Application Requirements. 

1. Application Forms. Type III applications shall be made on forms provided by the City of 
Warrenton. 



  

Page 9 of 14 

Applicant Response: The official City of Warrenton Industrial Site Design Application and Conditional 
Use Application was filled out and submitted along with this narrative. 

2. Content. Type III applications shall: 

a. Include the information requested on the application form. 

Applicant Response: The information requested on the application form has been filled in. 

b. Be filed with three copies of a narrative statement that explains how the application satisfies 
each and all of the relevant criteria and standards in sufficient detail for review and action. 

Applicant Response: Three copies of this narrative statement have been submitted. 

c. Be accompanied by the required fee. 

Applicant Response: The applicant submitted the required Type III Planning Commission application 
fee for a development over 30,000SF of $2,500 and Conditional Use application fee of $1,000. 

d. Include one set of pre-stamped and pre-addressed envelopes for all property owners of record as 
specified in subsection C of this section.  The records of the Clatsop County Department of 
Assessment and Taxation are the official records for determining ownership. The applicant shall 
demonstrate that the most current assessment records have been used to produce the notice list. 
Alternatively, the applicant may pay a fee for the City to prepare the public notice mailing. 

Applicant Response: The Applicant submitted pre-addressed stamped envelopes with the address of 
the owners within the notification area of 200 feet of the site using the on line Clatsop County GIS 
ownership records. 

e.     Include an impact study for all Type III applications. The impact study shall quantify/assess the 
effect of the development on public facilities and services. The study shall address, at a minimum, the 
transportation system, including pedestrian ways and bikeways, the drainage system, the parks 
system, the water system, the sewer system, and the noise impacts of the development. For each public 
facility system and type of impact, the study shall propose improvements necessary to meet City 
standards and to minimize the impact of the development on the public at large, public facilities 
systems, and affected private property users. In situations where this Code requires the dedication 
of real property to the City, the applicant shall either specifically agree to the dedication requirement, 
or provide evidence that shows that the real property dedication requirement is not roughly 
proportional to the projected impacts of the development. 

Applicant Response: Please see the attached Impact Statement.  Public facilities and utilities 
infrastructure in this area have already been installed to the property for the Warrenton-Hammond 
School District 30 Middle School, and as part of this project the New Road will have an additional 
sidewalk connection on the project side that will be built to City of Warrenton standards and dedicated 
as a public street.  The impacts to water and sewer systems are minimal with only a single bathroom 
and sink. 

 
16.212.040 Site Design Review.  

A. Application Review Procedure. 

1. Site Design Review—Determination of Type II and Type III Applications. Applications for site 
design review shall be subject to Type II or Type III review, based on the following criteria: 



  

Page 10 of 14 

. . . 

b. Commercial, industrial, public/semi-public, and institutional buildings (including building 
additions) with: 

i. Up to 10,000 square feet of gross floor area and developing less than two acres of land 
shall be reviewed as a Type II application. 

ii. More than 10,000 square feet of gross floor area or developing two or more acres of land 
shall be reviewed as a Type III application. 

c. Developments involving the clearing and/or grading of two acres or more shall be reviewed 
as Type III applications. 

Applicant Response:  The proposal is for industrial buildings that are more than 10,000 square feet of 
gross floor area and over a site that is more than two acres, so this is a Type III application. 

B. Application Submission Requirements. All of the following information (subsections (B)(1) 
through (7) of this section) is required for site design review application submittal: 

1. Proposed Site Plan. The site plan shall contain the following information: 

a. The proposed development site, including boundaries, dimensions, and gross area. 

Applicant Response: The proposed development site includes property boundaries, dimensions, 
and gross areas. 

b. Natural land features identified which are proposed to be removed or modified by the 
development, including modifications to existing drainage patterns. 

Applicant Response: There are no unique natural land features. The site is vacant land that is 
relatively flat, which is industrial zoned.  Stormwater drainage goes to catch basins to a stormwater 
easement that maintains natural drainage, drains properly, does not materially burden upstream 
or downstream properties with surface water, applicant will also obtain a 1200(c) erosion control 
permit for construction, and meet all other requirements of this section. 

c. The location and dimensions of all proposed public and private streets, drives, rights-of-
way, and easements. 

Applicant Response: Proposed private drive aisles and easements are shown along with adjacent 
existing streets, drives, roads, and easements. 

d. The location and dimensions of all existing and proposed structures, utilities, pavement 
and other improvements on the site. Setback dimensions for all existing and proposed 
buildings shall be provided on the site plan. 

Applicant Response: The location and dimensions of all existing and proposed structures, utilities, 
pavement and other improvements on the site have been shown on the plan.  

e. The location and dimensions of entrances and exits to the site for vehicular, pedestrian, 
and bicycle access. 

Applicant Response: The entrances and exits to the site for vehicular, pedestrian, and bicycle 
access are shown on the plan. 



  

Page 11 of 14 

f. The location and dimensions of all parking and vehicle circulation areas (show striping 
for parking stalls and wheel stops, as applicable), and proposed paving materials. 

Applicant Response: The location and dimensions of all parking and vehicle circulation areas 
(including striping for parking stalls and wheel stops), and proposed paving materials are shown 
on the plan. 

g. Pedestrian and bicycle circulation areas, including sidewalks, internal pathways, 
pathway connections to adjacent properties, and any bicycle lanes or trails. 

Applicant Response: Pedestrian and bicycle circulation areas, including sidewalks, internal 
pathways, pathway connections to adjacent properties, and any bicycle lanes or trails are shown 
on the site plan. 

h. Loading and service areas for waste disposal, loading and delivery. 

Applicant Response: Waste disposal for the office will use a standard garbage can that will be 
taken out to the street for collection and there are no loading and delivery areas otherwise. 

i. Outdoor recreation spaces, common areas, plazas, outdoor seating, street furniture, and 
similar improvements. 

Applicant Response: The common areas and outdoor improvements are shown on the site and 
landscape plans. 

j. Location, type, and height of outdoor lighting. 

Applicant Response: Outdoor lighting will be attached to the building and are shown on the plan.  

k. Location of mail boxes, if known. 

Applicant Response: The mail box will be at the office at the main entrance shown on the site plan. 

l. Locations, sizes, and types of signs (shall comply with Chapter 16.144). 

Applicant Response: The sign is shown on the office building on the site plan and complies with 
Chapter 16.144.  Applicant will apply for a sign permit as required by the City of Warrenton. 

m. The Community Development Director may require studies or exhibits prepared by 
qualified professionals to address specific site features (e.g., traffic, noise, environmental 
features, site drainage, natural hazards, etc.). 

Applicant Response: Please see attached Impact Statement, and all requested studies are included. 

n. The applicant’s entire tax lot and the surrounding property to a distance sufficient to 
determine the location of the development in the City, and the relationship between the 
proposed development site and adjacent property and development. The property 
boundaries, dimensions and gross area shall be identified. 

Applicant Response: The site plan shows the surrounding immediately adjacent properties. 

o. Identification of slopes greater than 10%. 

Applicant Response: There are no slopes greater than 10% for this development. 

p. The location, condition (paved, gravel unimproved, etc.) and width of all public and 
private streets, drives, sidewalks, pathways, rights-of-way, and easements on the site and 
adjoining the site. 

Applicant Response: All existing roads and access easements are shown and will be paved. 

q. Any areas identified as located in a designated floodplain and/or floodway. 



  

Page 12 of 14 

Applicant Response: The subject property is not in any designated floodplain or floodway. 

r. Depict any wetland and riparian areas, streams and/or wildlife habitat areas. 

Applicant Response: A delineation and wetland removal fill permit was previously issued adjacent 
to the site as part of the Warrenton Hammond School District 30 construction of its Middle School, 
and these areas were filled, so there are no wetlands or riparian areas, streams, or wildlife habitat 
on this project site.  Additionally, mapped wetlands on the southern end of this lot will be on their 
own separate legal lot away from this project through a partition/lot line adjustment process before 
construction occurs.  Completing this partition/lot line adjustment should be a condition of 
approval. 

s. Site features such as pavement, areas having unique views, and drainage ways, canals and 
ditches. 

Applicant Response: Site features are shown on the site plan, and there are no areas having unique 
views, and drainage ways, or canals. 

t. Any designated historic and cultural resources areas on the site and/or adjacent parcels 
or lots. 

Applicant Response: There are no designated historic and cultural resource areas on the site or 
adjacent thereto. 

u. The location, size and type of trees and other vegetation on the property. 

Applicant Response: There are no existing trees or vegetation on the site as it is vacant land with 
grass, please see the attached site plan and landscape plan for trees and landscaping location. 

v. North arrow, scale, names and addresses of all property owners. 

Applicant Response: There is a North arrow, scale, names and addresses of all property owners. 

w. Name and address of applicant, project designer, engineer, architect, surveyor, and/or 
planner, if applicable. 

Applicant Response: The name and address of the applicant, project designer, Civil Engineer, 
Surveyor and Planner are shown on the site plan. 

2. Architectural Drawings. Architectural drawings shall be submitted showing the following 
information from subparagraphs a through c of this paragraph 2, and shall comply with Division 
3: 

a. Building elevations with building height and width dimensions. 

Applicant Response: The building elevations show the height and width dimensions. 

b. Building materials, color and type. 

Applicant Response: Samples of the building materials, colors and types have been submitted 
separately from the application along with colored elevations. 

c. The name of the architect or designer. 

Applicant Response: The name of the Architect is Greg Moore of Moore Design Associates and is 
shown on the site plan. 

3. Preliminary Grading Plan. A preliminary grading plan prepared by a registered engineer 
shall be required for developments which would result in the grading (cut or fill) of 1,000 cubic 
yards or greater. The preliminary grading plan shall show the location and extent to which 



  

Page 13 of 14 

grading will take place, indicating general changes to contour lines, slope ratios, slope 
stabilization proposals, and location and height of retaining walls, if proposed. Surface water 
detention and treatment plans may also be required, in accordance with Chapter 16.140. 

Applicant Response: A grading permit will be applied for during construction, and the site is level and 
flat otherwise. The finish grades will not materially change and will not exceed approximately 2%. 

4. Landscape Plan. A landscape plan is required and shall comply with Chapter 16.124. 

Applicant Response: Please see attached site plan and landscape plan that shows over 20% Landscape 
coverage that complies with 16.124. 

5. Proposed sign(s) shall be required in conformance with the City’s Sign Code (Chapter 
16.144). 

Applicant Response: The proposed signage will conform to 16.14. 

6. Copies of all existing and proposed restrictions or covenants. 

Applicant Response: No restrictions or covenants are existing or proposed. 

C. Review Criteria. The Community Development Director shall make written findings with respect 
to all of the following criteria when approving, approving with conditions, or denying an application: 

1. The application is complete, as determined in accordance with Chapter 16.208 and subsection 
B of this section. 

2. The application complies with all of the applicable provisions of the underlying land use 
district (Division 2), including building and yard setbacks, lot area and dimensions, density and 
floor area, lot coverage, building height, building orientation, architecture, and other special 
standards as may be required for certain land uses. 

3. The applicant shall be required to upgrade any existing development that does not comply 
with the applicable land use district standards, in conformance with Chapter 16.276, 
Nonconforming Uses and Development. 

4. The application complies with the applicable design standards contained in Division 3. (Ord. 
1175-A § 21, 2013) 

Applicant Response:  The requested documents for this application have all been submitted. 

 

16.220 Conditional Use Permits 
 
16.220.030 Review Criteria 
A.  Before a conditional use is approved findings will be made that the use will comply with the 
following standards: 
1.  The proposed use is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

Applicant Response:  The proposed use of mini-storage in the I-1 zone is in conformance with the 
Comprehensive Plan since it is an expressly allowed conditional use for this zone. 
 

2.  The location, size, design and operating characteristics of the proposed use are such that the 
development will be compatible with, and have a minimal impact on, surrounding properties. 

Applicant Response:  The adjacent properties to the west are already developed with NW Natural Gas 
and Oregon State Police, and to the east across the New Road the Warrenton-Hammond School District 
30 has constructed its Middle School, so this project is compatible with these existing buildings and 



  

Page 14 of 14 

uses, and will have minimal impact on these surrounding properties.  This project will also directly 
benefit the school district’s access on the New Road for its future expansions and new schools. 

 
3.  The use will not generate excessive traffic, when compared to traffic generated by uses permitted 
outright, and adjacent streets have the capacity to accommodate the traffic generated. 
 

Applicant Response:  Please see attached Impact Statement There are an estimated 50 daily trips with 
this project or less, which is minimal traffic, and this project improves the New Road with a left-hand 
turn lane onto Warrior Way that benefits the Warrenton-Hammond School District 30 with improved 
access for its future school expansions. 

 
4.  Public facilities and services are adequate to accommodate the proposed use. 
 

Applicant Response:  Please see attached Impact Statement.  Public facilities and services that will be 
connected to already exist or are being improved by this project.  A single bathroom and sink in the 
office area will add minimal impact to City water and sewer services. 

 
5.  The site’s physical characteristics, in terms of topography, soils and other pertinent 
considerations, are appropriate for the use. 
 

Applicant Response:  The site is essentially flat, and this use will not materially change the site’s 
physical characteristics and is appropriate for this use. 

 
6.  The site has an adequate area to accommodate the proposed use. The site layout has been 
designed to provide for appropriate access points, on-site drives, public areas, loading areas, storage 
facilities, setbacks and buffers, utilities or other facilities which are required by City ordinances or 
desired by the applicant. 
 

Applicant Response:  The site plan shows and meets all of these requirements. 
 
7.  The use is appropriate at the proposed location. Several factors which should be considered in 
determining whether or not the use is appropriate include: accessibility for users (such as customers 
and employees); availability of similar existing uses; availability of other appropriately zoned sites; 
and the desirability of other suitably zoned sites for the intended use. 
 

Applicant Response: The use is appropriate at this proposed location.  Adjacent industrial land has 
already been developed and built by NW Natural Gas and Oregon State Police.  The site is accessible 
for users and will improve access to this area with a New Road that benefits the Warrenton-Hammond 
School District 30 with improved access for its future school expansions. 

 

Additional concerns raised during the pre-application meeting have been addressed as follows: 

Applicant Response: A stormwater management plan will be reviewed by the City’s consulting 
engineer.  The New Road with Warrenton-Hammond School District 30 will be platted and dedicated 
to the City after review by the City’s consulting engineer.  The site will be partitioned/lot line adjusted 
and away from the mapped wetlands to the south of the lot prior to construction.  A sign permit will be 
applied for as required by the City.  All other comments from the pre-application meeting have been 
addressed. 



   

Warrenton Storage Impact Statement 
February 9, 2024 

 
 
The intent of this report is to analyze the impact on public facilities related to the proposed 
Warrenton Storage facility in Warrenton, Oregon. The proposed facility consists of an Office 
and 450 storage units in buildings used for storage of personal property and vehicles.  The proposed 
development is a low impact use on this industrially zoned property. General impact factors 
related to the Warrenton Storage development are: 

 
Number of staff:   1 - 6-day work week average  

Public Visitors:   Industry average is 30 client visits per day after startup.   

# of Large Trucks: 1 standard trashcan pickup once a week 
 
Below are the key public facilities and services as outlined in the Warrenton development code:  

Transportation System 

Vehicle Road System – SE Warrior Avenue is a local road per the Warrenton TSP and was 
designed to handle industrial vehicles. The planned roadway will be 32- 36’ wide upon full 
improvement. SE Warrior Avenue ties into SE Warrior Way.  SE Warrior Way ties into 
SE Dolphin Avenue that then ties into Highway 101 to the North and Perkins Lane to the South. 
Perkins Lane also connects to Highway 101 which provides two points of access to the property 
from Highway 101, the primary route in the area.  The project will take access off of SE Warrior 
Avenue (or approved name).  Warrenton Storage will improve the west half of SE Warrior Ave 
along the frontage of their property and add a left-hand turn lane onto SE Warrior Way that 
also benefit Warrenton-Hammond School District future expansions.  Additionally, the project 
will be removing the existing driveway along SE Warrior Way.     

 
With only 1 staff generating a total of 2 trips per day and minimum customer traffic, the daily 
trip rate is estimated to be less than 36 trips per day. According to several national surveys 
conducted, a self-storage facility on average generates less than seven car trips per day per 100 
units. (https://www.selfstorage.org/Blog/ArticleID/320/Help-the-SSA-to-Help-You-with-its-
New-Traffic-Study).  Our plan is designed for 480 units. Based on the seven trips per day 
average for 100 units, we would expect 34 trips per day if we were 100% full. Typically, storage 
facilities in the area are 93% to 95% occupied. Since the average daily trips generated from the 
Warrenton Storage operations will be far lower than most industrial facilities, there is no adverse 
effect on the public street system. In addition, there is only one large truck that picks up trash at 
the site every week. This will also have no adverse impact on the public road system. 

 
Bicycle System - There are currently no bike lanes on SE Warrior Avenue, which is classified 
as a local road on the TSP. However, the width of the street ranges from 32’-36’ wide, which 
provides room outside the normal travel path for bikes to safely ride. Since this is a storage 
development there will be little to no bicycle riders associated with this project.  Therefore, there 
will be no adverse effect on the public bicycle system. 



   

Pedestrian System — Currently there is not a consistent public sidewalk or path along the entire 
length of SE Warrior Avenue. Warrenton Storage will be improving the west side of the public 
roadway adjacent to the property, which includes the construction of a 5-foot wide public 
sidewalk.  Therefore, this development will improve the public pedestrian system. 

 
 
Storm Drainage System 

 
The historic drainage pattern for the property involves sheet flow run-off from the undeveloped 
property and routing to west of SE Dolphin Avenue in existing open drainage ways.  
 
The site plan has been designed to include stormwater collection via an underground pipe 
network that discharges to the existing drainage easement that is near the middle of the west 
property line that drains to SE Dolphin Avenue.  A stormwater report will be prepared with 
detailed calculations showing how this facility has been designed in accordance with ODOT 
hydraulics manual and the City of Warrenton Design guide for submission with permit 
construction drawings.  Therefore, this proposed development will have no additional impact 
on the storm drainage system nor cause any safety issues to the general public. 

 
 
Parks System 

 
This development is industrial and will employ local residents. Therefore, there is no impact 
on the existing and/or planned park system in the City of Warrenton. 

 
 

Water System 
 
There is an existing 12” water line adjacent to the property within the SE Warrior Avenue right 
of way. This existing public water line was sized to service a typical user located in the 
industrial zoning on the property. Typical water forecasting for industrial zoning is: 

 # of persons =   5-15 per acre      Most likely planned for a minimum 40 employees  

 Avg Use = 26 gal/person day      Most likely designed for approximately 1,040  

 gal/day Total weekly use would be approximately 7,280 gallons 

The water uses related to the proposed development would be for restroom fixtures to serve the 
one staff member and occasional customers.  Estimated water use related to the development is: 

 
Staff use: (1 employees + 3 clients) * (26 gal/person day) = 104 gal/day = 728 gal/week 

Total actual weekly use is estimated to be = 728 gallons 
 
Therefore, the actual water demand for the Warrenton Storage Facility is far less than would 
normally occur on this parcel. The proposed development will not have an adverse impact on the 
public water system. 



   

Wastewater System 
 

The Warrenton School District constructed a pressure main system in SE Warrior Way. The 
project will install a new grinder pump to tie into the existing pressure main. The pump station 
was designed to service this site as an industrial development. The Warrenton Storage facility has 
a very low discharge to the wastewater system as follows: 

 
The wastewater fixtures for the project will be a restroom. This will have very low flow entering 
the public system. 

 
Given the above narrative, the site will have less flow entering the public wastewater system 
than a normal industrial development would have. Therefore, there will be no overall adverse 
effect on the public wastewater system related to this development. 

 
 
Noise Impact From Development 
 
The proposed new Storage Facility will produce limited noise. Approximately 30 customers 
will visit daily once units are at capacity. 1 staff member will arrive daily and leave nightly. 
Noise will be limited to vehicles driving onsite and leaving as well as opening exterior units or 
moving stored vehicles. No heavy machinery or manufacturing of any kind will be present.  









3D Landscaping Inc. 

Storage Project Landscape Plan  

Species List 

 

Shrubs: 
Point Reyes Ceanothus  
Kelsey Dogwood  
Salal  
Pacific Wax Myrtle  
Evergreen Huckleberry  
 
 
Trees: 
Vine Maple  
Serviceberry  
Sunset Maple 
White Bark Birch  
 
 
Ground cover: 
Kinnikinnick  
Cotoneaster 



SE
 W

AR
RI

OR
 A

VE

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS
CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

F.
R.

R.

F.R.R.

W
ed

en
 E

n
g

in
ee

r
in

g
, l

lc
Ci

vi
l E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
  P

la
nn

in
g 

  P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

26
36

 N
ub

ga
ar

d 
Rd

, F
er

nd
al

e,
 W

A 
 9

82
48

(3
60

) 3
80

-1
36

3 
  (

36
0)

 3
84

-3
61

5 
Fx

em
ai

l: 
in

fo
@

w
ed

en
en

gi
ne

er
in

g.
co

m

W
A

R
R

E
N

T
O

N
 S

T
O

R
A

G
E

C0.0

C
O

V
E

R
 S

H
E

E
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GF

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
PCAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
PCAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
RODNEY ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL SHEET SIZE: 24" X 36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE :

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED :

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS/ SUBMISSIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN :

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO. :

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CNH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2309-01

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/5/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
58412PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES: 6/30/2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
OREGON

AutoCAD SHX Text
WARRENTON STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE WARRIOR WAY WARRENTON, OREGON 97146

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGAL DESCRIPTION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX LOT 810340002301810340002301

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATED IN S 1/2, TRACT 23 AND 24, RODNEY ACRES NW 1/4, S34, T8N, R10W, W.M. CLATSOP COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIG SAFELY

AutoCAD SHX Text
503-226-4211

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMERGENCY TELEPHONE NUMBERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTICE TO EXCAVATORS: ATTENTION:  ATTENTION: OREGON LAW REQUIRES YOU TO FOLLOW RULES ADOPTED BY THE OREGON UTILITY NOTIFICATION CENTER.  THOSE RULES ARE SET FORTH IN OAR 952-001-0010 THROUGH OAR 952-001-0090.  YOU MAY OBTAIN COPIES OF THE RULES BY CALLING THE CENTER.  (NOTE: THE TELEPHONE NUMBER FOR THE OREGON UTILITY NOTIFICATION CENTER IS (503)-232-1987).

AutoCAD SHX Text
POTENTIAL UNDERGROUND FACILITY OWNERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL THE OREGON ONE-CALL CENTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-800-332-2344

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-F 7am-5pm  503-226-4211 EXT.4313

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW NATURAL GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AFTER HOURS  

AutoCAD SHX Text
PGE QWEST VERIZON

AutoCAD SHX Text
503-464-7777 1-800-573-1311 1-800-483-1000

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTACT:CRAIG HARRIS, PE 2636 NUBGAARD RD FERNDALE, WA 98248 PH: 503.348.5064  EMAIL: CRAIG@WEDENENGINEERING.COM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTACT: TROY O'BRYAN 2626 NW THREE SISTERS DRIVE BEND, OREGON 97703 PHONE: 503.860.5354 EMAIL: TROYOBRYAN@GMAIL.COM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR ESTATES, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEDEN ENGINEERING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOORE DESIGN ASSOCIATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S&F LAND SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTACT: GREG MOORE 15504 SE 18TH STREET BELLEVUE, WA 98007 PHONE: 425.941.1040 EMAIL: GMOOREDESIGN@COMCAST.NET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTACT: JACK WHITE 4858 SW SCHOLLS FERRY RD. STE A, PORTLAND, OR 97225 PHONE: 503.345.0328 EMAIL: INFO@SFLANDS.COM

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UATTENTION EXCAVATORS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OREGON LAW REQUIRES YOU TO FOLLOW RULES ADOPTED BY THE OREGON UTILITY NOTIFICATION CENTER. THOSE RULES ARE SET FORTH IN OAR 952-001-0010 THROUGH OAR 952-001-0090. YOU MAY OBTAIN COPIES OF THESE RULES FROM THE CENTER BY CALLING 503-232-1987. IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS ABOUT THE RULES, YOU MAY CONTACT THE CENTER. YOU MUST NOTIFY THE CENTER AT LEAST TWO BUSINESS DAYS, BEFORE COMMENCING AN EXCAVATION. CALL 503-246-6699.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
Know what's

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
below.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Call

AutoCAD SHX Text
before you dig.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet List Table

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C0.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
Cover Sheet

AutoCAD SHX Text
C0.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
General Notes

AutoCAD SHX Text
C0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Conditions

AutoCAD SHX Text
C0.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
Demo Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
Hardscape Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY PLAN



W
ed

en
 E

n
g

in
ee

r
in

g
, l

lc
Ci

vi
l E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
  P

la
nn

in
g 

  P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

26
36

 N
ub

ga
ar

d 
Rd

, F
er

nd
al

e,
 W

A 
 9

82
48

(3
60

) 3
80

-1
36

3 
  (

36
0)

 3
84

-3
61

5 
Fx

em
ai

l: 
in

fo
@

w
ed

en
en

gi
ne

er
in

g.
co

m

W
A

R
R

E
N

T
O

N
 S

T
O

R
A

G
E

C0.1

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 N

O
T

E
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL SHEET SIZE: 24" X 36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE :

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED :

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS/ SUBMISSIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN :

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO. :

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CNH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2309-01

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/5/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
58412PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES: 6/30/2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
OREGON

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT (ALL ACTUAL LINES AND GRADES) CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT (ALL ACTUAL LINES AND GRADES) SHALL BE STAKED BY A PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR, REGISTERED IN THE STATE OF OREGON, BASED ON COORDINATES, DIMENSIONS, BEARINGS, AND ELEVATIONS, AS SHOWN, ON THE PLANS. 2. PROJECT CONTROL SHALL BE FIELD VERIFIED AND CHECKED PROJECT CONTROL SHALL BE FIELD VERIFIED AND CHECKED FOR RELATIVE HORIZONTAL POSITION PRIOR TO BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT. 3. PROJECT CONTROL SHALL BE FIELD VERIFIED AND CHECKED PROJECT CONTROL SHALL BE FIELD VERIFIED AND CHECKED FOR RELATIVE VERTICAL POSITION BASED ON THE BENCHMARK STATED HEREON, PRIOR TO BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT. 4. WHEN DIMENSIONS AND COORDINATE LOCATIONS ARE WHEN DIMENSIONS AND COORDINATE LOCATIONS ARE REPRESENTED - DIMENSIONS SHALL HOLD OVER COORDINATE LOCATION. NOTIFY THE CIVIL ENGINEER OF RECORD IMMEDIATELY UPON DISCOVERY. 5. BUILDING SETBACK DIMENSIONS FROM PROPERTY LINES BUILDING SETBACK DIMENSIONS FROM PROPERTY LINES SHALL HOLD OVER ALL OTHER CALLOUTS. PROPERTY LINES AND ASSOCIATED BUILDING SETBACKS SHALL BE VERIFIED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT. 6. CONTRACTOR SHALL PRESERVE AND PROTECT FROM CONTRACTOR SHALL PRESERVE AND PROTECT FROM DAMAGE ALL EXISTING MONUMENTATION DURING CONSTRUCTION. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR COORDINATING AND PAYING FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF ANY MONUMENTS DAMAGED OR REMOVED DURING CONSTRUCTION. NEW MONUMENTS SHALL BE REESTABLISHED BY A LICENSED SURVEYOR. 7. ALL CONSTRUCTION AND MATERIALS SHALL CONFORM TO ALL CONSTRUCTION AND MATERIALS SHALL CONFORM TO THESE PLANS, THE PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS AND THE APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS OF THE 2018 OREGON STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION, THE 2017 OREGON PLUMBING SPECIALTY CODE AND LOCAL JURISDICTION REQUIREMENTS. 8. THE COMPLETED INSTALLATION SHALL CONFORM TO ALL THE COMPLETED INSTALLATION SHALL CONFORM TO ALL APPLICABLE FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL CODES, ORDINANCES AND REGULATIONS.  ALL PERMITS, LICENSES AND INSPECTIONS REQUIRED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITIES FOR THE EXECUTION AND COMPLETION OF WORK SHALL BE SECURED BY THE CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO COMMENCING CONSTRUCTION. 9. ATTENTION: OREGON LAW REQUIRES YOU TO FOLLOW RULES ATTENTION: OREGON LAW REQUIRES YOU TO FOLLOW RULES ADOPTED BY THE OREGON UTILITY NOTIFICATION CENTER. THOSE RULES ARE SET FORTH IN OAR 952-001-0010 THROUGH OAR 952-001-0090. YOU MAY OBTAIN COPIES OF THE RULES BY CALLING THE CENTER. (NOTE: THE TELEPHONE NUMBER FOR THE OREGON UTILITY NOTIFICATION CENTER IS (503) 232-1987). EXCAVATORS MUST NOTIFY ALL PERTINENT COMPANIES OR AGENCIES WITH UNDERGROUND UTILITIES IN THE PROJECT AREA AT LEAST 48 BUSINESS-DAY HOURS, BUT NOT MORE THAN 10 BUSINESS DAYS PRIOR TO COMMENCING AN EXCAVATION, SO UTILITIES MAY BE ACCURATELY LOCATED. 10. THE LOCATION OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN THE LOCATION OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN ON THE PLANS ARE FOR INFORMATION ONLY AND ARE NOT GUARANTEED TO BE COMPLETE OR ACCURATE. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ELEVATIONS, PIPE SIZE, AND MATERIAL TYPES OF ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES PRIOR TO COMMENCING WITH CONSTRUCTION AND SHALL BRING ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE ATTENTION OF WEDEN ENGINEERING, 72 HOURS PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION TO PREVENT GRADE AND ALIGNMENT CONFLICTS. 11. THE ENGINEER OR OWNER IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR THE THE ENGINEER OR OWNER IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR THE SAFETY OF THE CONTRACTOR OR HIS CREW. ALL O.S.H.A. REGULATIONS SHALL BE STRICTLY ADHERED TO IN THE PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK. 12. TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT EROSION CONTROL MEASURES TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE IMPLEMENTED. THE ESC FACILITIES SHOWN IN THESE PLANS ARE THE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS FOR ANTICIPATED SITE CONDITIONS. DURING THE CONSTRUCTION PERIOD, ESC FACILITIES SHALL BE UPGRADED AS NEEDED FOR UNEXPECTED STORM EVENTS AND TO ENSURE THAT SEDIMENT AND SEDIMENT LADEN WATER DO NOT LEAVE THE SITE. 13. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTAINING ALL THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTAINING ALL ROADWAYS, KEEPING THEM CLEAN AND FREE OF CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS AND DEBRIS, AND PROVIDING DUST CONTROL AS REQUIRED. 14. TRAFFIC CONTROL SHALL BE PROVIDED BY THE TRAFFIC CONTROL SHALL BE PROVIDED BY THE CONTRACTOR THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN TO LOCAL JURISDICTION FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL PRIOR TO COMMENCING CONSTRUCTION. 15. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR COORDINATING AND SCHEDULING ALL WORK WITH THE OWNER. 16. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE A FULL SET OF THE THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE A FULL SET OF THE CURRENT APPROVED CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS INCLUDING ADDENDA ON THE PROJECT SITE AT ALL TIMES. 17. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL KEEP THE ENGINEER AND THE CONTRACTOR SHALL KEEP THE ENGINEER AND JURISDICTION INFORMED OF CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS TO FACILITATE SITE OBSERVATIONS AT  REQUIRED INTERVALS.  24-HOUR NOTICE IS REQUIRED.  18. EXISTING SURVEY MONUMENTS ARE TO BE PROTECTED EXISTING SURVEY MONUMENTS ARE TO BE PROTECTED DURING CONSTRUCTION OR REPLACED IN ACCORDANCE WITH OREGON REVISED STATUTES 209.140 - 209.155.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMOLITION 1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR DEMOLITION THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR DEMOLITION AND DISPOSAL OF EXISTING AC, CURBS, SIDEWALKS AND OTHER SITE ELEMENTS WITHIN THE SITE AREA IDENTIFIED IN THE PLANS. 2. EXCEPT FOR MATERIALS INDICATED TO BE STOCKPILED OR EXCEPT FOR MATERIALS INDICATED TO BE STOCKPILED OR TO REMAIN ON OWNER'S PROPERTY, CLEARED MATERIALS SHALL BECOME CONTRACTOR'S PROPERTY, REMOVED FROM THE SITE, AND DISPOSED OF PROPERLY. 3. ITEMS INDICATED TO BE SALVAGED SHALL BE CAREFULLY ITEMS INDICATED TO BE SALVAGED SHALL BE CAREFULLY REMOVED AND DELIVERED STORED AT THE PROJECT SITE AS DIRECTED BY THE OWNER. 4. ALL LANDSCAPING, PAVEMENT, CURBS AND SIDEWALKS, ALL LANDSCAPING, PAVEMENT, CURBS AND SIDEWALKS, BEYOND THE IDENTIFIED SITE AREA, DAMAGED DURING THE CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE REPLACED TO THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITION OR BETTER. 5. CONCRETE SIDEWALKS SHOWN FOR DEMOLITION SHALL BE CONCRETE SIDEWALKS SHOWN FOR DEMOLITION SHALL BE REMOVED TO THE NEAREST EXISTING CONSTRUCTION JOINT. 6. SAWCUT STRAIGHT MATCHLINES TO CREATE A BUTT JOINT SAWCUT STRAIGHT MATCHLINES TO CREATE A BUTT JOINT BETWEEN THE EXISTING AND NEW PAVEMENT. UTILITIES 1. ADJUST ALL INCIDENTAL STRUCTURES, MANHOLES, VALVE ADJUST ALL INCIDENTAL STRUCTURES, MANHOLES, VALVE BOXES, CATCH BASINS, FRAMES AND COVERS, ETC. TO FINISHED GRADE. 2. CONTRACTOR SHALL ADJUST ALL EXISTING AND/OR NEW CONTRACTOR SHALL ADJUST ALL EXISTING AND/OR NEW FLEXIBLE UTILITIES (WATER, TV, TELEPHONE, ELEC., ETC.) TO CLEAR ANY EXISTING OR NEW GRAVITY DRAIN UTILITIES (STORM DRAIN, SANITARY SEWER, ETC.) IF CONFLICT OCCURS. 3. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH PRIVATE UTILITY CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH PRIVATE UTILITY COMPANIES FOR THE INSTALLATION OF OR ADJUSTMENT TO GAS, ELECTRICAL, POWER AND TELEPHONE SERVICE. 4. BEFORE BACKFILLING ANY SUBGRADE UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS BEFORE BACKFILLING ANY SUBGRADE UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS CONTRACTOR SHALL SURVEY AND RECORD MEASUREMENTS OF EXACT LOCATION AND DEPTH AND SUBMIT TO ENGINEER AND OWNER. STORM AND SANITARY 1. CONNECTIONS TO EXISTING STORM AND SANITARY SEWERS CONNECTIONS TO EXISTING STORM AND SANITARY SEWERS SHALL CONFORM TO THE 2021 OREGON STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION, SECTION 00490, "WORK ON EXISTING SEWERS AND STRUCTURES".  2. BEGIN LAYING STORM DRAIN AND SANITARY SEWER PIPE AT BEGIN LAYING STORM DRAIN AND SANITARY SEWER PIPE AT THE LOW POINT OF THE SYSTEM, TRUE TO GRADE AND ALIGNMENT INDICATED WITH UNBROKEN CONTINUITY OF INVERT. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ESTABLISH LINE AND GRADE FOR THE STORM AND SANITARY SEWER PIPE USING A LASER. 3. ALL ROOF DRAIN AND CATCH BASIN LEADERS SHALL HAVE ALL ROOF DRAIN AND CATCH BASIN LEADERS SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM SLOPE OF 1 PERCENT UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE IN THE PLANS. 4. ALL STORM AND SANITARY FITTINGS TO BE ECCENTRIC ALL STORM AND SANITARY FITTINGS TO BE ECCENTRIC FITTINGS UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.  WATER 1. ALL WATER AND FIRE PROTECTION PIPE SHALL HAVE A ALL WATER AND FIRE PROTECTION PIPE SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM 36-INCH COVER TO THE FINISH GRADE. 2. ALL WATER AND FIRE PRESSURE FITTINGS SHALL BE ALL WATER AND FIRE PRESSURE FITTINGS SHALL BE PROPERLY RESTRAINED WITH THRUST BLOCKS PER DETAIL. 3. ALL WATER MAIN / SANITARY SEWER CROSSINGS SHALL ALL WATER MAIN / SANITARY SEWER CROSSINGS SHALL CONFORM TO THE OREGON STATE HEALTH DEPARTMENT REGULATIONS, CHAPTER 333. EARTHWORKS 1. CONTRACTOR SHALL PREVENT SEDIMENTS AND SEDIMENT CONTRACTOR SHALL PREVENT SEDIMENTS AND SEDIMENT LADEN WATER FROM ENTERING THE STORM DRAINAGE SYSTEM. 2. TRENCH BEDDING AND BACKFILL SHALL BE AS SHOWN ON TRENCH BEDDING AND BACKFILL SHALL BE AS SHOWN ON THE PIPE BEDDING AND BACKFILL DETAIL, THE PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS AND AS REQUIRED IN THE SOILS REPORT. FLOODING OR JETTING THE BACKFILLED TRENCHES WITH WATER WILL NOT BE PERMITTED. 3. SUBGRADE AND TRENCH BACKFILL SHALL BE COMPACTED SUBGRADE AND TRENCH BACKFILL SHALL BE COMPACTED TO AT LEAST  95% OF THE MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY AS DETERMINED BY ASTM D-698. FLOODING OR JETTING THE BACKFILLED TRENCHES WITH WATER IS NOT PERMITTED.  PAVING 1. SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR SIDEWALK FINISHING AND SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR SIDEWALK FINISHING AND SCORING PATTERNS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. GENERAL: MATERIALS SHALL BE NEW. THE USE OF GENERAL: MATERIALS SHALL BE NEW. THE USE OF MANUFACTURER'S NAMES, MODELS, AND NUMBERS IS INTENDED TO ESTABLISH STYLE, QUALITY, APPEARANCE, AND USEFULNESS.  PROPOSED SUBSTITUTIONS WILL REQUIRE WRITTEN APPROVAL FROM ENGINEER PRIOR TO INSTALLATION. 2. STORM AND SANITARY SEWER PIPING SHALL BE PVC PIPE STORM AND SANITARY SEWER PIPING SHALL BE PVC PIPE AS INDICATED IN THE PLANS. PIPES WITH LESS THAN 2' OF PIPES WITH LESS THAN 2' OF COVER SHALL BE C900/C905 PVC, HDPE OR DUCTILE IRON PIPE. 3. PRIVATE WATER MAINS 4-INCH DIAMETER AND LARGER PRIVATE WATER MAINS 4-INCH DIAMETER AND LARGER SHALL BE DUCTILE IRON PIPE SCH 52 OR C900; AS INDICATED IN THE PLANS. 4. PRIVATE WATER LINES 3-INCH DIAMETER AND SMALLER PRIVATE WATER LINES 3-INCH DIAMETER AND SMALLER SHALL BE TYPE K COPPER OR PVC; AS INDICATED IN THE PLANS. 5. CONCRETE FOR CURBS, SIDEWALK AND DRIVEWAYS SHALL CONCRETE FOR CURBS, SIDEWALK AND DRIVEWAYS SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF 3,500 PSI AT 28 DAYS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIAL NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPARATION STATEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL WATER MAIN CROSSINGS SHALL CONFORM TO THE OREGON STATE HEALTH DEPARTMENT, CHAPTER 333. WATER MAINS SHALL CROSS OVER SANITARY SEWERS WITH A 18" MINIMUM CLEARANCE BETWEEN OUTSIDE DIAMETERS OF PIPE WITH ALL PIPE JOINTS EQUIDISTANT FROM CROSSING. HORIZONTAL SEPARATION BETWEEN WATER MAINS AND SANITARY SEWERS IN PARALLEL INSTALLATIONS SHALL BE 10'. MAINTAIN 12" MINIMUM VERTICAL DISTANCE FOR ALL OTHER UTILITY CROSSINGS AND 12" HORIZONTAL PARALLEL DISTANCE. IN CASES WHERE IT IS NOT POSSIBLE TO MAINTAIN THE MINIMUM 10' HORIZONTAL SEPARATION, THE WATER MAIN SHALL BE LAID ON A SEPARATE SHELF IN THE TRENCH 18" INCHES ABOVE THE SEWER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIG SAFELY

AutoCAD SHX Text
503-226-4211

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMERGENCY TELEPHONE NUMBERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Know what's

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
below.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Call

AutoCAD SHX Text
before you dig.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTICE TO EXCAVATORS: ATTENTION:  ATTENTION: OREGON LAW REQUIRES YOU TO FOLLOW RULES ADOPTED BY THE OREGON UTILITY NOTIFICATION CENTER.  THOSE RULES ARE SET FORTH IN OAR 952-001-0010 THROUGH OAR 952-001-0090.  YOU MAY OBTAIN COPIES OF THE RULES BY CALLING THE CENTER.  (NOTE: THE TELEPHONE NUMBER FOR THE OREGON UTILITY NOTIFICATION CENTER IS (503)-232-1987).

AutoCAD SHX Text
POTENTIAL UNDERGROUND FACILITY OWNERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL THE OREGON ONE-CALL CENTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-800-332-2344

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-F 7am-5pm  503-226-4211 EXT.4313

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW NATURAL GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AFTER HOURS  

AutoCAD SHX Text
PGE QWEST VERIZON

AutoCAD SHX Text
503-464-7777 1-800-573-1311 1-800-483-1000

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE CONCRETE SIDEWALK SURFACING ASPHALT SURFACING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADING LABEL LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONTOUR MINOR EXISTING CONTOUR MAJOR PROPOSED CONTOUR MINOR PROPOSED CONTOUR MAJOR GRADE BREAK SANITARY SEWER LINE WATER LINE FIRE LINE FDC LINE STORM LINE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPOT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION LISTED BELOW.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BS BOTTOM OF STAIRS BOTTOM OF STAIRS BW FINISHED GRADE AT BOTTOM OF WALL FINISHED GRADE AT BOTTOM OF WALL DS DOOR SILL DOOR SILL EX EXISTING GRADE EXISTING GRADE FF FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION FG FINISH GRADE FINISH GRADE G GROUND GROUND SW SIDEWALK SIDEWALK TC TOP OF CURB TOP OF CURB TP TOP OF PAVEMENT TOP OF PAVEMENT TS TOP OF STAIRS TOP OF STAIRS TW FINISHED GRADE AT TOP OF WALLFINISHED GRADE AT TOP OF WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX.XX  XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
LABEL LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRUCTURE TYPES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE DESCRIPTION      DESCRIPTION      CB CATCH BASIN CATCH BASIN WM WATER METER WATER METER BF BACK FLOW PREVENTORBACK FLOW PREVENTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRUCTURE INFO (WHERE APPLICABLE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXLF - XX" XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S=X.XX%

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE (WHERE APPLICABLE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE LABELS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRUCTURE LABELS

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX XX-XX RIM=XX.XX IE IN=XX.X IE OUT=XX.X

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRUCTURE TYPE (SEE BELOW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY TYPE (FP=FIRE PROTECTION, S=SANITARY, SD=STORM DRAINAGE, W=WATER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ID NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE)



W
ed

en
 E

n
g

in
ee

r
in

g
, l

lc
Ci

vi
l E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
  P

la
nn

in
g 

  P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

26
36

 N
ub

ga
ar

d 
Rd

, F
er

nd
al

e,
 W

A 
 9

82
48

(3
60

) 3
80

-1
36

3 
  (

36
0)

 3
84

-3
61

5 
Fx

em
ai

l: 
in

fo
@

w
ed

en
en

gi
ne

er
in

g.
co

m

W
A

R
R

E
N

T
O

N
 S

T
O

R
A

G
E

TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY
S 1/2 TRACT 22, ALL OF TRACTS 23 AND 24,

RODNEY ACRES
NW 1/4, S34, T8N, R10W, W.M.

CLATSOP COUNTY

LEGEND:

VERTICAL DATUM:

UTILITY NOTE:

STORM STRUCTURE TABLE

C0.2

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N87°43'40"W 60.00')1 N87°43'40"W 60.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S87°43'40"E)1 N87°43'40"W 426.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87°42'56"W 450.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87°42'56"W 450.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87°43'40"W 450.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N2°34'18"E  404.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N02°49'41"E 31.69'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S02°34'21"W 403.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S87°44'44"E 450.00')2 (S87°42'56"E)1 S87°42'56"E 450.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S02°50'47"W  756.39'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87°30'01"W 449.75'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S02°38'07"W 114.84'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S02°27'22"W 52.54'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S02°50'47"W 31.69'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N02°50'47"E 51.69'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87°43'40"W 80.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N02°27'26"E 750.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N02°27'26"E 750.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S02°50'47"W 51.69'

AutoCAD SHX Text
35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
INST#201902111 WARRENTON HAMMOND SCHOOL DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S87°42'28"E)2 (S87°42'56"E)1 S87°42'56"E  485.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
239.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(160.04')2 160.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
160.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S02°34'21"W 256.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N02°49'41"E 754.45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S87°30'02"E  909.46' (S87°30'01"E 909.48')1

AutoCAD SHX Text
346.39'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N02°34'18"E 256.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
321.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
207.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N02°27'26"E 500.18' (N00°02'30"W 500') (N02°27'26"E)1 (N02°27'26"E 500.23')3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S02°50'47"W 788.12' (S00°02'30"E 784.46') (N02°50'47"E 788.21')1 (N02°50'47"E 788.21')3

AutoCAD SHX Text
425.02' (425.02)1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N02°27'26"E 250.04' (N02°25'08"E 250.00')2 (N02°27'26"E 250.00')3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S87°42'56"E  475.02'  (S87°42'56"E)1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 23

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 1/2 TRACT 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 205' TRACT 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 1/2 TRACT 13

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 440.00' TRACT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 346.14' TRACT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GF

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
PCAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
PCAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV

AutoCAD SHX Text
45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
RODNEY ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PARCEL 3 ±7.80 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PARCEL 2 ±4.50 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "H"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOREST RIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 2 PP#2019-007

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACATED ROAD PER INST#20118583

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 295' TRACT 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
109

AutoCAD SHX Text
112

AutoCAD SHX Text
111

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
INST#201808896 NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
INST#201701033 LULU LLC/ KNOLL LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
INST#200105137 BLUE BELL ENTERPRISES LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
INST#200007279 INST#202206016 INST#200105137 KDA INC

AutoCAD SHX Text
(50') (50.00)1 (50.00)3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PARCEL 1 ±2.65 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOLPHIN ROAD (RODNEY ACRES ROAD) (60' ROW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S87°22'41"E 632.57')2 (S87°22'39"E 632.57')1 S87°22'39"E 632.57'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S02°42'10"W 59.92')2 (S02°37'11"W 59.92')1 S02°37'11"W 59.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S87°23'30"E 367.81)2 (S87°22'49"E 367.79)1 S87°22'49"E 367.69'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S87°43'40"E)1 N87°43'40"W 450.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
425.02' (425.02')1 (425.02')2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N87°22'49"W 528.90')1 S87°22'52"E 528.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S02°24'38"E 90.00')2 (S02°27'22"W 90.00')1 S02°27'22"W 90.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N02°27'26"E 90.00')1 N02°27'26"E 90.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S87°30'01"E 60.00')1 S87°30'01"E 60.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(424.74')1 S87°30'01"E 423.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' ROW (MAP OF RODNEY ACRES ADD AND VICINITY, AUGUST 1955,  C-6570)

AutoCAD SHX Text
INITIAL POINT COMMON SECTION CORNER 34.15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER EASTMENT RECORDING INSTRUMENT #201808451

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL SHEET SIZE: 24" X 36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE :

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED :

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS/ SUBMISSIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN :

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO. :

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CNH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2309-01

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/5/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPORTLAND, VANCOUVER, BEND, SEASIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1725 N ROOSEVELT DR,  STE B, SEASIDE, OR 97138 (503) 738-3425

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMAIL: INFO@SFLANDS.COM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WWW.SFLANDS.COM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW LINE CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMUNICATIONS - CABLE TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER POLE W/ LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM AREA DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE - CHAINLINK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRRIGATION CONTROL VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMUNICATION MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL ALUM CAP/BRASS CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE GATE POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND MONUMENT - 1/2" IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM CULVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND MONUMENT NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL-TOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL-TOE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER-PRESSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBER OPTIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT/PARCEL LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMUNICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1199

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM OF 1988 (NAVD88) SITE BENCHMARK IS MAGNAIL WITH ALUMINUM WASHER STAMPED "S&F LANDS CONTROL" WITH AN ELEVATION OF 36.43' NAVD88

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE LOCATION OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITY FACILITIES SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON LOCATE MARKS REQUESTED FOR THIS SURVEY PER ONE CALL PUBLIC LOCATE TICKET 23152550. THE SURVEYOR ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DELINEATION OF SUCH UNDERGROUND UTILITIES BY THE RESPECTIVE UTILITY OWNERS, NOR FOR THE EXISTENCE OF BURIED OBJECTS WHICH ARE NOT SHOWN ON THE PLAN. ALL UTILITY LOCATIONS SHOULD BE FIELD VERIFIED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM MH RIM:   46.75' 46.75' IE 18" PVC (S):  42.05' 42.05' IE 18" PVC (W):  41.85' 41.85' STM MH RIM:   46.51' 46.51' IE 12" PVC (E):  42.31' 42.31' IE 18" PVC (N):  42.01' 42.01' STM MH RIM:   41.00' 41.00' IE 12" PVC (E):  37.15' 37.15' STM MH RIM:   38.33' 38.33' IE 18" PVC (E):  25.68' 25.68' IE 18" PVC (W):  25.43' 25.43' STM MH RIM:   36.05' 36.05' IE 18" PVC (E):  24.70' 24.70' IE 12" PVC (S):  25.35' 25.35' IE 18" PVC (W):     24.75' 24.75' STM MH RIM:   33.61' 33.61' IE 18" PVC (E):  23.41' 23.41' IE 12" PVC (S):  23.91' 23.91' IE 36" CONC (W):  10.90' 10.90' STM CURB INLET RIM: 33.75' 33.75' IE 12" PVC (E):     30.80' 30.80' STM MH RIM:   33.93' 33.93' IE 12" PVC (E):     26.98' 26.98' STM MH RIM:   38.35' 38.35' IE 18" PVC (S):  31.90' 31.90' IE 12" PVC (N):  32.00' 32.00' IE 18" PVC (E):  31.45' 31.45' IE 18" PVC (W):     31.40' 31.40' STM MH RIM:   32.99' 32.99' IE 6" PVC (E):      26.29'      26.29' 26.29' IE 12" PVC (S):     25.99'     25.99' STM 6" INLET IE:  29.46' 29.46' STM 12" INLET IE:  31.44' 31.44' STM 18" INLET IE:  30.33' 30.33' STM CB RIM:   36.22' 36.22' UNABLE TO OPEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
N



W
ed

en
 E

n
g

in
ee

r
in

g
, l

lc
Ci

vi
l E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
  P

la
nn

in
g 

  P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

26
36

 N
ub

ga
ar

d 
Rd

, F
er

nd
al

e,
 W

A 
 9

82
48

(3
60

) 3
80

-1
36

3 
  (

36
0)

 3
84

-3
61

5 
Fx

em
ai

l: 
in

fo
@

w
ed

en
en

gi
ne

er
in

g.
co

m

W
A

R
R

E
N

T
O

N
 S

T
O

R
A

G
E

C0.3

D
E

M
O

 P
L

A
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GF

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
PCAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
PCAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
RODNEY ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOLPHIN ROAD (RODNEY ACRES ROAD) (60' ROW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' ROW (MAP OF RODNEY ACRES ADD AND VICINITY, AUGUST 1955,  C-6570)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER EASTMENT RECORDING INSTRUMENT #201808451

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL SHEET SIZE: 24" X 36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE :

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED :

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS/ SUBMISSIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN :

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO. :

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CNH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2309-01

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/5/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
58412PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES: 6/30/2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
OREGON

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. SEE SHEET C0.1 FOR GENERAL SHEET NOTES. SEE SHEET C0.1 FOR GENERAL SHEET NOTES. 2. CONTRACTOR MAY STAGE WITHIN LIMITS OF DEMOLITION. CONTRACTOR MAY STAGE WITHIN LIMITS OF DEMOLITION. 3. REMOVE ALL SITE COMPONENTS AND RECYCLE REMOVE ALL SITE COMPONENTS AND RECYCLE COMPONENTS AS REQUIRED IN THE SPECIFICATIONS.  4. ALL TRADE LICENSES AND PERMITS NECESSARY FOR THE ALL TRADE LICENSES AND PERMITS NECESSARY FOR THE PROCUREMENT AND COMPLETION OF THE WORK SHALL BE SECURED BY THE CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO COMMENCING DEMOLITION.  5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PRESERVE AND PROTECT FROM THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PRESERVE AND PROTECT FROM DAMAGE ALL EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY SURVEY MONUMENTATION DURING DEMOLITION. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR COORDINATING AND PAYING FOR THE REPLACEMENT BY A LICENSED SURVEYOR OF ANY DAMAGED OR REMOVED MONUMENTS. 6. PROTECT ALL ITEMS ON ADJACENT PROPERTIES AND IN PROTECT ALL ITEMS ON ADJACENT PROPERTIES AND IN THE RIGHT OF WAY INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO SIGNAL EQUIPMENT, PARKING METERS, SIDEWALKS, STREET TREES, STREET LIGHTS, CURBS, PAVEMENT AND SIGNS. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR RESTORING ANY DAMAGED ITEMS TO ORIGINAL CONDITION. 7. PROTECT STRUCTURES, UTILITIES, SIDEWALKS, AND OTHER PROTECT STRUCTURES, UTILITIES, SIDEWALKS, AND OTHER FACILITIES IMMEDIATELY ADJACENT TO EXCAVATIONS FROM DAMAGES CAUSED BY SETTLEMENT, LATERAL MOVEMENT, UNDERMINING, WASHOUT AND OTHER HAZARDS. 8. SAWCUT STRAIGHT LINES IN SIDEWALK, AS NECESSARY.  SAWCUT STRAIGHT LINES IN SIDEWALK, AS NECESSARY.  9. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO CONTROL DUST AND CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO CONTROL DUST AND MUD DURING THE DEMOLITION PERIOD, AND DURING TRANSPORTATION OF DEMOLITION DEBRIS. ALL STREET SURFACES OUTSIDE THE CONSTRUCTION ZONE MUST BE KEPT CLEAN. 10. PROTECT ALL EXISTING UTILITY STRUCTURES AND PROTECT ALL EXISTING UTILITY STRUCTURES AND UNDERGROUND MAINS TO REMAIN. 11. PROTECT ALL EXISTING VEGETATION TO REMAIN.PROTECT ALL EXISTING VEGETATION TO REMAIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROTECTION NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMOLITION NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1	PROTECT CURB AND ADA RAMPPROTECT CURB AND ADA RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 DEMO CURB DEMO CURB 2 DEMO ADA RAMP DEMO ADA RAMP 3 DEMO ASPHALT EDGE DEMO ASPHALT EDGE 4 DEMO STORMWATER PLANTER DEMO STORMWATER PLANTER 5 GRIND ASPHALT EDGE FOR WIDENING GRIND ASPHALT EDGE FOR WIDENING 6 INSTALL CURB ALING EDGE OF ASPHALT INSTALL CURB ALING EDGE OF ASPHALT 7 LOT LINE TO BE REDONELOT LINE TO BE REDONE



SE
 W

AR
RI

OR
 A

VE

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS
CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

F.
R.

R.

F.R.R.

W
ed

en
 E

n
g

in
ee

r
in

g
, l

lc
Ci

vi
l E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
  P

la
nn

in
g 

  P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

26
36

 N
ub

ga
ar

d 
Rd

, F
er

nd
al

e,
 W

A 
 9

82
48

(3
60

) 3
80

-1
36

3 
  (

36
0)

 3
84

-3
61

5 
Fx

em
ai

l: 
in

fo
@

w
ed

en
en

gi
ne

er
in

g.
co

m

W
A

R
R

E
N

T
O

N
 S

T
O

R
A

G
E

C1.0

H
A

R
D

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GF

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
PCAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
PCAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
RODNEY ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER EASTMENT RECORDING INSTRUMENT #201808451

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL SHEET SIZE: 24" X 36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE :

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED :

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS/ SUBMISSIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN :

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO. :

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CNH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2309-01

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/5/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
58412PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES: 6/30/2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
OREGON

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. SEE SHEET C0.1 FOR GENERAL SHEET NOTES. SEE SHEET C0.1 FOR GENERAL SHEET NOTES. 2. SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR ADDITIONAL SITE SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR ADDITIONAL SITE INFORMATION. 3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE A FULL SET OF THE THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE A FULL SET OF THE CURRENT APPROVED CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS INCLUDING ADDENDA ON THE PROJECT SITE AT ALL TIMES. 4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL KEEP THE ENGINEER AND THE CONTRACTOR SHALL KEEP THE ENGINEER AND JURISDICTION INFORMED OF CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS TO FACILITATE SITE OBSERVATIONS AT  REQUIRED INTERVALS.  24-HOUR NOTICE IS REQUIRED. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE CENTERLINE CONCRETE SURFACING ASPHALT SURFACING LANDSCAPE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 INSTALL ADA PARKING INSTALL ADA PARKING 2 INSTALL ADA RAMP INSTALL ADA RAMP 3 INSTALL AC INSTALL AC 4 INSTALL CURB INSTALL CURB 5 INSTALL PARKING STRIPE INSTALL PARKING STRIPE 6 PUBLIC CURB PUBLIC CURB 7 PUBLIC SIDEWALK PUBLIC SIDEWALK 8 INSTALL SIDEWALK INSTALL SIDEWALK 9 INSTALL WHEEL STOP INSTALL WHEEL STOP 10 PUBLIC ADA RAMP PUBLIC ADA RAMP 11 PUBLIC PLANTER STRIP PUBLIC PLANTER STRIP 12 EMERGENCY FIRE ACCESSEMERGENCY FIRE ACCESS



SE
 W

AR
RI

OR
 A

VE

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS
CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

CARTS

F.
R.

R.

F.R.R.

W
ed

en
 E

n
g

in
ee

r
in

g
, l

lc
Ci

vi
l E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
  P

la
nn

in
g 

  P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

26
36

 N
ub

ga
ar

d 
Rd

, F
er

nd
al

e,
 W

A 
 9

82
48

(3
60

) 3
80

-1
36

3 
  (

36
0)

 3
84

-3
61

5 
Fx

em
ai

l: 
in

fo
@

w
ed

en
en

gi
ne

er
in

g.
co

m

W
A

R
R

E
N

T
O

N
 S

T
O

R
A

G
E

C2.0

U
T

IL
IT

Y
 P

L
A

N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GF

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
PCAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
PCAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
RODNEY ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER EASTMENT RECORDING INSTRUMENT #201808451

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRINDER PUMP TO BE INSTALLED IN MANHOLE. FINAL TIE IN TO BE DETERMINED LATER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WATER MAIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM DISCHARGE TO TRAVEL TO DISCHARGE POINT VIA STORMWATER EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL SHEET SIZE: 24" X 36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE :

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED :

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS/ SUBMISSIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN :

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO. :

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CNH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2309-01

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/5/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
58412PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES: 6/30/2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
OREGON

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASINS TO BE CONNECTED AND CONVEYED WEST TOWARDS DOLPHIN WAY VIA STORMWATER EASEMENT #201808451 BETWEEN OWNER AND NW NATURAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. ALL SANITARY PIPING SHALL BE PVC 3034 OR APPROVED ALL SANITARY PIPING SHALL BE PVC 3034 OR APPROVED EQUAL UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. 2. THIS PLAN IS GENERALLY DIAGRAMMATIC.  IT DOES NOT THIS PLAN IS GENERALLY DIAGRAMMATIC.  IT DOES NOT SHOW EVERY JOINT, BEND,  FITTING, OR ACCESSORY REQUIRED FOR CONSTRUCTION.  3. CLEAN OUTS SHALL BE INSTALLED IN CONFORMANCE WITH CLEAN OUTS SHALL BE INSTALLED IN CONFORMANCE WITH UPC CHAPTER SEVEN, SECTION 707 AND SECTION 719.  THIS PLAN MAY NOT SHOW ALL REQUIRED CLEAN OUTS.  4. DOMESTIC WATER AND FIRE LINES AND ACCESSORIES DOMESTIC WATER AND FIRE LINES AND ACCESSORIES BETWEEN THE WATER METER AND THE BUILDING SHALL BE INSTALLED BY A LICENSED PLUMBER EMPLOYED BY A LICENSED PLUMBING CONTRACTOR.  5. UTILITIES WITHIN FIVE FEET OF A BUILDING SHALL BE UTILITIES WITHIN FIVE FEET OF A BUILDING SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED OF MATERIALS APPROVED FOR INTERIOR USE AS DESCRIBED IN THE CURRENT EDITION OF THE UPC.  6. INLETS AND OUTLETS TO ON-SITE MANHOLES SHALL HAVE INLETS AND OUTLETS TO ON-SITE MANHOLES SHALL HAVE FLEXIBLE CONNECTION NO CLOSER THAN 12" AND NO FARTHER THAN 36" FROM THE MANHOLE.  7. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY SANITARY AND WATER SIZING CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY SANITARY AND WATER SIZING AND INVERTS WITH APPROVED PLUMBING PLANS PRIOR TO ORDERING MATERIALS OR BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION OF SAID UTILITIES. 8. ALL STORM AND SANITARY FITTINGS TO BE ECCENTRIC ALL STORM AND SANITARY FITTINGS TO BE ECCENTRIC FITTINGS UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXLF - XX" XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S=X.XX%

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE (WHERE APPLICABLE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX XX-XX RIM=XX.XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRUCTURE TYPE (SEE BELOW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY TYPE (FP=FIRE PROTECTION, S=SANITARY, SD=STORM DRAINAGE, W=WATER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ID NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LABEL LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE LABELS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRUCTURE LABELS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRUCTURE TYPES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE DESCRIPTION      DESCRIPTION      CB CATCH BASIN CATCH BASIN WM WATER METER WATER METER BF BACK FLOW PREVENTORBACK FLOW PREVENTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRUCTURE INFO (WHERE APPLICABLE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER LINE WATER LINE FIRE LINE FDC LINE STORM LINE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY NOTES

















































































City of Warrenton 
Planning Department 
225 S Main Avenue     P.O. Box 250     Warrenton. OR 97146 
Phone: 503.861.0920 Fax: 503.861.2351  

STAFF REPORT 
TO: The Warrenton Planning Commission 
FROM: Matthew Ellis, AICP, Planning Director 
DATE:  May 9, 2024 
SUBJ:  Conditional Use Permit CUP-24-3 

BACKGROUND 

Mary J. Valitski has applied for a conditional use permit to establish a vacation rental 
use at 976 Fourth Avenue in Hammond which is zoned C-MU Commercial Mixed Use. 
The subject property is developed as the middle of a group of three townhomes and is 
identified as Tax Lot 81005CD03506. 

PUBLIC PROCESS, PROCEDURES & PUBLIC NOTICE 

The application was submitted on February 27 and was deemed complete on February 
27, 2024. We sent notice of the public hearing to adjacent property owners on April 19 
and published notice in The Astorian on April 30, 2024. 

CODE PROVISIONS, APPLICANT RESPONSES, AND FINDINGS 

Applicable Warrenton Municipal Code (WMC) chapters for this application include: 

16.44.030 Commercial Mixed Use District Conditional Uses 
16.208.050 Type III Procedure (Quasi-Judicial) 
16.220 Conditional Use Permits 

Chapter 16.44 Commercial Mixed Use (C-MU) District 
16.44.030 Conditional Uses 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: None provided. 
STAFF FINDING: This criterion is met. The proposed use would be allowed if CUP-24-3 
is approved. 

Chapter 16.208 Administration of Land Use and Development Permits 
16.208.050 Type III Procedure (Quasi-Judicial) 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: None provided. 

5.B



Conditional Use Permit CUP-24-3 
Staff Report Page: 2 
 
STAFF FINDING: The applicant did not hold a pre-application conference, which is 
required for all Type III applications, but staff do not feel a pre-application conference 
would have changed the application substantially. All other criteria of the section have 
been met. 

Chapter 16.220 Conditional Use Permits 
16.220.030 Review Criteria 

A. Responses below: 
1. Yes, the zoning is CMU, which does allow for the use of a short-term 

rental with conditional use. There are several approved mixed uses near 
my home i.e.: restaurants/bar, marina, trailer park, short term RV park, 
multi-family and single family. 

2. The home is a large 4-bedroom townhome, and this use will conform with 
bylaws, no adjustments are needed to the existing building. Being a multi-
family home there should be little impact to adjacent units, and 
surrounding properties. It is mostly surrounded by a marina, greenspace 
and overflow parking for the marina. 

3. Yes, our unit has 4 parking spaces. We will limit the number of vehicles to 
help reduce excessive traffic flow and parking. Since the rental is mostly 
summer seasonal it will have more vacant time as compared to regular 
use by homeowner occupied units and businesses. There is also 
additional on-street parking on Fourth Avenue for guests. 

4. Yes, with 4 bathrooms, 4 bedrooms, and all the amenities of a fully 
furnished home this short-term rental will be very accommodating. 
Garbage, recycling and groundskeeping are all provided. Property 
management will monitor each stay providing a clean and safe 
environment for our guests. They will also be on call 24-7 to address any 
issues. 

5. Yes, there will be no need to change anything related to the building’s 
characteristics. This site is relatively level, and all sidewalks, patios and 
decks conform to code. Plenty of seating and tables will be provided on 
the decks to accommodate our guests. No structures will be built. 

6. Yes, the site layout design of building, parking, landscape, access, 
setbacks and buffers plus utilities are all in accordance with city 
ordinances. This is newly built property and there will be no need to adjust 
or change anything to accommodate for proposed use. 

7. Yes, a short-term rental would be an appropriate use of this location. We 
expect more units in the complex to also be short term rental. The plan 
allowed for ample parking for residents and guests. Frontage road also 
allows for deliveries and additional parking as needed. The neighborhood 
has many varied approved uses as expected for CMU properties. 

STAFF FINDING: The criteria in this section are met. 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATION 

The applicant has demonstrated that the proposed vacation rental satisfies the 



Conditional Use Permit CUP-24-3 
Staff Report Page: 3 
 
conditional use permit criteria to be in the C-MU Commercial Mixed Use zoning district. 
Accordingly, staff recommends approval of the request with the following conditions: 

1. Submit a complete Short Term Rental (Homestay Lodging) application within 180 
days of the approval of CUP-24-3. 

2. The structure shall comply with all applicable provisions of Chapter 8.24 
Homestay Lodging Standards while being used as a vacation rental. 

3. All tenants shall be advised by the property owner(s) that the Warrenton Police 
Department will strictly enforce violations of city code, disturbances, or disorderly 
conduct and owners will be notified of all issues. 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION 

“Based on the findings and conclusions of the May 9, 2024, staff report, I move to 
approve CUP-24-3 subject to the conditions of approval included in the staff report.” 
 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Application 
2. Police Chief’s Comments 



CONDITIONAL USE 

7.2023 

City Of Warrenton 
Planning Department  
Conditional Use Permit 
WMC 16.220 

 
The purpose of the conditional use process is to allow, when desirable, uses that would not 
be appropriate throughout a zoning district or without restrictions in that district, but 
would be beneficial to the City if their number, area, location, design, and relation to the 
surrounding property are controlled. A property owner or designated representative may 

initiate a request for a conditional use by filing an application with the Planning 

Department according to the requirements of Section 16.208.050. In addition, the 

applicant shall provide any related plans, drawings, and/or information needed to provide 
background for the request. 
 

Property  
 
Address: ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Tax Lot (s): ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Zone: ____________________ Flood Zone: _________________ Wetlands: _________________________________ 

Applicant 
 
Name (s): _____________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Phone: ______________________________ E-Mail Address: _______________________________________________ 
 
Mailing Address: _____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Applicant Signature(s): _____________________________________________________ Date: _________________ 

 
Property Owner (if different from applicant) 

 
Name (s): _____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone: ___________________________ E-mail Address:  _________________________________________________ 
 
Mailing Address: _____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Owner’s Signature: _________________________________________________________ Date: __________________ 
 
I am a record owner of property (person(s) whose name is on the most recently-recorded deed), or contract 
purchaser with written permission from the record owner and am providing my signature as written 
authorization for the applicant to submit this application. 

O
FF

IC
E 

U
SE

 

 

FEE   $1,000 
 
File# CUP -________ - _________ 
 
Date Received ______________ 
          
Receipt#_____________________ 

mary2jayne11@gmail.com

15824 s Priscilla ln. Oregon City, Or. 97045

976 Fourth Ave -  Hammond, OR  97121 ( Jetty View Townhomes)

80115CD03506

CMU N/A N/A

Mary J. Valitski

503-320-0717

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1AD11B9C-89AA-46C2-AC64-188C8B43DF6A

9879 BUENA VISTA RD, Independance, Or 97351

Mark.hansen@alumus.com503-871-1319

Jetty Street, LLC

2/21/2024 | 11:00:26 AM PST



CONDITIONAL USE 

7.2023 

Description of Proposed Land Use 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Conditional Use Permit Review Criteria 

 
Please provide written responses to each of the criteria below that clearly explain how 
your proposal meets each item. Attach a separate piece of paper if needed. Be as specific as 
possible. “Yes” and “No” responses are not sufficient. 
 
WMC 16.220.030 
 
1. The proposed use is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. The location, size and design, and operating characteristics of the proposed use are such 
that the development will be compatible with, and have a minimal impact on surrounding 
properties. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
3. The use will not generate excessive traffic, when compared to traffic generated by uses 
permitted outright, and adjacent streets have the capacity to accommodate the traffic 
generated. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
4. Public facilities and services are adequate to accommodate the proposed use. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
5. The site’s physical characteristics, in term of topography, soils and other pertinent 
considerations are, are appropriate for the use. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

I would like to use my home as a Short Term Rental Property.

Yes, the zoning is CMU, which does allow for the use of a short term rental with conditional use.

There are several approved mixed uses in close proximity to my home ie: Restaurants/Bar, Marina, Trailer 

park, Short Term RV park, multi-family and single family.

The home is a large 4 bedroom townhome and this use will conform with bylaws, no adjustments are needed to the

existing building. Being a multi-family home there should be little impact to adjacent units, and surrounding

properties. It is mostly surrounded by a marina, greenspace and overflow parking for the marina. 

Yes, our unit has 4 parking spaces, we will limit the number of vehicles to help reduce excessive traffic flow and

parking. Since the rental is mostly summer seasonal it will have more vacant time as compared to regular use by

home owner occupied units and businesses. There is also additional on-street parking on fourth avenue for guests.

Yes, with 4 bathrooms, 4 bedrooms, and all the ammenities of a fully furnished home this short term rental will be very

accommodating. Garbage, recycling and groundskeeping are all provided. Property management will monitor each 

stay providing a clean and safe enviroment for our guests. They will also be on call 24-7 to address any issues.

Yes, there will be no need to change anything related to the buildings characteristics. This site is relatively level

and all sidewalks, patios and decks conform to code. Plenty of seating and tables will be provided on the decks

to accomodate our guests. No structures will be built.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1AD11B9C-89AA-46C2-AC64-188C8B43DF6A



CONDITIONAL USE 

7.2023 

6. The site has an adequate area to accommodate the proposed use.  The site layout has 
been designed to provide for the building, parking, landscaping, driveway, on-site 
circulation, public areas, loading areas, storage facilities, setbacks, buffers, and utilities 
which are required by City ordinances. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
7. The use is appropriate at the proposed location. Several factors which should be 
considered in determining whether or not the use is appropriate include: accessibility for 
users (such as customers and employees); availability of similar existing uses; availability 
of other appropriately zoned sites; and the desirability of other suitably zoned sites for the 
intended use. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Submittal Checklist 
 
Applicants shall submit all of the following items on a site plan along with the application 
form. The site plan shall contain the following information: 
 

☐ The proposed development site, including boundaries, dimensions, and gross area 

drawn to scale. 

☐ Natural land features identified which are proposed to be removed or modified by the 

development, including modifications to existing drainage patterns, if any. 

☐ The location and dimensions of all proposed public and private streets, drives, rights-of-

way, and easements, if any 

☐ The location and dimensions of all existing and proposed structures, utilities, pavement 

and other improvements on the site. Setback dimensions for all existing and proposed 
buildings shall be provided on the site plan. 

☐ The location and dimensions of entrances and exits to the site for vehicular, pedestrian, 

and bicycle access, if being modified by the application. 

☐ The location and dimensions of all parking and vehicle circulation areas (show striping 

for parking stalls and wheel stops, as applicable), and proposed paving materials. 

☐ Pedestrian and bicycle circulation areas, including sidewalks, internal pathways, 

pathway connections to adjacent properties, and any bicycle lanes or trails. 

☐ Loading and service areas for waste disposal, loading and delivery, if any 

☐ Outdoor recreation spaces, common areas, plazas, outdoor seating, street furniture, and 

similar improvements. 

Yes, site layout design of building, parking, landscape, access, setbacks and buffers plus utilites are all in 

accordance with city ordanances. This is a new build property there will be no need to adjust of change anything

to accommodate for proposed use.

Yes, a short term rental would be an appropriate use of this location. We expect more units in the complex to also be

short term rental. Plan allowed for ample parking for residents and guests. Frontage road also allows for deliveries

and additional parking as needed. Neighborhood has many varied approved uses as expected for CMU properties.

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1AD11B9C-89AA-46C2-AC64-188C8B43DF6A



CONDITIONAL USE 

7.2023 

☐ Location, type, and height of outdoor lighting. 

☐ Locations, sizes, and types of signs (shall comply with Chapter 16.144). 

☐ The Planning Department may require studies or exhibits prepared by qualified 

professionals to address specific site features (e.g., traffic, noise, environmental features, 
site drainage, natural hazards, etc.). 

☐ The applicant’s entire tax lot and the surrounding property to a distance sufficient to 

determine the location of the development in the City, and the relationship between the 
proposed development site and adjacent property and development. The property 
boundaries, dimensions and gross area shall be identified. 

☐ Identification of slopes greater than 10%. 

☐ Any areas identified as located in a designated floodplain and/or floodway, if any 

☐ Depict any wetland and riparian areas, streams and/or wildlife habitat areas, if any. 

☐ Site features such as pavement, areas having unique views, and drainage ways, canals 

and ditches, if any. 

☐ Any designated historic and cultural resources areas on the site and/or adjacent parcels 

or lots. 

☐ North arrow, scale, names and addresses of all property owners. 

☐ Name and address of applicant, project designer, engineer, architect, surveyor, and/or 

planner, if applicable. 

☐ Letter or narrative report documenting compliance with the applicable approval criteria 

including the conditional use criteria, zoning development standards, and applicable design 
standards. Please see the Planning Staff for applicable design standards.  
 

This application will not be officially accepted until department staff have 
determined that the application is completely filled out, signed, the application fee 

has been paid, and the submittal requirements have been met. 
 

 

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1AD11B9C-89AA-46C2-AC64-188C8B43DF6A



��������	
����	������	
���������������������������������������� ��������! ��������"#$%&'(�)*+,-$.�/-(*+,-$.0($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345)'6�789789:97�9;<7�=#>*;�?'@'AA$�BC+'.1'D'+�/+4C+'.1'D'+0($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345�EA;�#$%%&'(�FDDG4�/-'DDG40($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345H�F4%&'+�#*@'+1�/'-*@'+10($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345H�=3@DGA�)*+,4�/C3@DGA(*+,40($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345H�IG+'�E&G'J/JG+'A&G'J0($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345H�K+'%%�F4%'4�/K+'%%2FB>FB06DA62*+'1*.21*L5H�K3GD6G.1�ED'+,�/@3GD6G.10($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345�MNONPPQRS�TQUN�VNUWNXNY�ZTN�[\]V�̂\_YWZW\_Q̀�abN�cNVdWZ�QeèWPQZW\_b�[\V�fQPQZW\_�MN_ZQ̀b�\_�g\]VZT�hUN_]N�W_�iQdd\_Yj�iNVN�QVNdk�P\ddN_Zblmn�opqrs�tuv�wqxvyzputus�{yu{xqu�pr�wtq|pu}�tuv�sqtoop{�o~y��prr�xr���TN�QeèWPQZW\_�[\V�����g\]VZT�hUNj�bZQZNbR��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������TN�QeèWPQZW\_b[\V��� R���¡R�¢���£�Y\�_\Z�dN_ZW\_�ZTN�_]dONV�\[�beQPNb�[\V�NQPT�O]Z�bZQZNbR��¤��������������������¥������������������������������������¦§u�̈prpspu}�s©x�rpsxª�§�tz�uys�r�qx��©xqx�s©x�«oy�q�rwt{xr«�{yzxr�oqyz�¬�s�trr�zx�s©x�tww~p{tus�zxtur�s©x�s�yrwt{xr�pu�s©x�}tqt}x�tuv�s©x�s�y�rwt{xr�pu�s©x�vqp̈x�tn�y�srpvx�yo�s©x�}tqt}x���TN�QeèWPQZW\_�[\V�����Q̀b\�bZQZNbR�¤�����������������������������������������������������������������������®©pr�pr�sq�xª�¬�s�|xxw�pu�zpuv�s©ts�̄y�qs©�°̈x��pryux±rpvx�wtq|pu}�yu~n��ps©�qyyz�oyq�yux�̈x©p{~x�{yzoyqst¬~n�pu�oqyus�yo�xt{©�tvvqxrr�tuv�s�y�̈x©p{~xr�¬�zwxq�sy¬�zwxqª�vxwxuvpu}�yu�s©x�snwx�yo�̈x©p{~x�§�twwqx{ptsx�s©x�rstsxzxus�¬n�s©x�tww~p{tus�oyq�²³́�s©ts�s©xn�«�p~~�~pzps�s©x�u�z¬xq�yo�̈x©p{~xr«�¬�s�s©pr�rstsxzxus�pruys�ztvx�¬n�s©x�tww~p{tus�oyq�²́µª�²́¶ª�·�²́ �̧�®©x�r©xxq�rp¹x�yo�s©xrx��upsrª�¶±¬xvqyyz�sy�u©yzxrª�{y�~v�tuv��p~~tssqt{s�~tq}x�}qy�wr�s©ts�©ẗx�s©x�wysxuspt~�sy�©ẗx�zyqx�s©tu�oy�q�̈x©p{~xr�tuv��ps©�}�xrsrª�s©x�wysxuspt~�oyq�ztunzyqx�̈x©p{~xr�§��y�~v�~p|x�sy�rxx�{yuvpspyur�yq�qxº�xrsr�ztvx�oyq�¬ys©�tww~p{tusr�sy�©ẗx�w~tur�yq�q�~xr�pu�w~t{x�sy�~pzps�s©x�u�z¬xqyo�̈x©p{~xr�tuv�qxrsqp{spu}�s©x�wtq|pu}�yo�tun�̈x©p{~xr�pu�tun�tqxtr�uys�vxrp}utsxv�oyq�̈x©p{~xr�»ntqvrª�t~~xnª�}qẗx~�yus©x�uyqs©�rpvx�yo�s©x�rsqxxsª�¼tzzyuv�mtqput�wqywxqsn��u~xrr�s©xn�wtn�oyq�vtp~n�wtq|pu}ª�ys©xq�wxyw~x½r�wqywxqsnªxs{�¾ª�tuv�~xsspu}�qxusxqr�|uy��s©ts�wtq|pu}�{yvxr��p~~�¬x�xuoyq{xv�yu�s©x�w�¬~p{�rsqxxsª�pu{~�vpu}�s©x�wyrrp¬p~psn�yo©ẗpu}�t�̈x©p{~x�sy�xv�

¿xusxq�Àyuv�{sÁ�s©y�}©�s©x�tww~p{tusr�vy�uys�o�~~n�{yusqy~�s©x�¬x©ẗpyq�yo�qxusxqrª�s©xn�r©y�~v�©ẗx�q�~xr�yq�~xs�s©xpqqxusxqr�|uy��s©ts�̈py~tspyur�yo�{psn�{yvxª�vprs�q¬tu{xrª�yq�vpryqvxq~n�{yuv�{s��p~~�¬x�rsqp{s~n�xuoyq{xv�¬n�s©x�ÂÃÄªtuv�y�uxqr��p~~�¬x�uyspopxv�yo�t~~�prr�xr��¼ywxo�~~nª�s©x�y�uxq��p~~�qxrxq̈x�s©x�qp}©s�sy�sxqzputsx�t�qxust~�oyq�rxqpy�rwqy¬~xzr�yq�prr�xrª�Å�rs�~p|x�y�q�©ysx~r�tuv�zysx~r��p~~�vy�S[�k\]�TQUN�Q_k�Æ]NbZW\_b�èNQbN�̀NZ�dN�Ç_\XjT̂WN[�È\VÇdQ_�ÉQZTNX�Êj�È\VÇdQ_R�̂TWN[�\[�c\̀WPNÈQVVN_Z\_�c\̀WPN�ËNeQVZdN_ZÌÌÍ�Îj�ÉQW_�hUNj�Ï�cjÐj�Ñ\Ò�ÌÍ ÈQVVN_Z\_R�ÐM���Ó¡�



������������	
������������������	
����������������	
����	��������������	������� ��	!����	"�#�� $�� �%	&	'(  ���	������� ��!"�)  #�&&(((*(����� �����+��*,-&#����./01	2311453	246	789:409	789;0<39:04=	49<>8?	@?8@?03:4?6	09;8?24:089	49<	01	09:39<3<	;8?	:/3	@3?189>39:0:6	:8	A/07/	0:	A418?05094==6	4<<?3113<B	C;	68D	/4E3	?3730E3<	:/01	3240=	F6	3??8?G	@=3413	789:47:	:/3	H0:6	49<	:/39	1/?3<	:/3	8?05094=	<87D239:BI96	D13	F6	8:/3?1	01	1:?07:=6	@?8/0F0:3<B	JKLMN	OPQPRRS	TUVPWXPYPV	ZV[UVPWXPYPV\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bcdefN	gaP[hSij	kUVlY	mnj	momp	qrno	kstLN	u[̂vPV	s_QPVX	ZPw_QPVX\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bx	sŜvP]	y_VzwSW	Zw]_VzwSW\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bx	{lVP	|vlP}Z~VPRvlP}\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bx	�aQYlR	y_Vz[	ZUaQYlR]_Vz[\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bx	�alYhlWX	|YPVz	ZQalYhlWX\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bx	�VP�	u[̂P[Z�VP�̀uTguT\hYRh̀_VPX_ẀX_�b��N	sS�vP]	uYYl[	ZwPYYl[\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bc���d�fN	�aQYlR	�PSVlWX	�_�RP	�	Tv_V̂	gPVw	OPŴSY[r	|���mp�ǹ	|���mp�pj	|���mp��j	|���mp��	����	$����+�	��	)���	�������	��,�	���� ����	�-�	!��$ 	�##��� ��-	���	���� ��	��� ��-	�	 )�	���	����	� 	���	��,� )	����,��	���	��,� )����,��	���	��,� )	����,��	���	���	��,� )	����,�	�	��$$���*	!,���	�� ��-	)���	����	$����	���	 )�	)����+-	���	-�)��,���������	 )�	!�����+	��$$--��	��	'),�-����	���	��	�����	� 	����	#$*	')�	!�����+	"�#�� $�� 	-	���,�- �+	 )� 	�	��,	)���	�����$$�� -	��	 )-	�##��� ���	 )��	��	#������	 �	,-	��	�� ��	 )��	����	��	'),�-����	���	��	����*	')�	�##��� ��	���-	���	��	��(��	�����	)����	)  #-�&&(((*(����� �����+��*,-&���&#�+�&�##��� ��-�#����+��##�������	��,�	��#�� $�� 	,-�-	�������	�	����(	 �-�	)�-	����	�--+���	 �	��,	���	��$$�� -	��	 �	��	$�����	���	��$$�� -* ')�-�	�##��� ��-	���,��	������	�,$���-�	��������������!¡¢��	��������������!¡¢��	��������������!¡¢��	���	��������������!¡¢�*	

	')���	��,�	£¤¥¤¦¦§	̈©ª¤«¬¤¤ª!�����+	'��)����



���������	
������������������������������������������������ !��	
"�#�����������$���%&�������'��(���)*+,-./0�,�1.22343/53�6748907�3:53;;3/53�82�<34=.53>?@�&�)�&&�$��)�A��������������B�����C���BD���E��E������A������)�����!���B��&������B�B������@��E��&��D�����A����#@��@����#�&����$���CCA�BB��&&�B��F��A�%�@�����������B��@�&��)��C�'A������!�EC��&�����������@��G��A���B��@���&@��B��@�����$���C�B��%)�������A�%&��'A���@��&��&&�����CA�E��@�'���B��



City of Warrenton 
Planning Department 
225 S Main Avenue     P.O. Box 250     Warrenton. OR 97146 
Phone: 503.861.0920 Fax: 503.861.2351  

STAFF REPORT 
TO: The Warrenton Planning Commission 
FROM: Matthew Ellis, AICP, Planning Director 
DATE:  May 9, 2024 
SUBJ: Conditional Use Permit CUP-24-4 

BACKGROUND 

C. Mark Hansen has applied for a conditional use permit to establish a vacation rental
use at 960 Fourth Avenue in Hammond which is zoned C-MU Commercial Mixed Use.
The subject property is developed as one of the end units of a group of three
townhomes and is identified as Tax Lot 81005CD03510.

PUBLIC PROCESS, PROCEDURES & PUBLIC NOTICE 

The application was submitted on April 9 and was deemed complete on April 9, 2024. 
We sent notice of the public hearing to adjacent property owners on April 19 and 
published notice in The Astorian on April 30, 2024. 

CODE PROVISIONS, APPLICANT RESPONSES, AND FINDINGS 

Applicable Warrenton Municipal Code (WMC) chapters for this application include: 

16.44.030 Commercial Mixed Use District Conditional Uses 
16.208.050 Type III Procedure (Quasi-Judicial) 
16.220 Conditional Use Permits 

Chapter 16.44 Commercial Mixed Use (C-MU) District 
16.44.030 Conditional Uses 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: None provided. 
STAFF FINDING: This criterion is met. The proposed use would be allowed if CUP-24-4 
is approved. 

Chapter 16.208 Administration of Land Use and Development Permits 
16.208.050 Type III Procedure (Quasi-Judicial) 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: None provided. 

5.C



Conditional Use Permit CUP-24-4 
Staff Report Page: 2 
 
STAFF FINDING: The applicant did not hold a pre-application conference, which is 
required for all Type III applications, but staff do not feel a pre-application conference 
would have changed the application substantially. All other criteria of the section have 
been met. 

Chapter 16.220 Conditional Use Permits 
16.220.030 Review Criteria 

A. Responses below: 
1. This unit is part of the nine-lot townhome Jetty View subdivision. The new 

construction development was carefully planned to align with the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan and adheres to land use designation and zoning 
regulation specified in the plan. 

2. The townhomes have been designed to blend with the existing 
neighborhood with consideration given to noise, traffic, and visual aspects. 

3. The development project included half street improvements along 4th and 
Jetty to accommodate traffic. 

4. The development project also included utility improvements and 
extensions 

5. Prior to construction, the Site Design Review and Preliminary Plan were 
approved to build the Jetty View subdivision. 

6. The site provides adequate space for buildings, parking, landscaping, and 
utilities with setbacks and buffers in compliance with City ordinances. 

7. The site’s location is suitable for residential townhomes, beautifies the 
Hammond Marina area, and provides need short- and long-term housing. 

STAFF FINDING: The criteria in this section are met. 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATION 

The applicant has demonstrated that the proposed vacation rental satisfies the 
conditional use permit criteria to be in the C-MU Commercial Mixed Use zoning district. 
Accordingly, staff recommends approval of the request with the following conditions: 

1. Submit a complete Homestay Lodging application within 180 days of the 
approval of CUP-24-4. 

2. The structure shall comply with all applicable provisions of Chapter 8.24 
Homestay Lodging Standards while being used as a vacation rental. 

3. All tenants shall be advised by the property owner(s) that the Warrenton Police 
Department will strictly enforce violations of city code, disturbances, or disorderly 
conduct, and owners will be notified of all issues. 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION 

“Based on the findings and conclusions of the May 9, 2024, staff report, I move to 
approve CUP-24-4 subject to the conditions of approval included in the staff report.” 
 

ATTACHMENTS 



Conditional Use Permit CUP-24-4 
Staff Report Page: 3 
 

1. Application 
2. Police Chief’s Comments 



CONDITIONAL USE 

7.2023 

City Of Warrenton 
Planning Department  
Conditional Use Permit 
WMC 16.220 

 
The purpose of the conditional use process is to allow, when desirable, uses that would not 
be appropriate throughout a zoning district or without restrictions in that district, but 
would be beneficial to the City if their number, area, location, design, and relation to the 
surrounding property are controlled. A property owner or designated representative may 

initiate a request for a conditional use by filing an application with the Planning 

Department according to the requirements of Section 16.208.050. In addition, the 

applicant shall provide any related plans, drawings, and/or information needed to provide 
background for the request. 
 

Property  
 
Address: ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Tax Lot (s): ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Zone: ____________________ Flood Zone: _________________ Wetlands: _________________________________ 

Applicant 
 
Name (s): _____________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Phone: ______________________________ E-Mail Address: _______________________________________________ 
 
Mailing Address: _____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Applicant Signature(s): _____________________________________________________ Date: _________________ 

 
Property Owner (if different from applicant) 

 
Name (s): _____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone: ___________________________ E-mail Address:  _________________________________________________ 
 
Mailing Address: _____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Owner’s Signature: _________________________________________________________ Date: __________________ 
 
I am a record owner of property (person(s) whose name is on the most recently-recorded deed), or contract 
purchaser with written permission from the record owner and am providing my signature as written 
authorization for the applicant to submit this application. 

O
FF

IC
E 

U
SE

 

 

FEE   $1,000 
 
File# CUP -________ - _________ 
 
Date Received ______________ 
          
Receipt#_____________________ 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C27BC496-BB4A-4CB4-914A-1A66A7888295

503-871-1319

9879 Buena Vista Rd, Independence, OR 97351                                        

Mary K. Pressburg                                                                                          

CMU

hansen@alumus.com                     

Jetty View 9, Map: 81005CD03510

C. Mark Hansen

960 4th Avenue, Hammond, OR 97121

04/09/2024   

04/09/2024  

     206-607-7487      

960 4th Avenue, Hammond, OR 97121                                      

mary.pressburg@gmail.com                   



CONDITIONAL USE 

7.2023 

Description of Proposed Land Use 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Conditional Use Permit Review Criteria 

 
Please provide written responses to each of the criteria below that clearly explain how 
your proposal meets each item. Attach a separate piece of paper if needed. Be as specific as 
possible. “Yes” and “No” responses are not sufficient. 
 
WMC 16.220.030 
 
1. The proposed use is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. The location, size and design, and operating characteristics of the proposed use are such 
that the development will be compatible with, and have a minimal impact on surrounding 
properties. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
3. The use will not generate excessive traffic, when compared to traffic generated by uses 
permitted outright, and adjacent streets have the capacity to accommodate the traffic 
generated. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
4. Public facilities and services are adequate to accommodate the proposed use. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
5. The site’s physical characteristics, in term of topography, soils and other pertinent 
considerations are, are appropriate for the use. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C27BC496-BB4A-4CB4-914A-1A66A7888295

visual aspects. 

This unit is part of the nine-lot townhome Jetty View subdivision. The new construction development was carefully planned

The development project included half street improvements along 4th and Jetty to accommodate traffic.

Prior to construction, the Site Design Review and Preliminary Plan were approved to build the Jetty View subdivision.

The townhomes have been designed to blend with the existing neighborhood with consideration given to noise, traffic, and 

The development project also included utility improvements and extensions.

Short term vacation rental for townhome Unit 9 in Jetty View subdivision constructed in 2023.

to align with the City's Comprehensive Plan and adheres to land use designations and zoning regulations specified in the plan.



CONDITIONAL USE 

7.2023 

6. The site has an adequate area to accommodate the proposed use.  The site layout has 
been designed to provide for the building, parking, landscaping, driveway, on-site 
circulation, public areas, loading areas, storage facilities, setbacks, buffers, and utilities 
which are required by City ordinances. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
7. The use is appropriate at the proposed location. Several factors which should be 
considered in determining whether or not the use is appropriate include: accessibility for 
users (such as customers and employees); availability of similar existing uses; availability 
of other appropriately zoned sites; and the desirability of other suitably zoned sites for the 
intended use. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Submittal Checklist 
 
Applicants shall submit all of the following items on a site plan along with the application 
form. The site plan shall contain the following information: 
 

☐ The proposed development site, including boundaries, dimensions, and gross area 

drawn to scale. 

☐ Natural land features identified which are proposed to be removed or modified by the 

development, including modifications to existing drainage patterns, if any. 

☐ The location and dimensions of all proposed public and private streets, drives, rights-of-

way, and easements, if any 

☐ The location and dimensions of all existing and proposed structures, utilities, pavement 

and other improvements on the site. Setback dimensions for all existing and proposed 
buildings shall be provided on the site plan. 

☐ The location and dimensions of entrances and exits to the site for vehicular, pedestrian, 

and bicycle access, if being modified by the application. 

☐ The location and dimensions of all parking and vehicle circulation areas (show striping 

for parking stalls and wheel stops, as applicable), and proposed paving materials. 

☐ Pedestrian and bicycle circulation areas, including sidewalks, internal pathways, 

pathway connections to adjacent properties, and any bicycle lanes or trails. 

☐ Loading and service areas for waste disposal, loading and delivery, if any 

☐ Outdoor recreation spaces, common areas, plazas, outdoor seating, street furniture, and 

similar improvements. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C27BC496-BB4A-4CB4-914A-1A66A7888295

long term housing.

 

City ordinances.

X

 

 

The site's location is suitable for residential townhomes, beautifies the Hammond Marina area, and provides needed short and 

 

 

The site provides adequate space for buildings, parking, landscaping, and utilities; with setbacks and buffers in compliance with

 

 

 



CONDITIONAL USE 

7.2023 

☐ Location, type, and height of outdoor lighting. 

☐ Locations, sizes, and types of signs (shall comply with Chapter 16.144). 

☐ The Planning Department may require studies or exhibits prepared by qualified 

professionals to address specific site features (e.g., traffic, noise, environmental features, 
site drainage, natural hazards, etc.). 

☐ The applicant’s entire tax lot and the surrounding property to a distance sufficient to 

determine the location of the development in the City, and the relationship between the 
proposed development site and adjacent property and development. The property 
boundaries, dimensions and gross area shall be identified. 

☐ Identification of slopes greater than 10%. 

☐ Any areas identified as located in a designated floodplain and/or floodway, if any 

☐ Depict any wetland and riparian areas, streams and/or wildlife habitat areas, if any. 

☐ Site features such as pavement, areas having unique views, and drainage ways, canals 

and ditches, if any. 

☐ Any designated historic and cultural resources areas on the site and/or adjacent parcels 

or lots. 

☐ North arrow, scale, names and addresses of all property owners. 

☐ Name and address of applicant, project designer, engineer, architect, surveyor, and/or 

planner, if applicable. 

☐ Letter or narrative report documenting compliance with the applicable approval criteria 

including the conditional use criteria, zoning development standards, and applicable design 
standards. Please see the Planning Staff for applicable design standards.  
 

This application will not be officially accepted until department staff have 
determined that the application is completely filled out, signed, the application fee 

has been paid, and the submittal requirements have been met. 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C27BC496-BB4A-4CB4-914A-1A66A7888295

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



��������	
����	������	
���������������������������������������� ��������! ��������"#$%&'(�)*+,-$.�/-(*+,-$.0($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345)'6�789789:97�9;<7�=#>*;�?'@'AA$�BC+'.1'D'+�/+4C+'.1'D'+0($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345�EA;�#$%%&'(�FDDG4�/-'DDG40($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345H�F4%&'+�#*@'+1�/'-*@'+10($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345H�=3@DGA�)*+,4�/C3@DGA(*+,40($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345H�IG+'�E&G'J/JG+'A&G'J0($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345H�K+'%%�F4%'4�/K+'%%2FB>FB06DA62*+'1*.21*L5H�K3GD6G.1�ED'+,�/@3GD6G.10($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345�MNONPPQRS�TQUN�VNUWNXNY�ZTN�[\]V�̂\_YWZW\_Q̀�abN�cNVdWZ�QeèWPQZW\_b�[\V�fQPQZW\_�MN_ZQ̀b�\_�g\]VZT�hUN_]N�W_�iQdd\_Yj�iNVN�QVNdk�P\ddN_Zblmn�opqrs�tuv�wqxvyzputus�{yu{xqu�pr�wtq|pu}�tuv�sqtoop{�o~y��prr�xr���TN�QeèWPQZW\_�[\V�����g\]VZT�hUNj�bZQZNbR��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������TN�QeèWPQZW\_b[\V��� R���¡R�¢���£�Y\�_\Z�dN_ZW\_�ZTN�_]dONV�\[�beQPNb�[\V�NQPT�O]Z�bZQZNbR��¤��������������������¥������������������������������������¦§u�̈prpspu}�s©x�rpsxª�§�tz�uys�r�qx��©xqx�s©x�«oy�q�rwt{xr«�{yzxr�oqyz�¬�s�trr�zx�s©x�tww~p{tus�zxtur�s©x�s�yrwt{xr�pu�s©x�}tqt}x�tuv�s©x�s�y�rwt{xr�pu�s©x�vqp̈x�tn�y�srpvx�yo�s©x�}tqt}x���TN�QeèWPQZW\_�[\V�����Q̀b\�bZQZNbR�¤�����������������������������������������������������������������������®©pr�pr�sq�xª�¬�s�|xxw�pu�zpuv�s©ts�̄y�qs©�°̈x��pryux±rpvx�wtq|pu}�yu~n��ps©�qyyz�oyq�yux�̈x©p{~x�{yzoyqst¬~n�pu�oqyus�yo�xt{©�tvvqxrr�tuv�s�y�̈x©p{~xr�¬�zwxq�sy¬�zwxqª�vxwxuvpu}�yu�s©x�snwx�yo�̈x©p{~x�§�twwqx{ptsx�s©x�rstsxzxus�¬n�s©x�tww~p{tus�oyq�²³́�s©ts�s©xn�«�p~~�~pzps�s©x�u�z¬xq�yo�̈x©p{~xr«�¬�s�s©pr�rstsxzxus�pruys�ztvx�¬n�s©x�tww~p{tus�oyq�²́µª�²́¶ª�·�²́ �̧�®©x�r©xxq�rp¹x�yo�s©xrx��upsrª�¶±¬xvqyyz�sy�u©yzxrª�{y�~v�tuv��p~~tssqt{s�~tq}x�}qy�wr�s©ts�©ẗx�s©x�wysxuspt~�sy�©ẗx�zyqx�s©tu�oy�q�̈x©p{~xr�tuv��ps©�}�xrsrª�s©x�wysxuspt~�oyq�ztunzyqx�̈x©p{~xr�§��y�~v�~p|x�sy�rxx�{yuvpspyur�yq�qxº�xrsr�ztvx�oyq�¬ys©�tww~p{tusr�sy�©ẗx�w~tur�yq�q�~xr�pu�w~t{x�sy�~pzps�s©x�u�z¬xqyo�̈x©p{~xr�tuv�qxrsqp{spu}�s©x�wtq|pu}�yo�tun�̈x©p{~xr�pu�tun�tqxtr�uys�vxrp}utsxv�oyq�̈x©p{~xr�»ntqvrª�t~~xnª�}qẗx~�yus©x�uyqs©�rpvx�yo�s©x�rsqxxsª�¼tzzyuv�mtqput�wqywxqsn��u~xrr�s©xn�wtn�oyq�vtp~n�wtq|pu}ª�ys©xq�wxyw~x½r�wqywxqsnªxs{�¾ª�tuv�~xsspu}�qxusxqr�|uy��s©ts�wtq|pu}�{yvxr��p~~�¬x�xuoyq{xv�yu�s©x�w�¬~p{�rsqxxsª�pu{~�vpu}�s©x�wyrrp¬p~psn�yo©ẗpu}�t�̈x©p{~x�sy�xv�

¿xusxq�Àyuv�{sÁ�s©y�}©�s©x�tww~p{tusr�vy�uys�o�~~n�{yusqy~�s©x�¬x©ẗpyq�yo�qxusxqrª�s©xn�r©y�~v�©ẗx�q�~xr�yq�~xs�s©xpqqxusxqr�|uy��s©ts�̈py~tspyur�yo�{psn�{yvxª�vprs�q¬tu{xrª�yq�vpryqvxq~n�{yuv�{s��p~~�¬x�rsqp{s~n�xuoyq{xv�¬n�s©x�ÂÃÄªtuv�y�uxqr��p~~�¬x�uyspopxv�yo�t~~�prr�xr��¼ywxo�~~nª�s©x�y�uxq��p~~�qxrxq̈x�s©x�qp}©s�sy�sxqzputsx�t�qxust~�oyq�rxqpy�rwqy¬~xzr�yq�prr�xrª�Å�rs�~p|x�y�q�©ysx~r�tuv�zysx~r��p~~�vy�S[�k\]�TQUN�Q_k�Æ]NbZW\_b�èNQbN�̀NZ�dN�Ç_\XjT̂WN[�È\VÇdQ_�ÉQZTNX�Êj�È\VÇdQ_R�̂TWN[�\[�c\̀WPNÈQVVN_Z\_�c\̀WPN�ËNeQVZdN_ZÌÌÍ�Îj�ÉQW_�hUNj�Ï�cjÐj�Ñ\Ò�ÌÍ ÈQVVN_Z\_R�ÐM���Ó¡�



������������	
������������������	
����������������	
����	��������������	������� ��	!����	"�#�� $�� �%	&	'(  ���	������� ��!"�)  #�&&(((*(����� �����+��*,-&#����./01	2311453	246	789:409	789;0<39:04=	49<>8?	@?8@?03:4?6	09;8?24:089	49<	01	09:39<3<	;8?	:/3	@3?189>39:0:6	:8	A/07/	0:	A418?05094==6	4<<?3113<B	C;	68D	/4E3	?3730E3<	:/01	3240=	F6	3??8?G	@=3413	789:47:	:/3	H0:6	49<	:/39	1/?3<	:/3	8?05094=	<87D239:BI96	D13	F6	8:/3?1	01	1:?07:=6	@?8/0F0:3<B	JKLMN	OPQPRRS	TUVPWXPYPV	ZV[UVPWXPYPV\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bcdefN	gaP[hSij	kUVlY	mnj	momp	qrno	kstLN	u[̂vPV	s_QPVX	ZPw_QPVX\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bx	sŜvP]	y_VzwSW	Zw]_VzwSW\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bx	{lVP	|vlP}Z~VPRvlP}\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bx	�aQYlR	y_Vz[	ZUaQYlR]_Vz[\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bx	�alYhlWX	|YPVz	ZQalYhlWX\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bx	�VP�	u[̂P[Z�VP�̀uTguT\hYRh̀_VPX_ẀX_�b��N	sS�vP]	uYYl[	ZwPYYl[\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bc���d�fN	�aQYlR	�PSVlWX	�_�RP	�	Tv_V̂	gPVw	OPŴSY[r	|���mp�ǹ	|���mp�pj	|���mp��j	|���mp��	����	$����+�	��	)���	�������	��,�	���� ����	�-�	!��$ 	�##��� ��-	���	���� ��	��� ��-	�	 )�	���	����	� 	���	��,� )	����,��	���	��,� )����,��	���	��,� )	����,��	���	���	��,� )	����,�	�	��$$���*	!,���	�� ��-	)���	����	$����	���	 )�	)����+-	���	-�)��,���������	 )�	!�����+	��$$--��	��	'),�-����	���	��	�����	� 	����	#$*	')�	!�����+	"�#�� $�� 	-	���,�- �+	 )� 	�	��,	)���	�����$$�� -	��	 )-	�##��� ���	 )��	��	#������	 �	,-	��	�� ��	 )��	����	��	'),�-����	���	��	����*	')�	�##��� ��	���-	���	��	��(��	�����	)����	)  #-�&&(((*(����� �����+��*,-&���&#�+�&�##��� ��-�#����+��##�������	��,�	��#�� $�� 	,-�-	�������	�	����(	 �-�	)�-	����	�--+���	 �	��,	���	��$$�� -	��	 �	��	$�����	���	��$$�� -* ')�-�	�##��� ��-	���,��	������	�,$���-�	��������������!¡¢��	��������������!¡¢��	��������������!¡¢��	���	��������������!¡¢�*	

	')���	��,�	£¤¥¤¦¦§	̈©ª¤«¬¤¤ª!�����+	'��)����



���������	
������������������������������������������������ !��	
"�#�����������$���%&�������'��(���)*+,-./0�,�1.22343/53�6748907�3:53;;3/53�82�<34=.53>?@�&�)�&&�$��)�A��������������B�����C���BD���E��E������A������)�����!���B��&������B�B������@��E��&��D�����A����#@��@����#�&����$���CCA�BB��&&�B��F��A�%�@�����������B��@�&��)��C�'A������!�EC��&�����������@��G��A���B��@���&@��B��@�����$���C�B��%)�������A�%&��'A���@��&��&&�����CA�E��@�'���B��



City of Warrenton 
Planning Department 
225 S Main Avenue     P.O. Box 250     Warrenton. OR 97146 
Phone: 503.861.0920 Fax: 503.861.2351  

STAFF REPORT 
TO: The Warrenton Planning Commission 
FROM: Matthew Ellis, AICP, Planning Director 
DATE:  May 9, 2024 
SUBJ: Conditional Use Permit CUP-24-5 

BACKGROUND 

C. Mark Hansen of Jetty Street LLC has applied for a conditional use permit to establish
a vacation rental use at 964 Fourth Avenue in Hammond which is zoned C-MU
Commercial Mixed Use. The subject property is developed as the middle of a group of
three townhomes and is identified as Tax Lot 81005CD03509.

PUBLIC PROCESS, PROCEDURES & PUBLIC NOTICE 

The application was submitted February 27 and was deemed complete February 27, 
2024. We sent notice of the public hearing to adjacent property owners April 19 and 
published notice in The Astorian on April 30, 2024. 

CODE PROVISIONS, APPLICANT RESPONSES, AND FINDINGS 

Applicable Warrenton Municipal Code (WMC) chapters for this application include: 

16.44.030 Commercial Mixed Use District Conditional Uses 
16.208.050 Type III Procedure (Quasi-Judicial) 
16.220 Conditional Use Permits 

Chapter 16.44 Commercial Mixed Use (C-MU) District 
16.44.030 Conditional Uses 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: None provided. 
STAFF FINDING: This criterion is met. The proposed use would be allowed if CUP-24-5 
is approved. 

Chapter 16.208 Administration of Land Use and Development Permits 
16.208.050 Type III Procedure (Quasi-Judicial) 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: None provided. 

5.D



Conditional Use Permit CUP-24-5 
Staff Report Page: 2 
 
STAFF FINDING: The applicant did not hold a pre-application conference, which is 
required for all Type III applications, but staff do not feel a pre-application conference 
would have changed the application substantially. All other criteria of the section have 
been met. 

Chapter 16.220 Conditional Use Permits 
16.220.030 Review Criteria 

A. Responses below: 
1. This unit is part of the nine-lot townhome Jetty View subdivision. The new 

construction development was carefully planned to align with the City's 
Comprehensive Plan and adheres to land use designations and zoning 
regulations specified in the plan. 

2. The townhomes have been designed to blend with the existing 
neighborhood with consideration given to noise, traffic, and visual aspects. 

3. The development project included half street improvements along 4th and 
Jetty to accommodate traffic. 

4. The development project also included utility improvements and 
extensions. 

5. Prior to construction, the Site Design Review and Preliminary Plan were 
approved to build the Jetty View subdivision. 

6. The site provides adequate space for buildings, parking, landscaping, and 
utilities, with setbacks and buffers in compliance with City ordinances. 

7. The site's location is suitable for residential townhomes, beautifies the 
Hammond Marina area, and provides need short- and long-term housing. 

STAFF FINDING: The criteria in this section are met. 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATION 

The applicant has demonstrated that the proposed vacation rental satisfies the 
conditional use permit criteria to be in the C-MU Commercial Mixed Use zoning district. 
Accordingly, staff recommends approval of the request with the following conditions: 

1. Submit a complete Short Term Rental (Homestay Lodging) application within 180 
days of the approval of CUP-24-5. 

2. The structure shall comply with all applicable provisions of Chapter 8.24 
Homestay Lodging Standards while being used as a vacation rental. 

3. All tenants shall be advised by the property owner(s) that the Warrenton Police 
Department will strictly enforce violations of city code, disturbances, or disorderly 
conduct, and owners will be notified of all issues. 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION 

“Based on the findings and conclusions of the May 9, 2024, staff report, I move to 
approve CUP-24-5 subject to the conditions of approval included in the staff report.” 
 

ATTACHMENTS 



Conditional Use Permit CUP-24-5 
Staff Report Page: 3 
 

1. Application 
2. Police Chief’s Comments 



CONDITIONAL USE 

7.2023 

City Of Warrenton 
Planning Department  
Conditional Use Permit 
WMC 16.220 

 
The purpose of the conditional use process is to allow, when desirable, uses that would not 
be appropriate throughout a zoning district or without restrictions in that district, but 
would be beneficial to the City if their number, area, location, design, and relation to the 
surrounding property are controlled. A property owner or designated representative may 

initiate a request for a conditional use by filing an application with the Planning 

Department according to the requirements of Section 16.208.050. In addition, the 

applicant shall provide any related plans, drawings, and/or information needed to provide 
background for the request. 
 

Property  
 
Address: ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Tax Lot (s): ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Zone: ____________________ Flood Zone: _________________ Wetlands: _________________________________ 

Applicant 
 
Name (s): _____________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Phone: ______________________________ E-Mail Address: _______________________________________________ 
 
Mailing Address: _____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Applicant Signature(s): _____________________________________________________ Date: _________________ 

 
Property Owner (if different from applicant) 

 
Name (s): _____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone: ___________________________ E-mail Address:  _________________________________________________ 
 
Mailing Address: _____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Owner’s Signature: _________________________________________________________ Date: __________________ 
 
I am a record owner of property (person(s) whose name is on the most recently-recorded deed), or contract 
purchaser with written permission from the record owner and am providing my signature as written 
authorization for the applicant to submit this application. 

O
FF

IC
E 

U
SE

 

 

FEE   $1,000 
 
File# CUP -________ - _________ 
 
Date Received ______________ 
          
Receipt#_____________________ 



CONDITIONAL USE 

7.2023 

Description of Proposed Land Use 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Conditional Use Permit Review Criteria 

 
Please provide written responses to each of the criteria below that clearly explain how 
your proposal meets each item. Attach a separate piece of paper if needed. Be as specific as 
possible. “Yes” and “No” responses are not sufficient. 
 
WMC 16.220.030 
 
1. The proposed use is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. The location, size and design, and operating characteristics of the proposed use are such 
that the development will be compatible with, and have a minimal impact on surrounding 
properties. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
3. The use will not generate excessive traffic, when compared to traffic generated by uses 
permitted outright, and adjacent streets have the capacity to accommodate the traffic 
generated. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
4. Public facilities and services are adequate to accommodate the proposed use. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
5. The site’s physical characteristics, in term of topography, soils and other pertinent 
considerations are, are appropriate for the use. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 



CONDITIONAL USE 

7.2023 

6. The site has an adequate area to accommodate the proposed use.  The site layout has 
been designed to provide for the building, parking, landscaping, driveway, on-site 
circulation, public areas, loading areas, storage facilities, setbacks, buffers, and utilities 
which are required by City ordinances. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
7. The use is appropriate at the proposed location. Several factors which should be 
considered in determining whether or not the use is appropriate include: accessibility for 
users (such as customers and employees); availability of similar existing uses; availability 
of other appropriately zoned sites; and the desirability of other suitably zoned sites for the 
intended use. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Submittal Checklist 
 
Applicants shall submit all of the following items on a site plan along with the application 
form. The site plan shall contain the following information: 
 

☐ The proposed development site, including boundaries, dimensions, and gross area 

drawn to scale. 

☐ Natural land features identified which are proposed to be removed or modified by the 

development, including modifications to existing drainage patterns, if any. 

☐ The location and dimensions of all proposed public and private streets, drives, rights-of-

way, and easements, if any 

☐ The location and dimensions of all existing and proposed structures, utilities, pavement 

and other improvements on the site. Setback dimensions for all existing and proposed 
buildings shall be provided on the site plan. 

☐ The location and dimensions of entrances and exits to the site for vehicular, pedestrian, 

and bicycle access, if being modified by the application. 

☐ The location and dimensions of all parking and vehicle circulation areas (show striping 

for parking stalls and wheel stops, as applicable), and proposed paving materials. 

☐ Pedestrian and bicycle circulation areas, including sidewalks, internal pathways, 

pathway connections to adjacent properties, and any bicycle lanes or trails. 

☐ Loading and service areas for waste disposal, loading and delivery, if any 

☐ Outdoor recreation spaces, common areas, plazas, outdoor seating, street furniture, and 

similar improvements. 



CONDITIONAL USE 

7.2023 

☐ Location, type, and height of outdoor lighting. 

☐ Locations, sizes, and types of signs (shall comply with Chapter 16.144). 

☐ The Planning Department may require studies or exhibits prepared by qualified 

professionals to address specific site features (e.g., traffic, noise, environmental features, 
site drainage, natural hazards, etc.). 

☐ The applicant’s entire tax lot and the surrounding property to a distance sufficient to 

determine the location of the development in the City, and the relationship between the 
proposed development site and adjacent property and development. The property 
boundaries, dimensions and gross area shall be identified. 

☐ Identification of slopes greater than 10%. 

☐ Any areas identified as located in a designated floodplain and/or floodway, if any 

☐ Depict any wetland and riparian areas, streams and/or wildlife habitat areas, if any. 

☐ Site features such as pavement, areas having unique views, and drainage ways, canals 

and ditches, if any. 

☐ Any designated historic and cultural resources areas on the site and/or adjacent parcels 

or lots. 

☐ North arrow, scale, names and addresses of all property owners. 

☐ Name and address of applicant, project designer, engineer, architect, surveyor, and/or 

planner, if applicable. 

☐ Letter or narrative report documenting compliance with the applicable approval criteria 

including the conditional use criteria, zoning development standards, and applicable design 
standards. Please see the Planning Staff for applicable design standards.  
 

This application will not be officially accepted until department staff have 
determined that the application is completely filled out, signed, the application fee 

has been paid, and the submittal requirements have been met. 
 

 



��������	
����	������	
���������������������������������������� ��������! ��������"#$%&'(�)*+,-$.�/-(*+,-$.0($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345)'6�789789:97�9;<7�=#>*;�?'@'AA$�BC+'.1'D'+�/+4C+'.1'D'+0($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345�EA;�#$%%&'(�FDDG4�/-'DDG40($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345H�F4%&'+�#*@'+1�/'-*@'+10($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345H�=3@DGA�)*+,4�/C3@DGA(*+,40($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345H�IG+'�E&G'J/JG+'A&G'J0($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345H�K+'%%�F4%'4�/K+'%%2FB>FB06DA62*+'1*.21*L5H�K3GD6G.1�ED'+,�/@3GD6G.10($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345�MNONPPQRS�TQUN�VNUWNXNY�ZTN�[\]V�̂\_YWZW\_Q̀�abN�cNVdWZ�QeèWPQZW\_b�[\V�fQPQZW\_�MN_ZQ̀b�\_�g\]VZT�hUN_]N�W_�iQdd\_Yj�iNVN�QVNdk�P\ddN_Zblmn�opqrs�tuv�wqxvyzputus�{yu{xqu�pr�wtq|pu}�tuv�sqtoop{�o~y��prr�xr���TN�QeèWPQZW\_�[\V�����g\]VZT�hUNj�bZQZNbR��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������TN�QeèWPQZW\_b[\V��� R���¡R�¢���£�Y\�_\Z�dN_ZW\_�ZTN�_]dONV�\[�beQPNb�[\V�NQPT�O]Z�bZQZNbR��¤��������������������¥������������������������������������¦§u�̈prpspu}�s©x�rpsxª�§�tz�uys�r�qx��©xqx�s©x�«oy�q�rwt{xr«�{yzxr�oqyz�¬�s�trr�zx�s©x�tww~p{tus�zxtur�s©x�s�yrwt{xr�pu�s©x�}tqt}x�tuv�s©x�s�y�rwt{xr�pu�s©x�vqp̈x�tn�y�srpvx�yo�s©x�}tqt}x���TN�QeèWPQZW\_�[\V�����Q̀b\�bZQZNbR�¤�����������������������������������������������������������������������®©pr�pr�sq�xª�¬�s�|xxw�pu�zpuv�s©ts�̄y�qs©�°̈x��pryux±rpvx�wtq|pu}�yu~n��ps©�qyyz�oyq�yux�̈x©p{~x�{yzoyqst¬~n�pu�oqyus�yo�xt{©�tvvqxrr�tuv�s�y�̈x©p{~xr�¬�zwxq�sy¬�zwxqª�vxwxuvpu}�yu�s©x�snwx�yo�̈x©p{~x�§�twwqx{ptsx�s©x�rstsxzxus�¬n�s©x�tww~p{tus�oyq�²³́�s©ts�s©xn�«�p~~�~pzps�s©x�u�z¬xq�yo�̈x©p{~xr«�¬�s�s©pr�rstsxzxus�pruys�ztvx�¬n�s©x�tww~p{tus�oyq�²́µª�²́¶ª�·�²́ �̧�®©x�r©xxq�rp¹x�yo�s©xrx��upsrª�¶±¬xvqyyz�sy�u©yzxrª�{y�~v�tuv��p~~tssqt{s�~tq}x�}qy�wr�s©ts�©ẗx�s©x�wysxuspt~�sy�©ẗx�zyqx�s©tu�oy�q�̈x©p{~xr�tuv��ps©�}�xrsrª�s©x�wysxuspt~�oyq�ztunzyqx�̈x©p{~xr�§��y�~v�~p|x�sy�rxx�{yuvpspyur�yq�qxº�xrsr�ztvx�oyq�¬ys©�tww~p{tusr�sy�©ẗx�w~tur�yq�q�~xr�pu�w~t{x�sy�~pzps�s©x�u�z¬xqyo�̈x©p{~xr�tuv�qxrsqp{spu}�s©x�wtq|pu}�yo�tun�̈x©p{~xr�pu�tun�tqxtr�uys�vxrp}utsxv�oyq�̈x©p{~xr�»ntqvrª�t~~xnª�}qẗx~�yus©x�uyqs©�rpvx�yo�s©x�rsqxxsª�¼tzzyuv�mtqput�wqywxqsn��u~xrr�s©xn�wtn�oyq�vtp~n�wtq|pu}ª�ys©xq�wxyw~x½r�wqywxqsnªxs{�¾ª�tuv�~xsspu}�qxusxqr�|uy��s©ts�wtq|pu}�{yvxr��p~~�¬x�xuoyq{xv�yu�s©x�w�¬~p{�rsqxxsª�pu{~�vpu}�s©x�wyrrp¬p~psn�yo©ẗpu}�t�̈x©p{~x�sy�xv�

¿xusxq�Àyuv�{sÁ�s©y�}©�s©x�tww~p{tusr�vy�uys�o�~~n�{yusqy~�s©x�¬x©ẗpyq�yo�qxusxqrª�s©xn�r©y�~v�©ẗx�q�~xr�yq�~xs�s©xpqqxusxqr�|uy��s©ts�̈py~tspyur�yo�{psn�{yvxª�vprs�q¬tu{xrª�yq�vpryqvxq~n�{yuv�{s��p~~�¬x�rsqp{s~n�xuoyq{xv�¬n�s©x�ÂÃÄªtuv�y�uxqr��p~~�¬x�uyspopxv�yo�t~~�prr�xr��¼ywxo�~~nª�s©x�y�uxq��p~~�qxrxq̈x�s©x�qp}©s�sy�sxqzputsx�t�qxust~�oyq�rxqpy�rwqy¬~xzr�yq�prr�xrª�Å�rs�~p|x�y�q�©ysx~r�tuv�zysx~r��p~~�vy�S[�k\]�TQUN�Q_k�Æ]NbZW\_b�èNQbN�̀NZ�dN�Ç_\XjT̂WN[�È\VÇdQ_�ÉQZTNX�Êj�È\VÇdQ_R�̂TWN[�\[�c\̀WPNÈQVVN_Z\_�c\̀WPN�ËNeQVZdN_ZÌÌÍ�Îj�ÉQW_�hUNj�Ï�cjÐj�Ñ\Ò�ÌÍ ÈQVVN_Z\_R�ÐM���Ó¡�



������������	
������������������	
����������������	
����	��������������	������� ��	!����	"�#�� $�� �%	&	'(  ���	������� ��!"�)  #�&&(((*(����� �����+��*,-&#����./01	2311453	246	789:409	789;0<39:04=	49<>8?	@?8@?03:4?6	09;8?24:089	49<	01	09:39<3<	;8?	:/3	@3?189>39:0:6	:8	A/07/	0:	A418?05094==6	4<<?3113<B	C;	68D	/4E3	?3730E3<	:/01	3240=	F6	3??8?G	@=3413	789:47:	:/3	H0:6	49<	:/39	1/?3<	:/3	8?05094=	<87D239:BI96	D13	F6	8:/3?1	01	1:?07:=6	@?8/0F0:3<B	JKLMN	OPQPRRS	TUVPWXPYPV	ZV[UVPWXPYPV\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bcdefN	gaP[hSij	kUVlY	mnj	momp	qrno	kstLN	u[̂vPV	s_QPVX	ZPw_QPVX\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bx	sŜvP]	y_VzwSW	Zw]_VzwSW\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bx	{lVP	|vlP}Z~VPRvlP}\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bx	�aQYlR	y_Vz[	ZUaQYlR]_Vz[\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bx	�alYhlWX	|YPVz	ZQalYhlWX\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bx	�VP�	u[̂P[Z�VP�̀uTguT\hYRh̀_VPX_ẀX_�b��N	sS�vP]	uYYl[	ZwPYYl[\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bc���d�fN	�aQYlR	�PSVlWX	�_�RP	�	Tv_V̂	gPVw	OPŴSY[r	|���mp�ǹ	|���mp�pj	|���mp��j	|���mp��	����	$����+�	��	)���	�������	��,�	���� ����	�-�	!��$ 	�##��� ��-	���	���� ��	��� ��-	�	 )�	���	����	� 	���	��,� )	����,��	���	��,� )����,��	���	��,� )	����,��	���	���	��,� )	����,�	�	��$$���*	!,���	�� ��-	)���	����	$����	���	 )�	)����+-	���	-�)��,���������	 )�	!�����+	��$$--��	��	'),�-����	���	��	�����	� 	����	#$*	')�	!�����+	"�#�� $�� 	-	���,�- �+	 )� 	�	��,	)���	�����$$�� -	��	 )-	�##��� ���	 )��	��	#������	 �	,-	��	�� ��	 )��	����	��	'),�-����	���	��	����*	')�	�##��� ��	���-	���	��	��(��	�����	)����	)  #-�&&(((*(����� �����+��*,-&���&#�+�&�##��� ��-�#����+��##�������	��,�	��#�� $�� 	,-�-	�������	�	����(	 �-�	)�-	����	�--+���	 �	��,	���	��$$�� -	��	 �	��	$�����	���	��$$�� -* ')�-�	�##��� ��-	���,��	������	�,$���-�	��������������!¡¢��	��������������!¡¢��	��������������!¡¢��	���	��������������!¡¢�*	

	')���	��,�	£¤¥¤¦¦§	̈©ª¤«¬¤¤ª!�����+	'��)����



���������	
������������������������������������������������ !��	
"�#�����������$���%&�������'��(���)*+,-./0�,�1.22343/53�6748907�3:53;;3/53�82�<34=.53>?@�&�)�&&�$��)�A��������������B�����C���BD���E��E������A������)�����!���B��&������B�B������@��E��&��D�����A����#@��@����#�&����$���CCA�BB��&&�B��F��A�%�@�����������B��@�&��)��C�'A������!�EC��&�����������@��G��A���B��@���&@��B��@�����$���C�B��%)�������A�%&��'A���@��&��&&�����CA�E��@�'���B��



City of Warrenton 
Planning Department 
225 S Main Avenue     P.O. Box 250     Warrenton. OR 97146 
Phone: 503.861.0920 Fax: 503.861.2351  

STAFF REPORT 
TO: The Warrenton Planning Commission 
FROM: Matthew Ellis, AICP, Planning Director 
DATE:  May 9, 2024 
SUBJ: Conditional Use Permit CUP-24-6 

BACKGROUND 

C. Mark Hansen of Jetty Street LLC has applied for a conditional use permit to establish
a vacation rental use at 968 Fourth Avenue in Hammond which is zoned C-MU
Commercial Mixed Use. The subject property is developed as one of the end units of a
group of three townhomes and is identified as Tax Lot 81005CD03508.

PUBLIC PROCESS, PROCEDURES & PUBLIC NOTICE 

The application was submitted February 27 and was deemed complete February 27, 
2024. We sent notice of the public hearing to adjacent property owners April 19 and 
published notice in The Astorian on April 30, 2024. 

CODE PROVISIONS, APPLICANT RESPONSES, AND FINDINGS 

Applicable Warrenton Municipal Code (WMC) chapters for this application include: 

16.44.030 Commercial Mixed Use District Conditional Uses 
16.208.050 Type III Procedure (Quasi-Judicial) 
16.220 Conditional Use Permits 

Chapter 16.44 Commercial Mixed Use (C-MU) District 
16.44.030 Conditional Uses 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: None provided. 
STAFF FINDING: This criterion is met. The proposed use would be allowed if CUP-24-6 
is approved. 

Chapter 16.208 Administration of Land Use and Development Permits 
16.208.050 Type III Procedure (Quasi-Judicial) 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: None provided. 

5.E



Conditional Use Permit CUP-24-6 
Staff Report Page: 2 
 
STAFF FINDING: The applicant did not hold a pre-application conference, which is 
required for all Type III applications, but staff do not feel a pre-application conference 
would have changed the application substantially. All other criteria of the section have 
been met. 

Chapter 16.220 Conditional Use Permits 
16.220.030 Review Criteria 

A. Responses below: 
1. This unit is part of the nine-lot townhome Jetty View subdivision. The new 

construction development was carefully planned to align with the City's 
Comprehensive Plan and adheres to land use designations and zoning 
regulations specified in the plan. 

2. The townhomes have been designed to blend with the existing 
neighborhood with consideration given to noise, traffic, and visual aspects. 

3. The development project included half street improvements along 4th and 
Jetty to accommodate traffic. 

4. The development project also included utility improvements and 
extensions. 

5. Prior to construction, the Site Design Review and Preliminary Plan were 
approved to build the Jetty View subdivision. 

6. The site provides adequate space for buildings, parking, landscaping, and 
utilities, with setbacks and buffers in compliance with City ordinances. 

7. The site's location is suitable for residential townhomes, beautifies the 
Hammond Marina area, and provides need short- and long-term housing. 

STAFF FINDING: The criteria in this section are met. 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATION 

The applicant has demonstrated that the proposed vacation rental satisfies the 
conditional use permit criteria to be in the C-MU Commercial Mixed Use zoning district. 
Accordingly, staff recommends approval of the request with the following conditions: 

1. Submit a complete Short Term Rental (Homestay Lodging) application within 180 
days of the approval of CUP-24-6. 

2. The structure shall comply with all applicable provisions of Chapter 8.24 
Homestay Lodging Standards while being used as a vacation rental. 

3. All tenants shall be advised by the property owner(s) that the Warrenton Police 
Department will strictly enforce violations of city code, disturbances, or disorderly 
conduct, and owners will be notified of all issues. 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION 

“Based on the findings and conclusions of the May 9, 2024, staff report, I move to 
approve CUP-24-6 subject to the conditions of approval included in the staff report.” 
 

ATTACHMENTS 



Conditional Use Permit CUP-24-6 
Staff Report Page: 3 
 

1. Application 
2. Police Chief’s Comments 



CONDITIONAL USE 

7.2023 

City Of Warrenton 
Planning Department  
Conditional Use Permit 
WMC 16.220 

 
The purpose of the conditional use process is to allow, when desirable, uses that would not 
be appropriate throughout a zoning district or without restrictions in that district, but 
would be beneficial to the City if their number, area, location, design, and relation to the 
surrounding property are controlled. A property owner or designated representative may 

initiate a request for a conditional use by filing an application with the Planning 

Department according to the requirements of Section 16.208.050. In addition, the 

applicant shall provide any related plans, drawings, and/or information needed to provide 
background for the request. 
 

Property  
 
Address: ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Tax Lot (s): ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Zone: ____________________ Flood Zone: _________________ Wetlands: _________________________________ 

Applicant 
 
Name (s): _____________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Phone: ______________________________ E-Mail Address: _______________________________________________ 
 
Mailing Address: _____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Applicant Signature(s): _____________________________________________________ Date: _________________ 

 
Property Owner (if different from applicant) 

 
Name (s): _____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone: ___________________________ E-mail Address:  _________________________________________________ 
 
Mailing Address: _____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Owner’s Signature: _________________________________________________________ Date: __________________ 
 
I am a record owner of property (person(s) whose name is on the most recently-recorded deed), or contract 
purchaser with written permission from the record owner and am providing my signature as written 
authorization for the applicant to submit this application. 

O
FF

IC
E 

U
SE

 

 

FEE   $1,000 
 
File# CUP -________ - _________ 
 
Date Received ______________ 
          
Receipt#_____________________ 



CONDITIONAL USE 

7.2023 

Description of Proposed Land Use 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Conditional Use Permit Review Criteria 

 
Please provide written responses to each of the criteria below that clearly explain how 
your proposal meets each item. Attach a separate piece of paper if needed. Be as specific as 
possible. “Yes” and “No” responses are not sufficient. 
 
WMC 16.220.030 
 
1. The proposed use is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. The location, size and design, and operating characteristics of the proposed use are such 
that the development will be compatible with, and have a minimal impact on surrounding 
properties. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
3. The use will not generate excessive traffic, when compared to traffic generated by uses 
permitted outright, and adjacent streets have the capacity to accommodate the traffic 
generated. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
4. Public facilities and services are adequate to accommodate the proposed use. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
5. The site’s physical characteristics, in term of topography, soils and other pertinent 
considerations are, are appropriate for the use. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 



CONDITIONAL USE 

7.2023 

6. The site has an adequate area to accommodate the proposed use.  The site layout has 
been designed to provide for the building, parking, landscaping, driveway, on-site 
circulation, public areas, loading areas, storage facilities, setbacks, buffers, and utilities 
which are required by City ordinances. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
7. The use is appropriate at the proposed location. Several factors which should be 
considered in determining whether or not the use is appropriate include: accessibility for 
users (such as customers and employees); availability of similar existing uses; availability 
of other appropriately zoned sites; and the desirability of other suitably zoned sites for the 
intended use. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Submittal Checklist 
 
Applicants shall submit all of the following items on a site plan along with the application 
form. The site plan shall contain the following information: 
 

☐ The proposed development site, including boundaries, dimensions, and gross area 

drawn to scale. 

☐ Natural land features identified which are proposed to be removed or modified by the 

development, including modifications to existing drainage patterns, if any. 

☐ The location and dimensions of all proposed public and private streets, drives, rights-of-

way, and easements, if any 

☐ The location and dimensions of all existing and proposed structures, utilities, pavement 

and other improvements on the site. Setback dimensions for all existing and proposed 
buildings shall be provided on the site plan. 

☐ The location and dimensions of entrances and exits to the site for vehicular, pedestrian, 

and bicycle access, if being modified by the application. 

☐ The location and dimensions of all parking and vehicle circulation areas (show striping 

for parking stalls and wheel stops, as applicable), and proposed paving materials. 

☐ Pedestrian and bicycle circulation areas, including sidewalks, internal pathways, 

pathway connections to adjacent properties, and any bicycle lanes or trails. 

☐ Loading and service areas for waste disposal, loading and delivery, if any 

☐ Outdoor recreation spaces, common areas, plazas, outdoor seating, street furniture, and 

similar improvements. 



CONDITIONAL USE 

7.2023 

☐ Location, type, and height of outdoor lighting. 

☐ Locations, sizes, and types of signs (shall comply with Chapter 16.144). 

☐ The Planning Department may require studies or exhibits prepared by qualified 

professionals to address specific site features (e.g., traffic, noise, environmental features, 
site drainage, natural hazards, etc.). 

☐ The applicant’s entire tax lot and the surrounding property to a distance sufficient to 

determine the location of the development in the City, and the relationship between the 
proposed development site and adjacent property and development. The property 
boundaries, dimensions and gross area shall be identified. 

☐ Identification of slopes greater than 10%. 

☐ Any areas identified as located in a designated floodplain and/or floodway, if any 

☐ Depict any wetland and riparian areas, streams and/or wildlife habitat areas, if any. 

☐ Site features such as pavement, areas having unique views, and drainage ways, canals 

and ditches, if any. 

☐ Any designated historic and cultural resources areas on the site and/or adjacent parcels 

or lots. 

☐ North arrow, scale, names and addresses of all property owners. 

☐ Name and address of applicant, project designer, engineer, architect, surveyor, and/or 

planner, if applicable. 

☐ Letter or narrative report documenting compliance with the applicable approval criteria 

including the conditional use criteria, zoning development standards, and applicable design 
standards. Please see the Planning Staff for applicable design standards.  
 

This application will not be officially accepted until department staff have 
determined that the application is completely filled out, signed, the application fee 

has been paid, and the submittal requirements have been met. 
 

 



��������	
����	������	
���������������������������������������� ��������! ��������"#$%&'(�)*+,-$.�/-(*+,-$.0($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345)'6�789789:97�9;<7�=#>*;�?'@'AA$�BC+'.1'D'+�/+4C+'.1'D'+0($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345�EA;�#$%%&'(�FDDG4�/-'DDG40($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345H�F4%&'+�#*@'+1�/'-*@'+10($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345H�=3@DGA�)*+,4�/C3@DGA(*+,40($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345H�IG+'�E&G'J/JG+'A&G'J0($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345H�K+'%%�F4%'4�/K+'%%2FB>FB06DA62*+'1*.21*L5H�K3GD6G.1�ED'+,�/@3GD6G.10($++'.%*.*+'1*.2345�MNONPPQRS�TQUN�VNUWNXNY�ZTN�[\]V�̂\_YWZW\_Q̀�abN�cNVdWZ�QeèWPQZW\_b�[\V�fQPQZW\_�MN_ZQ̀b�\_�g\]VZT�hUN_]N�W_�iQdd\_Yj�iNVN�QVNdk�P\ddN_Zblmn�opqrs�tuv�wqxvyzputus�{yu{xqu�pr�wtq|pu}�tuv�sqtoop{�o~y��prr�xr���TN�QeèWPQZW\_�[\V�����g\]VZT�hUNj�bZQZNbR��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������TN�QeèWPQZW\_b[\V��� R���¡R�¢���£�Y\�_\Z�dN_ZW\_�ZTN�_]dONV�\[�beQPNb�[\V�NQPT�O]Z�bZQZNbR��¤��������������������¥������������������������������������¦§u�̈prpspu}�s©x�rpsxª�§�tz�uys�r�qx��©xqx�s©x�«oy�q�rwt{xr«�{yzxr�oqyz�¬�s�trr�zx�s©x�tww~p{tus�zxtur�s©x�s�yrwt{xr�pu�s©x�}tqt}x�tuv�s©x�s�y�rwt{xr�pu�s©x�vqp̈x�tn�y�srpvx�yo�s©x�}tqt}x���TN�QeèWPQZW\_�[\V�����Q̀b\�bZQZNbR�¤�����������������������������������������������������������������������®©pr�pr�sq�xª�¬�s�|xxw�pu�zpuv�s©ts�̄y�qs©�°̈x��pryux±rpvx�wtq|pu}�yu~n��ps©�qyyz�oyq�yux�̈x©p{~x�{yzoyqst¬~n�pu�oqyus�yo�xt{©�tvvqxrr�tuv�s�y�̈x©p{~xr�¬�zwxq�sy¬�zwxqª�vxwxuvpu}�yu�s©x�snwx�yo�̈x©p{~x�§�twwqx{ptsx�s©x�rstsxzxus�¬n�s©x�tww~p{tus�oyq�²³́�s©ts�s©xn�«�p~~�~pzps�s©x�u�z¬xq�yo�̈x©p{~xr«�¬�s�s©pr�rstsxzxus�pruys�ztvx�¬n�s©x�tww~p{tus�oyq�²́µª�²́¶ª�·�²́ �̧�®©x�r©xxq�rp¹x�yo�s©xrx��upsrª�¶±¬xvqyyz�sy�u©yzxrª�{y�~v�tuv��p~~tssqt{s�~tq}x�}qy�wr�s©ts�©ẗx�s©x�wysxuspt~�sy�©ẗx�zyqx�s©tu�oy�q�̈x©p{~xr�tuv��ps©�}�xrsrª�s©x�wysxuspt~�oyq�ztunzyqx�̈x©p{~xr�§��y�~v�~p|x�sy�rxx�{yuvpspyur�yq�qxº�xrsr�ztvx�oyq�¬ys©�tww~p{tusr�sy�©ẗx�w~tur�yq�q�~xr�pu�w~t{x�sy�~pzps�s©x�u�z¬xqyo�̈x©p{~xr�tuv�qxrsqp{spu}�s©x�wtq|pu}�yo�tun�̈x©p{~xr�pu�tun�tqxtr�uys�vxrp}utsxv�oyq�̈x©p{~xr�»ntqvrª�t~~xnª�}qẗx~�yus©x�uyqs©�rpvx�yo�s©x�rsqxxsª�¼tzzyuv�mtqput�wqywxqsn��u~xrr�s©xn�wtn�oyq�vtp~n�wtq|pu}ª�ys©xq�wxyw~x½r�wqywxqsnªxs{�¾ª�tuv�~xsspu}�qxusxqr�|uy��s©ts�wtq|pu}�{yvxr��p~~�¬x�xuoyq{xv�yu�s©x�w�¬~p{�rsqxxsª�pu{~�vpu}�s©x�wyrrp¬p~psn�yo©ẗpu}�t�̈x©p{~x�sy�xv�

¿xusxq�Àyuv�{sÁ�s©y�}©�s©x�tww~p{tusr�vy�uys�o�~~n�{yusqy~�s©x�¬x©ẗpyq�yo�qxusxqrª�s©xn�r©y�~v�©ẗx�q�~xr�yq�~xs�s©xpqqxusxqr�|uy��s©ts�̈py~tspyur�yo�{psn�{yvxª�vprs�q¬tu{xrª�yq�vpryqvxq~n�{yuv�{s��p~~�¬x�rsqp{s~n�xuoyq{xv�¬n�s©x�ÂÃÄªtuv�y�uxqr��p~~�¬x�uyspopxv�yo�t~~�prr�xr��¼ywxo�~~nª�s©x�y�uxq��p~~�qxrxq̈x�s©x�qp}©s�sy�sxqzputsx�t�qxust~�oyq�rxqpy�rwqy¬~xzr�yq�prr�xrª�Å�rs�~p|x�y�q�©ysx~r�tuv�zysx~r��p~~�vy�S[�k\]�TQUN�Q_k�Æ]NbZW\_b�èNQbN�̀NZ�dN�Ç_\XjT̂WN[�È\VÇdQ_�ÉQZTNX�Êj�È\VÇdQ_R�̂TWN[�\[�c\̀WPNÈQVVN_Z\_�c\̀WPN�ËNeQVZdN_ZÌÌÍ�Îj�ÉQW_�hUNj�Ï�cjÐj�Ñ\Ò�ÌÍ ÈQVVN_Z\_R�ÐM���Ó¡�



������������	
������������������	
����������������	
����	��������������	������� ��	!����	"�#�� $�� �%	&	'(  ���	������� ��!"�)  #�&&(((*(����� �����+��*,-&#����./01	2311453	246	789:409	789;0<39:04=	49<>8?	@?8@?03:4?6	09;8?24:089	49<	01	09:39<3<	;8?	:/3	@3?189>39:0:6	:8	A/07/	0:	A418?05094==6	4<<?3113<B	C;	68D	/4E3	?3730E3<	:/01	3240=	F6	3??8?G	@=3413	789:47:	:/3	H0:6	49<	:/39	1/?3<	:/3	8?05094=	<87D239:BI96	D13	F6	8:/3?1	01	1:?07:=6	@?8/0F0:3<B	JKLMN	OPQPRRS	TUVPWXPYPV	ZV[UVPWXPYPV\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bcdefN	gaP[hSij	kUVlY	mnj	momp	qrno	kstLN	u[̂vPV	s_QPVX	ZPw_QPVX\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bx	sŜvP]	y_VzwSW	Zw]_VzwSW\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bx	{lVP	|vlP}Z~VPRvlP}\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bx	�aQYlR	y_Vz[	ZUaQYlR]_Vz[\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bx	�alYhlWX	|YPVz	ZQalYhlWX\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bx	�VP�	u[̂P[Z�VP�̀uTguT\hYRh̀_VPX_ẀX_�b��N	sS�vP]	uYYl[	ZwPYYl[\]SVVPŴ_W_VPX_Ẁa[bc���d�fN	�aQYlR	�PSVlWX	�_�RP	�	Tv_V̂	gPVw	OPŴSY[r	|���mp�ǹ	|���mp�pj	|���mp��j	|���mp��	����	$����+�	��	)���	�������	��,�	���� ����	�-�	!��$ 	�##��� ��-	���	���� ��	��� ��-	�	 )�	���	����	� 	���	��,� )	����,��	���	��,� )����,��	���	��,� )	����,��	���	���	��,� )	����,�	�	��$$���*	!,���	�� ��-	)���	����	$����	���	 )�	)����+-	���	-�)��,���������	 )�	!�����+	��$$--��	��	'),�-����	���	��	�����	� 	����	#$*	')�	!�����+	"�#�� $�� 	-	���,�- �+	 )� 	�	��,	)���	�����$$�� -	��	 )-	�##��� ���	 )��	��	#������	 �	,-	��	�� ��	 )��	����	��	'),�-����	���	��	����*	')�	�##��� ��	���-	���	��	��(��	�����	)����	)  #-�&&(((*(����� �����+��*,-&���&#�+�&�##��� ��-�#����+��##�������	��,�	��#�� $�� 	,-�-	�������	�	����(	 �-�	)�-	����	�--+���	 �	��,	���	��$$�� -	��	 �	��	$�����	���	��$$�� -* ')�-�	�##��� ��-	���,��	������	�,$���-�	��������������!¡¢��	��������������!¡¢��	��������������!¡¢��	���	��������������!¡¢�*	

	')���	��,�	£¤¥¤¦¦§	̈©ª¤«¬¤¤ª!�����+	'��)����



���������	
������������������������������������������������ !��	
"�#�����������$���%&�������'��(���)*+,-./0�,�1.22343/53�6748907�3:53;;3/53�82�<34=.53>?@�&�)�&&�$��)�A��������������B�����C���BD���E��E������A������)�����!���B��&������B�B������@��E��&��D�����A����#@��@����#�&����$���CCA�BB��&&�B��F��A�%�@�����������B��@�&��)��C�'A������!�EC��&�����������@��G��A���B��@���&@��B��@�����$���C�B��%)�������A�%&��'A���@��&��&&�����CA�E��@�'���B��



AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
TO: Warrenton Planning Commission 
FROM: Matthew Ellis, AICP, Planning Director 
DATE: May 9, 2024 
SUBJ: Updates to the Planning Application Fee Schedule 

SUMMARY 

Staff began an assessment of our fee schedule in fall 2023 to ensure we were 
charging fees in line with our neighboring planning departments. Attached, you 
will find a proposed fee schedule in addition to the research conducted by the 
department. 

The Planning Commission’s recommendation on this item will be forwarded to 
the City Commission. 

RECOMMENDATION/SUGGESTED MOTION 
“I move to recommend to the City Commission the proposed Planning Application Fee 
Schedule.” 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There are no fiscal impacts of the proposed code ordinance as fees are paid for 
permits and/or review services as needed to facilitate development. 

6.A



Exhibit A 
Planning Application Fee Schedule 

Effective July 1, 2024 Amount 
Address Assignment (per lot) $50 
Annexation $1,500 
Appeals  

Planning Commission $500 
City Commission $500 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment $2,000 
Conditional Use Permit $1,000 
CRESO Review AC 
Development Code Text Amendment $1,500 
Engineering Review (Development) AC 
Food Cart Permit $200 
Floodplain Development Permit $350 
Grading/Drainage Permit $100 
Hearings Officer AC, $5,000 deposit 
Homestay Lodging Permit and Inspection $500 
Home Occupation – Type II $200 
Land Use Compatibility Statement (LUCS) $75 
License to Occupy $250 
Lot Line Adjustment $150 
Modification of Approved Plans or Conditions  

Type II $500 
Type III/Type IV $750 

Permit Extension 25% of Original Cost, capped at $500 
Recording with Clatsop County Clerk AC 
Residential Poultry Permit and Inspection $150 
Pre-Application Conference $150 
Reinspection $50 
Residential Structure (Primary and Accessory) $150 
Rezone $2,000 
Shipping Container Permit and Inspection $150 
Sign Review $100 
Site Design Review  

Food Cart Pod $250 
Type II $500 
Type III  



10,000 sf - 20,000 sf $1,000 
20,001 sf - 30,000 sf $1,500 
30,001 sf or larger $2,000 

Street Vacation  
Type II $750 
Type III $1,000 

Subdivisions  
Land Partition  $500 
Planned Unit Development $1500+50/lot 
Plat, Preliminary $1,000 +50/lot 
Plat, Final $750 
Plat Vacation $750 

Temporary Use/Structure $300 
Urban Growth Boundary Amendment $2,000+AC 
Variance  

Class 1 Administrative $500 
Class 2 Planning Commission $1,000 

Wetland Significance Determination Amendment $1,000+AC 
Wireless Communication Facility $3,000+AC 
Zoning Verification Letter $150 

 



Planning Application Fee Schedule Current Proposed 
Accessory Dwelling Unit $100  
Accessory Structure $100  
Address Assignment (Per lot) $25 $50 
Annexation $1,250 $1,500 
Appeals   

Planning Commission $500 No Change 
City Commission $500 No Change 

Code Interpretation $250 $250 
Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment $2,000 $1,000+AC 
Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment $2,000.00 $1,000+AC 
Conditional Use Permit $1,000 No Change 
CRESO Review AC No Change 
Development Code Text Amendment $1,500.00 $1,000+AC 
Engineering Review (Development) AC No Change 
Food Cart Permit $300 (Temporary Use) $200 
Floodplain Development Permit $350 No Change 
Grading/Drainage Permit  $100 
Homestay Lodging Permit and Inspection $150 $500 
Hearings Officer AC, $5,000 deposit No Change 
Historic Resource Review $500  
Home Occupation – Type II $350 $200 
Land Use Compatibility Statement (LUCS) $50 $75 
License to Occupy $150 $250 
Lot Line Adjustment $150 No Change 
Modification of Approved Plans or Conditions   

Type II $400 $500 
Type III/Type IV $750 No Change 

Non-Conforming Use Review  $500  

Permit Extension 10% of Original Cost 

25% of Original 
Cost, capped at 

$250 
Residential Poultry Permit $150 No Change 
Plan Review (Type I) – 2nd Review $50  
Pre-Application Conference $150 No Change 

Reinspection 10% of Original Cost 

25% of Original 
Cost, capped at 

$100 
Residential Structure Permit Review   $150 
Rezone $2,000 $2,000+AC 
Shipping Container Design Review  $300 
Sign Review $300 $100 



Site Design Review   
Food Cart Pod $500 (Type II) $250 
Type II $500 $500 
Type III   

10,000 sf - 20,000 sf $750 $1,000 
20,001 sf - 30,000 sf $1,300 $1,500 
30,001 sf or larger $1,750 $2,000 

Street Vacation   
Type II $750 No Change 
Type III $1,000 No Change 

Subdivisions   
Land Partition  $600 $500 
Planned Unit Development $1500+50/lot No Change 
Plat, Preliminary $750+30/lot $1,000 +50/lot 
Plat, Final $500 $750 
Plat Vacation Same as Plat No Change 

Temporary Use/Structure $300 No Change 
Urban Growth Boundary Amendment $2,000+AC No Change 
Variance   

Class 1 Administrative $500 No Change 
Class 2 Planning Commission $1,250 $1,000 

Wetland Significance Determination Amendment $1,000 or AC No Change 
Wireless Communication Facility $3,000+AC No Change 
Zoning Verification Letter $50 $150 

 



New Remove
Charging 

above average
Charging below 

average
Charging 

same

Astoria Seaside Gearhart Average Warrenton Difference Jay's Proposed Notes

5% Technology Fee 

5% of total permit fees

*not compared to other jurisdictions - 
check with Jessica Barrett if this is 
needed? I think the original purpose of 
this was to cover the cost of the 
program, but this may be covered by 
the Building Dept. tech fee

Accessory Dwelling Unit
$100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $0.00

Not currently used per Jay - should we 
continue to use or capture in the 
general site plan review fee?

Accessory Structure Review
$100.00 $100.00

Not currently used per Jay - should we 
continue to use or capture in the 
general site plan review fee?

Address Assignment (per lot) $25.00 $25.00 $50.00

Amendment - Comprehensive Plan (Map) $1,400.00 $3,500.00 $2,450.00 $2,000.00 -$450.00 $1,000 + AC

Amendment - Comprehensive Plan (Text) $750.00 $1,400.00 $3,500.00 $1,883.33 $2,000.00 $116.67 $1,000 + AC
Amendment - Urban Growth Boundary $2,000 + actual cost
Amendment - Wetland Significance 
Determination $1,000 or actual cost
Amendment - Zoning Ordinance / 
Development Code $750.00 $1,400.00 $3,500.00 $1,883.33 $1,500.00 -$383.33 $1,000 + AC
Annexation $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $1,250.00 -$2,250.00 $1,500.00
Appeals - Administrative $500.00 $580.00 $300.00 $460.00 $500.00 $40.00 $300.00
Appeals - Planning Commission $500.00 $625.00 $2,000.00 $1,041.67 $500.00 -$541.67 $750.00
Code Interpretation $250.00 $250.00
Conditional Use Permit - PC $500.00 $675.00 $2,000.00 $1,058.33 $1,000.00 -$58.33 $750.00
CRESO Review (Columbia River Estuary 
Shorelands) Actual Cost

Engineering Review
Actual Cost

 "*** Cost of a city - appointed Engineer 
shall be paid for by the applicant(s) / 
developer"

Floodplain Development Permit $40.00 $40.00 $350.00 $310.00 Covers Gail's time $96.32/hour
Grading, Drainage, Erosion Control $110.00 $110.00 -$110.00 We need a grade/fill/etc fee. 
Hearings Officer $5,000 deposit
Historic Resource Review $500.00 $500.00 No clue what this is for
Home Occupation $200.00 $200.00 $350.00 $150.00
Land Use Compatibility Statement $45.00 $45.00 $50.00 $5.00 $75.00

Land Use Fee Comparison 23-24



License to Occupy
$150.00 $150.00 $250.00

This should be a PW fee for okay to use 
ROW, not for Planning to decide

Lot Line Adjustment $50.00 $140.00 $150.00 $113.33 $150.00 $36.67 $250.00

Miscellaneuos Land Use Request $200.00 $200.00 $350.00 $150.00
WE SHOULD NOT HAVE THIS "CATCH 
ALL" FEE

Modification of Plans or Conditions - Admin
Same as existing 

permit fee $400.00 $400.00 $500.00
Modification of Plans or Conditions - PC $750.00 $750.00 $750.00

Non-Conforming Use / Structure Review $675.00 $675.00 $500.00 -$175.00

Partition $300 + actual costs $2,000 + $100/lot $600.00 $500.00
If not vacant land, same as with 
improments

Partition - Final Plat Review $300.00 $300.00 $500.00

Permit Extension Request $100.00 $150.00 $125.00
10% of original 

application 25% of application fee

Plan Review (Type 1) - 2nd Review $50.00
*remove and replace with general site 
plan review

Planned Unit Development
$5,000 + actual 

costs $670.00 $670.00 $1,500 / + $50 /lot $1,500 / + $50 /lot + AC
Planned Unit Development - Final Plat 
Review $600.00 $600.00

Poultry $0.00 $250.00
*Esther recommended lowering to $100 
to make it more accessible

Pre-Application Conference $150.00 $160.00 $155.00 $150.00 -$5.00

Reinspection 10% of original fee We don't have any inspection fees…
Rezone $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000 + AC
Shipping Container $300.00
Short Term Rental $500.00 $500.00 $150.00 -$350.00 $250.00
Short Term Rental - Permit Renewal $150.00 $150.00 -$150.00 $50.00 *this needs a code change
Sign Permits $100.00 $100.00 $300.00 $200.00
Site Design Review - Administrative $220.00 $220.00 $500.00 $280.00

Site Design Review - PC (10,000sf - 15,00sf) $750.00 $750.00 $1,000.00 Combine 10,000-20,000

Site Design Review - PC (15,001sf - 20,000sf) $1,000.00 $1,000.00

Site Design Review - PC (20,001sf - 25,000sf) $1,300.00 $1,300.00 $1,500.00 20,001-30,000

Site Design Review - PC (25,001sf - 30,000sf) $1,750.00 $1,750.00
Site Design Review - PC (30,001sf +) $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,000.00

Site Design Review - Residential (1st Review)
20% of permit 

fee $50.00 $50.00 -$50.00 $150.00



Site Design Review - Residential (2nd Review)
$50.00 $50.00

I think we should remove this. There's 
no need for a second review most of the 
time.

Subdivision
$500 + $20/lot + 

actual cost $3,000 + $100/lot
$1,750 + 

$60/lot 
$750 + $30/lot + actual 

costs
$1,000 + 
$30/lot $1,000 + 50/lot

Subdivision - Final Plat $500.00 $500.00 $750.00
Temporary Use Type 2 $100.00 $670.00 $385.00 $300.00 -$85.00

Vacation - Plat
$750 + $30/lot + actual 

costs

Vacation - Street (Planning Commission)
Applicant 

Records $3,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00

Vacation - Street (Simple) Actual Cost
Applicant 

Records $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $750.00 -$2,250.00
Needs to increase to cover County 
recording costs

Short Term Rental Inspection (+1 reinspect)
$40.00 $40.00 -$40.00 $50.00

Variance - Type 1 $300.00 $430.00 $1,500.00 $743.33 $500.00 -$243.33
Variance - Type 2 $500.00 $670.00 $1,500.00 $890.00 $1,250.00 $360.00 $1,000.00
Wireless Communication Facility $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000 + actual costs $0.00 $3,500 + AC
Zoning Verification Letter $40.00 $40.00 $50.00 $10.00


	1 PC Agenda 05.09.24
	3.A Minutes
	CUP-24-2 & SDR-24-1
	Application CUP-24-2 2.12.24
	Application SDR-24-1 2.12.24
	Site Plan and Elevations.pdf
	SITE-PLAN-UNIT-MIX

	Preliminary Civil Plans.pdf
	C0.0 Cover Sheet
	C0.0 Cover Sheet

	C0.1 General Notes
	C0.1 General Notes

	C0.2 Existing Conditions
	C0.2 Existing Conditions

	C0.3 Demo Plan
	C0.3 Demo Plan

	C1.0 Hardscape Plan
	C1.0 Hardscape Plan

	C2.0 Utility Plan


	CUP-24-3
	Staff Report CUP-24-3
	conditional_use_application_fillable (2) (1) (1) (1)
	Police Chief Comments

	CUP-24-4
	Staff Report CUP-24-4
	DocuSign_CUP_960 4th Avenue_Jetty View Unit 9
	Police Chief Comments

	CUP-24-5
	Staff Report CUP-24-5
	conditional_use_application_964 4th Avenue_Jetty View Unit 8_Project Description
	conditional_use_application_964 4th Avenue_Jetty View Unit 8_Project Description.pdf

	Police Chief Comments

	CUP-24-6
	Staff Report CUP-24-6
	conditional_use_application_968 4th Avenue_Jetty View Unit 7_Project Description
	conditional_use_application_968 4th Avenue_Jetty View Unit 7_Project Description.pdf

	Police Chief Comments

	Planning Application Fee Schedule

	E-mail Address: hansen@alumus.com                     
	File CUP: 
	undefined: 
	Date Received: 
	Receipt: 
	Mailing Address: 9879 Buena Vista Rd, Independence, OR 97351                                        
	Date: 02/19/2024  
	Name s: Jetty Street, LLC                                                                                             
	Phone: 503-871-1319            
	Email Address: hansen@alumus.com                      
	Mailing Address_2: 9879 Buena Vista Rd, Independence, OR 97351                                        
	Date_2: 02/19/2024   
	Property Address: 964 4th Avenue, Hammond, OR 97121
	Tax Lot Number(s): Jetty View 8, Map: 81005CD03509
	Zone: CMU
	Flood Zone: 
	Wetlands: 
	Applicant Name(s): C. Mark Hansen
	Applicant Phone: 503-871-1319
	Description of Proposed Land Use 1: Short term vacation rental for townhome Unit 8 in Jetty View subdivision constructed in 2023.
	Description of Proposed Land Use 2: 
	Description of Proposed Land Use 3: 
	Description of Proposed Land Use 4: 
	Description of Proposed Land Use 5: 
	1 The proposed use is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 1: This unit is part of the nine-lot townhome Jetty View subdivision. The new construction development was carefully planned 
	1 The proposed use is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 2: to align with the City's Comprehensive Plan and adheres to land use designations and zoning regulations specified in the plan.
	1 The proposed use is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 3: 
	properties 1: The townhomes have been designed to blend with the existing neighborhood with consideration given to noise, traffic, and 
	properties 2: visual aspects. 
	properties 3: 
	generated 1: The development project included half street improvements along 4th and Jetty to accommodate traffic.
	generated 2: 
	generated 3: 
	4 Public facilities and services are adequate to accommodate the proposed use 1: The development project also included utility improvements and extensions.
	4 Public facilities and services are adequate to accommodate the proposed use 2: 
	4 Public facilities and services are adequate to accommodate the proposed use 3: 
	considerations are are appropriate for the use 1: Prior to construction, the Site Design Review and Preliminary Plan were approved to build the Jetty View subdivision.
	considerations are are appropriate for the use 2: 
	considerations are are appropriate for the use 3: 
	which are required by City ordinances 1: The site provides adequate space for buildings, parking, landscaping, and utilities; with setbacks and buffers in compliance with
	which are required by City ordinances 2: City ordinances.
	which are required by City ordinances 3: 
	intended use 1: The site's location is suitable for residential townhomes, beautifies the Hammond Marina area, and provides needed short and 
	intended use 2: long term housing.
	intended use 3: 
	Check Box8: Yes
	Check Box9: Off
	Check Box10: Off
	Check Box11: Off
	Check Box12: Off
	Check Box13: Off
	Check Box14: Off
	Check Box15: Off
	Check Box16: Off
	Check Box17: Off
	Check Box18: Off
	Check Box19: Off
	Check Box20: Off
	Check Box21: Off
	Check Box22: Off
	Check Box23: Off
	Check Box24: Off
	Check Box25: Off
	Check Box26: Off
	Check Box27: Off
	Check Box28: Off


